
 
Notice of a public meeting of  

Economic Development and Transport Policy and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
To: Councillors Cuthbertson (Chair), D'Agorne (Vice-Chair), 

N Barnes, Cullwick, Gates, D Myers, Rawlings and 
Warters 
 

Date: Tuesday, 15 September 2015 
 

Time: 5.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Snow Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G035) 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare: 

 

• any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests  

• any prejudicial interests or  

• any disclosable pecuniary interests 
 
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 8) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the 

Economic Development and Transport Policy and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 22 July 2015. 
 

3. Public Participation 
It is at this point in the meeting that members of the public 
who have registered their wish to speak can do so. The 
deadline for registering is Monday 14 September 2015 at 
5.00 pm.  
 
To register please contact the Democracy Officer for the 
meeting, on the details at the foot of this agenda.   

 



 

 Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings 
Please note this meeting will be filmed and webcast and that 
includes any registered public speakers, who have given their 
permission.  This broadcast can be viewed at: 
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts. 
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record 
Councillors and Officers at all meetings open to the press and 
public. This includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. 
tweeting.  Anyone wishing to film, record or take photos at any 
public meeting should contact the Democracy Officer (whose 
contact details are at the foot of this agenda) in advance of the 
meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present.  It can be viewed at:  
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/6453/protocol_for_web
casting_filming_and_recording_council_meetingspdf 
 

4. Attendance of Executive Member for Transport and 
Planning  (Pages 9 - 12) 

 

 The Executive Member for Transport and Planning will be in 
attendance to talk and answer questions about the priorities and 
challenges in his portfolio as they relate to the remit of this 
committee i.e. Transport and Highways Strategies, Civil 
Engineering and Highways, and Parking Services. 
 

5. Attendance of Executive Member for the Environment  
(Pages 13 - 20) 

 

 The Executive Member for the Environment will be in 
attendance to present a report which details the priorities within 
his portfolio and to answer any questions that Members might 
have. 
 

6. 2014/15 Finance and Performance Outturn Report  
(Pages 21 - 34) 

 

 This report provides details of the 2014/15 outturn position for 
both finance and performance across services within City & 
Environmental Services and Communities and Neighbourhoods.   
 



 

7. 2015/16 Finance & Performance Monitor 1 Report - 
Economic Development and Transport (Pages 35 - 38)  

 

 This report provides details of the 2015/16 forecast outturn 
position for both finance and performance across services 
within City & Environmental Services and Communities and 
Neighbourhoods.  
 

8. The Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF)- 
iTravel York  (Pages 39 - 118) 

 

 This report analyses the activity and success of York’s Local 
Strategic Transport Fund programme, iTravel York, to date and 
considers whether elements or all of the current programme 
could continue beyond the end of the second funding period. 

9. Update Report on Implementation of Recommendations 
from Previously Completed Graduate Business Start-ups, 
Entrepreneurialism and Higher Value Jobs Scrutiny 
Review (Pages 119 - 126)  

 

 This report provides Members with the first update on the 
implementation of recommendations (Annex A) arising from the 
previously completed Graduate Business Start-ups, 
Entrepreneurialism and Higher Value Jobs Scrutiny Review. 
 

10. Work Plan 2015/16 including Scrutiny Reviews 
(Pages 127 - 128)  

 
 

 Members are asked to consider the Committee’s work plan for 
the municipal year. 
 

11. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 
 
Democracy Officer: 
 
Name- Jill Pickering 
Telephone No. – 01904 552061 
E-mail- jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 
 



 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports and 

• For receiving reports in other formats 
 
Contact details are set out above. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Economic Development and Transport Policy 
and Scrutiny Committee 

Date 22 July 2015 

Present Councillors Cuthbertson (Chair), D'Agorne 
(Vice-Chair), N Barnes, Cullwick, Gates, 
D Myers, Rawlings and Warters 

7. Declarations of Interest  
 
At this point in the meeting Members were asked to declare 
personal, prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests that they 
might have had in the business on the agenda. 
 
Councillor Cullwick declared personal interests in Agenda Items 5) 
(Attendance of Executive Member for Housing and Safer 
Neighbourhoods) and 6) Executive Paper on Business Improvement 
District as he managed a number of Houses in Multiple Occupation, 
was employed by York diocese and was a trustee of The 
Spurriergate Centre. 
 
No other interests were declared. 
 
 

8. Minutes  
 
Resolved:  That the minutes of the last meeting of the Economic 

Development and Transport Policy and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 17 June 2015 be signed and 
approved by the Chair as a correct record. 

 
 

9. Public Participation  
 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak under 
the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
 

10. Attendance of Executive Member for Transport & Planning  
 
The Chair reported that he had received apologies from the 
Executive Member for Transport and Planning. It was suggested 
that his attendance be deferred to the September meeting. 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



11. Attendance of Executive Member for Housing and Safer 
Neighbourhoods  
 
The Executive Member for Housing and Safer Neighbourhoods 
attended to detail his priorities and challenges for the municipal 
year. 
 
His three overarching priorities were; 
 

1) Homelessness 
2) Housing Strategy 
3) Private Sector Housing 

 
He also wished to control Anti Social Behaviour, and to work with 
the Police and charities to control street drinking and combat 
“homelessness” in York.  
 
The Executive Member felt that “homelessness” was a misnomer in 
York as the word was often used for as a catch all for street drinkers. 
Council Officers were aware of individuals who had homes but for 
reasons, possibly, mental health or challenging behaviour, chose to 
sit outside. He felt it was inaccurate to say anyone was homeless in 
the city. 
 
Questions from Members to the Executive Member included; 
 

• What did he believe was an appropriate level of affordable housing in 
each development? 
 

• Would the Gypsy Council be involved in a potential review of the 
management of traveller sites? 
 

• Why was a percentage of 20% of all properties being Houses in 
Multiple Occupation (HMO) across a neighbourhood not imposed? 
 
Discussions took place around the definition of affordable housing. It 
was noted that the previous government defined affordable housing 
as 80% of the market rate, but that rates and averages differed 
across the country.  
 
The Executive Member felt that the requirements for affordable 
housing within new developments had acted as a deterrent and had 
affected the economic viability of other projects. 
 

Page 2



The Executive Member confirmed that a report in respect of the 
management of traveller sites would be considered at an Executive 
meeting.  
 
In regards to the percentage of HMO’s, it was noted that the 
numbers of students in the city were levelling and the number of 
planning applications for HMO’s was tailing off. One Member 
requested that the Supplementary Planning Document and 
threshold document in regards to the percentage of HMO’s 
permitted per neighbourhood be re-examined by Members at the 
Local Plan Working Group. The Executive Member confirmed that 
he would investigate this. 
 
Resolved: That the priorities and challenges be noted. 
 
Reason:    So that the Committee are kept up to date. 
 
 

12. Executive Paper on Business Improvement District for York 
City Centre  
 
Members considered a report which was due to be presented to the 
Executive on 30 July. The paper asked the Executive to agree to a 
ballot to take place in November 2015 to allow city centre 
businesses to decide whether they would like to form a Business 
Improvement District in York city centre. 
 
Adam Sinclair, from City Team York and Steve Hughes, York 
Business Improvement District Manager, presented the report and 
gave Members some background to the proposals for the Business 
Improvement District (BID). 
 
They reported that businesses had concerns about cleanliness of 
streets, Christmas lights and shopping experience. The expensive 
cost of rent to occupy listed buildings also discouraged business. 
They explained that BIDs attracted funding by charging a levy on 
businesses within the BID area (approximately 1% based on 
rateable value with a threshold of £12,500) and this would generate 
income for the city. BIDs, once established, were also successful in 
attracting more funding.  
 
Regarding the governance arrangements it was reported that Luton, 
Leeds and Newcastle had all recently voted to have BIDs and that 
terms were five years and renewable.  

Page 3



It was often found on the renewal election that the percentage to 
keep the BID in place increased. It was reported that the average 
turnout for these elections was 40%. 
 
Questions from Members related to; 
 

• The boundaries of the BID 

• The composition of the BID governance structure in relation to levy 
payers and non levy payers 

• Waste Collections 

• City Centre Parking 
 
It was reported that the proposed BID area is largely within the 
boundary of the inner ring road, but includes businesses facing the 
inner ring road.  
 
One Member asked how the BID would balance levy payers with 
non levy payers and was assured businesses below the threshold 
will still benefit from investment in the BID.  
 
If a BID was approved then a not for profit limited by guarantee 
company would be established, an AGM would be held along with 
an election for Directors. There was also the opportunity for there to 
be cross sector BID champions (or a steering group) in the public, 
cultural and private sectors. It was noted that churches were not 
subject to rates and so did not pay the levy, and as a result of this 
they did not get a vote on the BID proposal. However, the City Team 
York had consulted the Dean and Chapter of York Minster on the 
proposals, as they ran some commercial properties.  
 
Members welcomed the BID proposal to have Street Ambassadors 
in the city centre to assist police officers and the proposal to 
introduce new city centre waste collection arrangements which 
would bring economies of scale.  
 
It was reported that some professional firms had stated that they 
would not return to the city centre due to parking charges and would 
remain on the outskirts due to free parking. The installation of ‘pay 
on exit’ and pay by credit card charges were discussed along with 
the early closing hours at night of the Park and Ride service.  
 
Resolved: That the report be noted. 
 

Page 4



Reason:   To support the continuing development of a Business 
Improvement District in York, and subsequent progression 
to ballot stage. 

 
 

13. York Economic Strategy and related Policy & Scrutiny 
Committee Work  
 
Members considered a report which provided them with background 
on the development to date of a new Economic Strategy for York 
and made proposals for how the Committee might wish to contribute 
to it in their cross party policy development role. 
 
The Committee were given some background to the report and how  
Officers were currently working with businesses in the city to 
develop the refreshed existing Economic Strategy and how they felt 
that this would provide a good opportunity for Members to get 
involved. 
  
The report gave the Committee the option to attend and contribute 
to cross-sector workshops to deliver the priorities in the Economic 
Strategy.  
 
Discussion took place during which the following questions and 
points were raised; 
 

• What would the attendance levels for the workshops be, would 
a Member voice be represented? 

 

• Given greater housing demand and population numbers, could 
Members be given sight of growth numbers for the city as 
contained in the Arup report. 

 
It was not known at this stage what the attendance figures would be 
but it was important to ensure that Councillors did not outnumber 
business people on certain topic areas and vice versa.  
 
Therefore there was a suggestion that there be an amendment to 
Option 2 to make attendance to the workshops open to all 
Councillors. 
 
In relation to growth figures it was suggested that these would be 
presented to the Local Plan Working Group and that they would be 
best placed to consider these rather than the Committee. 
 

Page 5



The Chair proposed the priority of Creative City as he felt that there 
were not enough job opportunities produced in the creative sector 
even though the Yorkshire Film Archive was located in the city.  
 
Further discussion took place over the priorities. Option 2 of the 
report to select two priorities was agreed.  
 
It was agreed that “Unlocking Brownfield Sights for Jobs and 
Housing” and “A Creative City Uniquely Utilising its Distinct Heritage” 
would be chosen as the topics.  
 
One Member suggested that the Creative City priority might clash 
with potential work carried out by the Learning and Culture Policy 
and Scrutiny Committee. It was therefore suggested that if this was 
the case then the remaining votes for the next highest topic, “A 
Tangible Shift to Higher Value Sectors and Jobs” be the alternative 
topic. 
 
It was noted that the workshops would likely take place in the late 
afternoon or early evening as they involved businesses. The 
Strategy & Policy Group Manager (Economy and Place) stated that 
he would update Members following the meeting of the York 
Economic Partnership meeting in August and also that he could 
provide a link to the papers for the meeting. 
 
Resolved:  (i)  That Option 2 be confirmed and the following 

priorities be selected; 
 

• A Creative City Uniquely Utilising Its Distinct 
Heritage 

• Unlocking Brownfield Sites 
 
(ii) That the Members assigned to each priority as follows; 
 
A Creative City Uniquely Utilising Its Distinct Heritage 
 
Councillor Cullwick 
Councillor Cuthbertson 
Councillor Myers 
Councillor Rawlings 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Unlocking Brownfield Sites 
 
Councillor D’Agorne 
Councillor Barnes 
Councillor Gates 
Councillor Warters 
 
(iii) That if it is found that the Creative City priority clashes with work 

carried out by the Learning and Culture Policy and Scrutiny 
Committee then it be replaced with the priority “A Tangible Shift 
to Higher Value Sectors and Jobs”. 

 
(iv) That the wording be amended so that workshops be open to all 

Members to attend and contribute. 
 
Reason:  To enable the Committee to fulfil its policy development 

role in a tangible way, contributing to the key decisions and 
actions to be taken around York’s economy for the next five 
years. 

 
 

14. Work Plan 2015-16  
 
Members considered the Committee’s work plan for the municipal 
year. 
 
One Member asked whether the Update Report on the 
Implementation of the Recommendations in the Higher Value Jobs 
Scrutiny Review could be presented at the Creative City workshop. 
Another Member asked for general clarification as to what the 
Finance and Performance Monitoring Reports might include in 
advance of the meeting to allow for Members of the Committee to 
prepare questions for Officers. Clarification was also sought as to 
whether the Committee remit included the examination of 
Outstanding Section 106 payments. It was reported that this was the 
responsibility of the Corporate and Scrutiny Management Policy and 
Scrutiny Committee. 
  
Resolved:  That the work plan be noted and the following 

amendments be made; 
 

• That the attendance of the Executive Member for Transport of 
Planning be deferred until September. 

 

Page 7



• That the attendance of the Executive Member for Economic 
Development and Community Engagement be slipped to 
November depending on his availability. 

 
Reason:     To ensure that the Committee has a planned programme 

of work in place. 
 
 
 

 

 

Councillor I Cuthbertson, Chair 
[The meeting started at 5.30 pm and finished at 8.20 pm]. 

Page 8



Executive Member for Transport and Planning  
 
Economic Development & Transport Policy & Scrutiny Committee 
 

15 September 2015 
 
Key Transport Issues (15/16) 
 
1. Park & Ride Operator Contract 

The procurement of a new operator provides opportunities to enhance 
the service and reduce the environmental impact of the vehicles. Bid 
to be submitted for additional Electric Vehicles to operate service. 
Report to 24 September Executive. 

 
2. Major Infrastructure Investment 

Major schemes are currently being progressed through the West 
Yorkshire plus Transport Fund– 4 York schemes within programme:  
 

• Outer Ring Road Upgrade: Development of 7 roundabout 
upgrades currently progressing using local funding allocations. 
Scheme to be split into phases. Consultation with public on first 
phase expected to be in early 2016. Gateway 2 (approval to 
procure) anticipated for construction to start by Feb 2017. 
Complete full project in2019/20. 

• York Central Access inc. Station Frontage Improvements - 
currently progressing using local funding allocations. Gateway 1 
(approval to progress to detailed design) anticipated in early 
2016. 

• City Centre Public Transport Priorities - Not currently being 
progressed pending Local Plan and transport policy decisions 

• Clifton Moor Park & Ride not being actively progressed pending 
confirmation of Local Plan decisions. 
 

Decision on longer term funding and governance commitment required 
as soon as possible to allow schemes to progress. 

 
3. Transport Systems Maintenance 

There has been an historic under investment in the traffic systems 
infrastructure maintenance which has resulted in a backlog of works of 
approx. £1.5m to bring the city’s Traffic Signals, CCTV, Variable 
Message Signs etc. up to a reasonable condition. 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 9



A report will be presented to the Executive Member reviewing the 
current status and providing a recommended way forward. It is 
proposed to rectify the backlog by allocating capital funds from the 
Integrated Transport block  

 
4. Budget Pressures 

Significant general budget reductions across the Council and 
Transport Service are anticipated over the next four years. Difficult 
decisions will need to be made for non-statutory functions within the 
Transport Service –School Crossing Patrols, CCTV etc. 

 
5. Local Sustainable Transport Fund ends in March 2016 (£1m Revenue 

in 15/16) 
No replacement funding identified. There will be a significant reduction 
in capacity to deliver transport initiatives - up to 7 posts fewer. A 
restructure of the Transport Service will commence shortly to address 
the anticipated funding reductions. Alternative funding opportunities 
are being investigated. 

 
6. Local Transport Plan Refresh 

The current LTP3 continues to be the Council’s transport strategy 
document. The document would benefit from a refresh to take account 
of changes since publication e.g. emerging Local Plan, Technology 
(electric buses), Governance and Funding sources etc. Remit and 
programme for refresh to be confirmed when there is more clarity 

 
7. Coppergate 

Options for restricting the levels of unauthorised traffic on the 
Coppergate/Pavement Stonebow route to be developed. Two stage 
approach – Short Term to address signage issues, Longer term to 
change environment in area. Aiming for Stage 1 report in October 

 
8. Parking Strategy 

Options for longer term management of parking within the city to be 
developed including review of Marygate Pay on Exit. Conflicting 
demands of Environmental Impact, City Centre Access and Council 
Income to be addressed. Aiming for November Report 

 
9. Subsidised Buses 

Significant pressure on subsidised bus service budget – general 
review and consultation on criteria for prioritising budget allocation 
proposed in Autumn 2015. 

 

Page 10



10. Key Capital Programme Projects to be delivered in 15/16 
A19 Pinch Point (Phase 1 on site (complete in September), Phase 2 
consultation in Autumn 2015 and delivery in early 2016), Jockey Lane 
Cycle Route, Clarence Street widening, Rougier Street bus shelter 
upgrade, Road Safety schemes. 

 
11. Scarborough Bridge 

£3m funding from West Yorkshire Cycle Ambition Grant and CYC 
resources confirmed for upgraded foot/cycle bridge to be delivered by 
2017/18. Network Rail currently undertaking feasibility work. Public 
Consultation in 2016. 

 
12. Footstreets Operation 

Review of operation of footstreets area to be undertaken – particularly 
disabled access. 
 

13. A Boards 
Consultation on draft guidelines and licensing policy to be undertaken 
with report back to Executive at end of 15/16. 

 
14. ULEV Low Emission City Bid  

York has been shortlisted (1 of 12 cities) Final bid to be submitted in 
September. Aspiration to increase number of electric vehicles in city. 
 

15. Local Plan 
Transport Modelling and Highway development control input into 
progression of Local Plan. 
 
Key Developments 

 
16. Hiscox (Peasholme Green changes) Stadium (P&R parking changed 

and service rerouted), Germany Beck (A19 Flood defence and junction 
provision), British Sugar, York Central.  

 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to Economic Development and Transport Policy and Scrutiny 
Committee from the Executive Member for Environment 
 

15th September 2015 
 

1. Environment Strategy 

York has strong reasons to appreciate the effects of Climate Change 
through the impact of flooding. The Council has a responsibility to lead in 
the progression towards a sustainable use of resources based on the 
principle of ‘one planet living’ recognising the finite resources of the planet 
and the limited ability for absorption of waste.  I am working with officers to 
bring forward proposals for how this will work, and to ensure that as far as 
possible there is a joined-up approach towards working by the different 
teams within council. I am meeting with businesses and other partners to 
understand how they are responding to a move towards a more 
sustainable economy and hope that this can be through joint work with this 
committee to spread good practice in the city.  

 There are savings which can be made in terms of energy and water use to 
ensure the utilisation of resources for frontline services, which also in this 
case make a significant impact in reducing carbon emissions, and the use 
of limited resources.  All councillors and officers are part of this approach 
and my intention is to develop plans which will fully engage these groups 
and the wider public. 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 13



2. New Carbon Management Programme 

The council needs to take a lead with support for renewable power and 
energy conservation. The success of the Carbon Management Programme 
begun in September 2007 (which had a target for 25% reduction of the 
2006/07 baseline by 2013) was based on annual targets based on specific 
projects. I have asked for a review of the current baseline and for a 
programme of projects which can be reviewed for ‘stretch’ targets. This 
should be complete by the winter and will enable a long-term council 
Carbon Management Programme to be developed. The council had 
benefited from advice from the Carbon Trust, having been selected for the 
Local Authority Carbon Management Programme in April 2007, and 
therefore I would be seeking to ensure the utilisation of external advice to 
assist with the development of carbon management strategies and for 
water use to be included in the programme.  The council needs to act in a 
joined up way on this objective. Development of the council’s fleet will be 
included in this programme and linked in with the delivery of Air Quality 
targets. 
 

3. Generation of renewable power and energy efficiency 
 

We need to look at how the council can make most use of its land and 
property portfolio for the generation of renewable power which will reduce 
future power bills, and thus protect finances for frontline services as a 
consequence. There is significant survey work that needs to be done first, 
but I have asked officers to look at which buildings are suitable for further 
investigation. Many of the council buildings are schools, and as a school 
governor I am aware of the way in which delegated funding of budgets 
makes the return of savings on investment more complicated. 
Nevertheless, I will be working with the Executive Member for Education, 
Children and Young People to encourage schools to come forward as 
many governing bodies are looking at how they can reduce their energy 
cost. 

There are opportunities for the council to encourage the local generation of 
renewable energy appropriate to the location. This can be either on council 
land/property or through new developments. I have asked that a report 
comes to the Executive this autumn to progress this work and includes 
feasibility studies. Partnership working in this field needs to be enhanced to 
share best practice, and to assist promoting the city as an innovative 
location to encourage technology, businesses and for the benefits to be 
taken up by the public.  

Page 14



 

 

Example of progress: Energy 
Performance Certificate ratings at 
Energise Sports Centre 
 
The figures below show a continued 
improvement with the application of energy 
conservation and recent onsite renewables 
(PV) panels – linked to the Solar Schools 
Initiative of which York High School was the 
first school in Yorkshire to be involved. On 
site electricity is being generated by PV 
cells on the roof of the building. 
 
Year     Rating 
2012     C63 
2013     C53 
2014     B47 
2015     B44 
 

4. Transport – Air Quality Work 

The council developed the Low Emission Strategy in tandem with the LTP3 
Local Transport Plan and this has seen progress in increasing the number 
of electric vehicles in the city centre.  The revised Air Quality Action Plan 3 
will come back through the new decision making process in November and 
will be an important step towards meeting our targets. Having seen the 
progression of the air quality service from a rudimentary set of equipment 
in De Grey House in the early 1990s, I am keen to see progress in the 
scientific data produced by the current equipment which is being supported 
by the University of York and Perkin Elmer. 

  

Page 15



5. Business Improvement District (BID) 
 
I have been supporting the proposals for the 
Business Improvement District (BID) and have 
met with the team who have been progressing this 
scheme to the ballot stage. 
 
The appearance of the city centre environment 
has been a key concern of businesses. I have 
been working with officers to set out the baseline 
that the council has the resources to deliver (and 
to be held against service level). I have asked that 
a separate review being undertaken on services 
includes assessment of equipment and vehicles 
being used to fully enable council staff to work 
most effectively. Enhanced provision would be 
available to be tendered above this level by the 
BID Board. 
 
Should the vote for the BID be successful then I would like to progress the 
harmonisation of the waste collection times and points so that waste is 
‘presented’ for the minimum possible periods and at times which prevent the 
risk of it being spilled into the street at night. 
 
 
6. Flood Defence 

The Environment Agency is undertaking modelling work on the projections 
of Climate Change on Ouse river flooding, and this work will be reporting 
soon. It will have a significant impact on the assessment for the hard 
defences in the city centre (such as the walls along North Street) and what 
enhancements will be needed to maintain the current level of defence for 
forthcoming decades.  So that York can benefit from the projected 
allocations in future years (Year 7 onwards) of the current capital 
programme there will need to be pressure to enable planning work to take 
place (it was the lack of scheme planning which meant that the Leeman 
Road defences lost out to the project for Ripon in 2007) and the securing of 
external funding. The current regime for Environment Agency funding 
means that Government grants need to be matched in part by additional 
funding in order to qualify for Flood Grant in Aid.  The Leeman Road Flood 
Defences was one of the first to come under the new scheme, and was 
retained in the regional programme due to the £1 million allocated in the 
February 2011 council budget.  

Page 16



I have attended my first Regional Flood and Coastal Committee (RFCC) 
since 2011, and I have joined the Programming and Investment Sub Group 
which reviews the financial performance of the RFCC.  

  
Leeman Road Flood Defences at handover on November 2014 
 

Besides interest in river flooding there is increased interest in rain 
flooding/surface water drainage. There will be a report on the work which is 
to be undertaken to get to the bottom of some recurring issues in the city, 
and I have asked that a comprehensive table of locations for work based 
on modelling and also historic experience are included in the report so that 
the councillors and the public can ensure that we have a thorough 
understanding of the problems that we face across the city.  

7. Green Jobs Task Group 

The Joint Administration agreement identified the re-establishment of the 
Green Jobs taskforce (which existed prior to 2011) as one of the ways the 
Council will seek to deliver a prosperous, sustainable city for all.   

Whilst there is not a single definition for green jobs the United Nations 
Environment Programme uses the definition of: 

"work in agricultural, manufacturing, research and development (R&D), 
administrative, and service activities that contribute(s) substantially to 
preserving or restoring environmental quality. Specifically, but not 
exclusively, this includes jobs that help to protect ecosystems and 
biodiversity; reduce energy, materials, and water consumption through high 
efficiency strategies; de-carbonize the economy; and minimize or 
altogether avoid generation of all forms of waste and pollution."   

This does not necessary cover the ‘greening’ of jobs which also forms a 
key element of delivering the economic and environmental benefits which 
are central to the green jobs agenda.   

 

Page 17



There are 3 main elements to the green jobs agenda: 

1) Creating new green job opportunities - training and job creation  
2) Focusing on resource efficiency, greening existing businesses and 

up – skilling staff 
3) Extracting new green businesses and inward investment. 

Around these different elements, the task group will be developed in a way 
where it can add greatest value to what is already happening; maximizing 
impact and avoiding duplication.   

 

Green Job opportunities  

Overall, York has a slightly lower proportion than the national average of 
jobs within environmental industries (e.g. location quotients for relevant 
SIC codes), therefore a more targeted approach is needed to deliver green 
jobs growth: 

Table 1 (below) outlines the initial opportunities to explore 

Opportunity to 
explore 

Additional information 

Continue to support 
and grow the 
BioVale initiative 

World leading research base and industry 
engagement around the ‘valorization’ (creating 
value) of waste, and developing greener bio-
based products to replace crude-oil based 
counterparts.   

Leeds City Region 
(LCR) 

 

LCR Green 
Economy Panel 

City of York to be better represented on this 
panel to maximise opportunities. 

Energy Accelerator  CYC to develop a pipeline of renewable energy 
projects. 
 

Page 18



 
 

Better Homes 
Yorkshire  

Deliver energy efficiency measures to 
households across York (e.g. the recent 
exemplar house at Carnot Street for hard to 
treat pre 1919 terrace housing). 

European 
Structural 
Investment Funds 
(ESIF) – T4 Low 
carbon stream  

Maximise opportunities for funding energy 
efficiency and renewable energy projects in 
housing and across the public estate.  

ESIF – T3 SME 
Resource 
Efficiency 
Programme  

Programme to offer Small Medium sized 
Enterprises resource efficiency advice and 
support. This is to be embedded into Make it 
York’s offer to businesses. This work would fall 
within their existing Service Level Agreement,  

Strategic Heat 
Programme  

Exploring potential for district heat 
opportunities in the city. 

Council / City   

CYC Exercise powerful leadership by developing a 
low carbon, resource efficient council through 
the new Carbon Management Programme, 
procurement, planning and waste schemes. 

Ultra low emission 
City, LES, and 
Office for Low 
Emissions (OLEV) 
City Bid, itravel  

Accelerating the deployment of Ultra Low 
Emission Vehicles (ULEV) and sustainable 
transport across the city. 

 

All of the above could help deliver  

i. new green job opportunities / training,  
ii. resource efficient businesses and staff training 

iii. help attract green businesses /new inward investment, and 
iv. reduce environmental impacts and Green House Gas (GHG) 

emissions  
v. help create a leading one planet, sustainable city. 

 

 

 

Page 19



8. General Note  

As there is some overlap with the work of the Environment and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee I have given some of the comments 
above in my report to them in my report in July, however, I have noted the 
specific responsibilities of this Scrutiny Committee and tailored this report 
to meet them. 

 

Andrew Waller 

Executive Member for Environment 

Page 20



 

 

 
 

   

 

Economic Development and Transport Policy 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 

15th  September 2015 

Report of the Director of City & Environmental Services and the 
Director for Communities and Neighbourhoods. 
 
2014/15 Finance and Performance Outturn Report 

 
Summary 

 
1. This report provides details of the 2014/15 outturn position for both 

finance and performance across services within City & 
Environmental Services and Communities and Neighbourhoods.   

 
Analysis 
 
Finance  

 
2. The services that relate to Economic Development and Transport 

Policy and Scrutiny committee cross two Directorates (City and 
Environmental Services and Communities and Neighbourhoods). 
Service Plan Variations which relate to services within this scrutiny 
are shown below: 

   Variance 
 Budget Outturn  
 £'000 £'000 £'000 

City & Environmental Services    

Transport 6,898 7,160 262 

Fleet -81 -15 66 

Highways 3,708 3,610 -98 

Parking Income  -7,001 -6,676 325 

Development Services, Planning and 
Regeneration 

1,909 2,262 353 

Economic Development 887 826 -61 

    

Communities and Neighbourhoods     

Parking 1,324 1,383 59 

Note: ‘+’ indicates an increase in expenditure or shortfall in income 
   ‘-‘ indicates a reduction in expenditure or increase in income 

Agenda Item 6Page 21



 
3. Details of the main variations by service plan are detailed in the 

following paragraphs. 
 
Transport (+£262k) 

 
4. The overspend of £262k across Transport Services was due to 

£100k unachieved income from ANPR enforcement of Coppergate 
and £75k for residual costs involved in the Lendal Bridge closure 
trial. There was £86k additional expenditure on transport projects 
relating to Connected Cities and East Coast Mainline Authorities. 
There was also a £59k overspend on subsidised buses and £48k 
for temporary staff within CCTV. These overspends were offset by 
mitigating savings on quality bus contract (£65k) and road safety 
(£35k). 
 
Fleet (+£66k) 

 
5. Overall across the fleet budget there was an overspend of £66k. 

There was an underspend of £178k on transport due to lower than 
forecast operating lease costs and staffing vacancies however this 
was offset by an overspend on vehicle maintenance partly due to 
unachieved income targets. There is also a further £112k 
unachieved council wide fleet saving that is still to be delivered.   
 
Highways (-£98k) 

 
6. There was an underspend on basic maintenance/asphalt repair 

(£622k) due to the use of alternative capital funding and an 
underspend on street lighting (£147k) due to lower expenditure on 
materials and electricity. These were offset by overspends on the 
civils account (£379k) due to lower than forecast income, additional 
staffing for engineering consultancy (£149k), £94k overspend on 
winter maintenance and lower than budgeted income relating to 
utilities working on the Highway (£75k). 

 
Parking Income (+£325k) 

 
7. The year end shortfall on the parking account was £325k (4.5%). 

This is a continuation of the shortfalls within the account over the 
past few years (£258k in 2012/13 and £230k in 2013/14). 

 
 
 
  

Page 22



  
 There have been a number of initiatives that have impacted the 

account during the year, including the closure of Haymarket Car 
Park in April 2014, the impact of lost income due to the free parking 
initiative from June 2014 (funded by £300k from section 106), the 
introduction of charges for residents discount pass from September 
(which was later than assumed at the budget), the introduction of 
pay on exit at Marygate car park in July 2014 (which has faced 
technical issues resulting in lost income), the use of Marygate by 
Network Rail in the final quarter of the year and the commencement 
of the expanded Park & Ride Network in June 2015. It is not 
possible to identify the impact on the account of each of the new 
initiatives however the outturn position was not significantly different 
to previous years. Members agreed to a reduction of £400k in the 
overall parking income budget expectation at budget council in 
February 2105 and this should ease the pressure on the parking 
account going forward 

 
Development Services, Planning and Regeneration (+£353k) 

 
8. There was £108k shortfall in Building Control income and £16k 

additional operating costs. Income is expected to increase in 
2015/16. Income from land charges was £76k higher than budget. 
This was offset by the cost of the legal decision for all authorities to 
refund personal search agencies for fees charged between 2005 
and 2010. A provision for the costs for York was included in the 
accounts at £200k.  

 
9. There were also shortfalls in income for planning fees (£26k) and 

Environmental Management (£35k). 
 

Economic Development (-£61k) 
 
10. This underspend was mainly due to savings from vacant posts 

across the service.  
 
Parking Administration and Enforcement (+£59k) 

 
11. There were additional staffing costs (£46k) and a shortfall in fines 

(£20k). This was offset by £6k operational savings within the 
service.  

 
 
 
 

Page 23



 
Performance Update 
 

12. Annex 1 and Annex 2 provide data on key aspects of the council’s 
performance for 2014/15. The performance considered by this 
scrutiny committee are under the following headings: 

 

• Create Jobs & Grow the Economy 

• Get York Moving 
 
 

Create Jobs & Grow the Economy 
 
13. A feasibility study has been completed for York Central (the city’s 

largest development site), and a memorandum of understanding 
signed with Network Rail. Unlocking and maximising the 
development opportunity through the wider York Central site, would 
unlock 1100 homes and 85,000m2 of grade A office space, as well 
as building on the National Railway Museum’s existing offer to 
realise a world class museum attracting 1m footfall a year. 
Projections demonstrate this will deliver up to £254m in GVA per 
annum and a net 4,750 jobs on completion. 

 
14. The Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership (LEP) confirmed 

further devolved funding through the government’s Employer 
Ownership Pilot to create a £17.5 million skills service for local 
businesses. The aim of the funding is to provide funding to small 
and medium sized businesses to enable them to source the skills 
solutions they require to develop and grow.  

 
15. Achievement: The first year of the Super-Connected City (SCC) 

programme has seen the delivery of the following projects, funded 
principally by DCMS: 
 

• Wifi and Public Transport. 80x buses had free wifi 
successfully installed in the last quarter of 2014/15 

• Public Buildings Connectivity and Wifi. The installation of wifi 
and improved connectivity (principally Gigabit fibre 
connections) has been completed to 28 public buildings: the 
Art Gallery, Guildhall, 11 sheltered Housing Schemes and 15 
Community Hubs. 

• City Centre Wifi. Phase 1 of the city centre wifi has been has 
been enhanced by the recent collaborative working with York 
University to extend the access to Eduroam via the city 
connect wifi platform. 

Page 24



 

• Connection Vouchers. The York Voucher Connection 
Scheme has always been seen as the mainstay of the 
national SCC programme. Over the first 12 months, 23 
vouchers have been delivered allowing these SMEs to more 
than double their broadband speeds. For businesses 
supported by the voucher 

• scheme/ grant the increased competition has lowered 
average monthly revenue costs for broadband service from 
£460 to £75. 

 
 
16. Challenge: In York average weekly gross earnings of residents 

have fallen between April 2013 to April 2014 (from £520 to £479) 
but nationally pay has increased (to an average £521 a week). 
Regionally pay is static. The statistics for April 2015 will be 
available by the end of the year. 

 
17. The trends around wage stagnation are clearly concerning, and we 

know that this is an ongoing challenge given the nature of city’s 
industrial bias towards lower paid retail and tourism sectors. Given 
the importance of wage levels to York’s population, it is imperative 
that as a city, working across sectors, we focus on addressing this 
issue. 

 
Get York Moving  

 
18. Achievement: Evaluation of The Tour de France highlighted an 

estimated £102m benefit to the Yorkshire economy with around 1.8 
million people feeling inspired to cycle more frequently. York’s 
economy benefitted from £8.3m in spends over the weekend. 

 
19. Achievement: the council’s i-Travel York initiative, made possible by 

£4.6 million of government funding which the council successfully 
bid for in 2011, and a further £1million awarded last year, targets 
areas of the city where there are high numbers of short car trips to 
employment and retail destinations. 12,240 households have been 
engaged by Personal Travel Advisers to help them plan to travel 
sustainably. 

 
20. Challenge: The percent of customers arriving at York Station by 

sustainable modes of transport (cycling, walking, taxi or bus) has 
decreased to 68.3% from 73% in 2013/14.  
 

Page 25



The draft Council Plan sets out a continuing focus on sustainable 
transport in order to help address this. Extra support of £75k for 
local and rural bus travel has been included within the emergency 
budget. 

 
Implications 

 
21. There are no financial, human resources, equalities, legal, crime & 

disorder, information technology, property or other implications 
associated with this report. 
 
Risk Management 
 

22. The report provides Members with updates on finance and service 
performance and therefore there are no significant risks in the 
content of the report. 

 
Recommendations  

 
23. As this report is for information only, there are no 

recommendations. 
 
  Reason: To update the scrutiny committee of the latest finance and 

performance position. 
 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officers responsible for the report: 

 
Patrick Looker 
Finance Manager 
Tel: 551633 

 
Neil Ferris 
Interim Director of City and Environmental 
Services 
 
Sally Burns 
Director of Communities and Neighbourhoods 
 

Report 
Approved 

� 7/9/2015  

Annexes 
 
Annex 1 – Create Jobs and Grow the Economy 2016/2016 
Annex 2 – Get York Moving 2015/2016  
 

 

 

 

Page 26



Glossary 
ANPR- Automatic Number Plate Recognition 
CCTV- Close Circuit Television 
DCMS- Department for Culture, Media and Sport 
GVA- Gross Value Added 
LEP- Local Enterprise Partnership 
SCC- Super Connected Cities 
SME- Small and Medium Sized Enterprises 
 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 1

Collection 

Frequency
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Target Polarity DoT

JSA Claimants: % of Working Age Population (16-64) Monthly 2.30% 1.60% 0.80% 0.60% - - - - Up is Bad Good

Benchmark - National Data Monthly 3.80% 2.90% 2.00% 1.70% - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Monthly 4.90% 3.80% 2.70% 2.40% - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Monthly 1 1 1 1 - - - -

JSA Claimants: % of Working Age Population (18-24) Monthly 2.60% 1.50% 0.70% 0.41% - - - - Up is Bad Good

Benchmark - National Data Monthly 7.10% 5.00% 3.10% 2.43% - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Monthly 9.00% 6.40% 4.20% 3.41% - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Monthly 1 1 1 1 - - - -

JSA Claimants: % of Working Age Population (16-64) (Over one year) Monthly 0.50% 0.40% 0.20% 0.20% - - - - Up is Bad Good

Benchmark - National Data Monthly 1.00% 0.80% 0.50% 0.50% - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Monthly 1.40% 1.20% 0.80% 0.70% - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Monthly 1 1 1 1 - - - -

Total Benefit Claimants (Working Age 16-64) Quarterly 11,510 10,670
 (avail 

Aug 15)
- - - - - Up is Bad Good

Create Jobs and Grow the Economy 2015/2016   

Produced by the Shared Intelligence Bureau  August 2015     

Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is performing against its Polarity over time

No of Indicators =  37

Previous Years 2015/2016

CJGE06

CJGE07

CJGE08

CJGE38
Total Benefit Claimants (Working Age 16-64) Quarterly 11,510 10,670

Aug 15)
- - - - - Up is Bad Good

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Quarterly 1 1 - - - - - -

% Total Benefit Claimants (Working Age 16-64) Quarterly 8.60% 7.90%
 (avail 

Aug 15)
- - - - - Up is Bad Good

Benchmark - National Data Quarterly 14.30% 13.30%
 (avail 

Aug 15)
- - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Quarterly 15.90% 14.90%
 (avail 

Aug 15)
- - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Quarterly 1 1 - - - - - -

Lone Parents (Working Age 16-64) Quarterly 910 850
 (avail 

Aug 15)
- - - - - Up is Bad Good

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Quarterly 1 1 - - - - - -

% Lone Parents (Working Age 16-64) Quarterly 0.70% 0.60%
 (avail 

Aug 15)
- - - - - Up is Bad Good

Benchmark - National Data Quarterly 1.30% 1.20%
 (avail 

Aug 15)
- - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Quarterly 1.30% 1.30%
 (avail 

Aug 15)
- - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Quarterly 2 1 - - - - - -

CJGE11 Workless Households % of all Households
Discontinu

ed
13.20% - - - - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

CJGE13

0
Universal Credit: Number of claimants on caseload Monthly N/A N/A 60 273 - - - - Up is Bad Bad

CJGE22 Number of vacant city centre shops Monthly 40 42 40 44 - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

CJGE23 % of vacant city centre shops Monthly 5.95% 6.25% 5.99% 6.62% - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

B
e
n
e
fits

CJGE38

CJGE09

CJGE39

CJGE10

P
age 29



Annex 1

Collection 

Frequency
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Target Polarity DoT

Create Jobs and Grow the Economy 2015/2016   

Produced by the Shared Intelligence Bureau  August 2015     

Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is performing against its Polarity over time

No of Indicators =  37

Previous Years 2015/2016

Total Businesses Annual 8,010 8,135 8,105 - - - - - Up is 

Good
Neutral

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 8 8 9 - - - - -

Business Births Annual 720 945
 (avail 

Nov 15)
- - - - -

Up is 

Good
Good

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 11 10 - - - - - -

Business Deaths Annual 635 600
 (avail 

Nov 15)
- - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 3 4 - - - - - -

GVA per head (£) Annual 23,084 23,483
 (avail 

Dec 15)
- - - - -

Up is 

Good
Good

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 2 2 - - - - - -

Total GVA (£ billion) Annual 4.62 4.75
 (avail 

Dec 15)
- - - - -

Up is 

Good
Good

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 9 11 - - - - - -

CJGE32 Business Startups - (YTD) Monthly 1,494 1,155 1144 254 - - - - Up is Neutral

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

CJGE27

CJGE28

CJGE29

CJGE30

CJGE31

CJGE32 Business Startups - (YTD) Monthly 1,494 1,155 1144 254 - - - - Up is 

Good
Neutral

CFC04 Business stock per 10,000 population (Rank out of 64) Annual 20 19 19 - - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

CFC12 Total CO2 emissions per capita (t) (Rank out of 64) Annual 20 21 18 - - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

CFC17 Employment rate (%) (Rank out of 64) Annual 2 16 12 - - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

CFC23 Working age population with qualification at NVQ4+ (%) (Rank out of 64) Annual 7 7 9 - - - - - Up is Bad Bad

Proportion of Children in Child Poverty (HMRC) Annual 11.10% - - - - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 18.60% - - - - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 20.00% - - - - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 2 - - - - - - -

Median earnings of residents – Gross Weekly Pay (£) Annual 523.10 526.50 478.70 - - - - - Up is 

Good
Bad

Benchmark - National Data Annual 508.3 517.9 520.8 - - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 465.2 479.1 479.0 - - - - -

CJGE15 Median earnings of residents (% difference between York & GB) Annual 2.83% 1.63% -8.79% - - - - -
Up is 

Good
Bad

CJGE16 Earnings gap between the 25 percentile and the median (£) (York) Annual 244.10 237.90 181.70 - - - - - Up is Bad Good

% of working age population qualified - No qualifications Annual 6.50% 6.90% 4.80% - - - - - Up is Bad Good

Benchmark - National Data Annual 9.70% 9.40% 8.80% - - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 11.60% 10.60% 9.80% - - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 1 1 2 - - - - -

C
e
n
tre

 fo
r 

C
itie

s

D
e
p
riv

a
tio

n
 

a
n
d
 P

o
v
e
rty

CJGE13

E
a
rn

in
g
s

CJGE14

CJGE17

P
age 30



Annex 1

Collection 

Frequency
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Target Polarity DoT

Create Jobs and Grow the Economy 2015/2016   

Produced by the Shared Intelligence Bureau  August 2015     

Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is performing against its Polarity over time

No of Indicators =  37

Previous Years 2015/2016

% of working age population qualified - to at least  L2 and above* Annual 79.80% 80.30% 82.60% - - - - -
Up is 

Good
Good

Benchmark - National Data Annual 71.80% 72.40% 73.30% - - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 68.50% 69.30% 70.00% - - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 1 1 1 - - - - -

% of working age population qualified - to at least  L3 and above* Annual 65.60% 65.80% 68.40% - - - - -
Up is 

Good
Good

Benchmark - National Data Annual 54.90% 55.70% 56.70% - - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 51.20% 51.50% 52.10% - - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 1 1 1 - - - - -

% of working age population qualified - to at least  L4 and above* Annual 41.20% 40.20% 40.30% - - - - -
Up is 

Good
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 34.20% 35.10% 36.00% - - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 29.40% 29.80% 29.70% - - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 1 1 1 - - - - -

E
d
u
c
a
tio

n
 (A

d
u
lt)

CJGE18

CJGE19

CJGE20

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 1 1 1 - - - - -

Total In Employment Annual 104,600 105,400
 (avail 

Sep 15)
- - - - -

Up is 

Good
Neutral

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 10 10 - - - - - -

Total Employee Jobs Annual 101,600 102,400
 (avail 

Sep 15)
- - - - -

Up is 

Good
Neutral

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 10 10 - - - - - -

CJGE03 York’s unemployment rate below the national Quarterly 1.70% 2.00%  1.70% - - - - - Up is 

Good
Neutral

% of Full-time employees Quarterly 67.70% 65.80% 68.10% - - - - - Up is 

Good
Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Quarterly 73.70% 73.90%  74.10% - - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Quarterly 72.40% 72.70% 72.80% - - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Quarterly 15 15 15 - - - - -

% of Part time employees Quarterly 32.20% 33.80% 31.40% - - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Quarterly 25.80% 25.60% 25.50% - - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Quarterly 26.90% 26.70% 26.70% - - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Quarterly 15 15 15 - - - - -

% of young people not in education, employment or training Annual 4.90% 4.20% 4.70% - - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 5.80% 5.30% 4.7% - - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 6.30% - 5.1% - - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 3 2 4 - - - - -

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

CJGE12 Children under 16 in Workless Households
Discontinu

ed
6.10% 7.60% - - - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

T
o
u
ris

m

TOU14 Parliament Street Footfall Monthly 7,941,059 7,844,253 9,616,941 2,131,369 - - - -
Up is 

Good

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

CJGE01

CJGE02

CJGE04

CJGE05

CJGE21

T
o
u
ris

m

TOU14 Parliament Street Footfall Monthly 7,941,059 7,844,253 9,616,941 2,131,369 - - - -
Up is 

Good
Good

P
age 31



P
age 32

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Get York Moving 2015/2016
Produced by the Shared Intelligence Bureau  September 2015

Direction of Travel (DoT) shows the trend of how an indicator is performing against its Polarity over time
No of Indicators =  15

Previous Years 2015/2016

Collection
Frequency

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Target Polarity DoT

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

CES03
% of road and pathway network that are grade 3 (poor 
condition) - roadways

Annual 15% 16% - - - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

CES04
% of road and pathway network that are grade 3 (poor 
condition) - pathways

Annual 5% 4% - - - - - - Up is Bad Good

CES05
% of Principal roads where maintenance should be 
considered (NI 168)

Annual 2% 2% - - - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

CES06
% of Non-principal classified roads where maintenance 
should be considered (NI 169)

Annual 5% 4% - - - - - - Up is Bad Good

CES07

% of Unclassified roads where maintenance should be 
considered (old BV224b)

Annual 10% 10% - - - - - - Up is Bad Neutral

Benchmark - National Data Annual 17% - - - - - - -

Benchmark - Regional Data Annual 17% - - - - - - -

Regional Rank (Rank out of 15) Annual 3 - - - - - - -

P
u
b
lic

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

CAN031
Bus journeys originating in the authority area (P&R only) - 
(YTD) (Provisional until financial year end) (LI 3b)

Monthly 4.38m 4.45m 4.51m - - - - -
Up is 
Good

Good

CAN032
Local bus passenger journeys originating in the authority 
area (excluding P&R) - (YTD) (Provisional until financial 
year end) (LI 3a)

Monthly 9.70m 10.38m 10.48m - - - - -
Up is 
Good

Good

CAN032
-A

Total Number of Bus Journeys (YTD) - (Provisional until 
financial year end)- this is not a local indicator and is not 
comparable with the DfT published figure

Monthly 14.08m 14.83m - - - - - -
Up is 
Good

Good

CAN033 % of Non-frequent bus services running on time (LI 22a) Annual 82.0% 84% - - - - - -
Up is 
Good

Good

CAN034
Average excess waiting time for frequent bus services 
(Minutes and seconds - decimal) (LI 22)

Annual 0.9 0.6 - - - - - - Up is Bad Good

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 T
ra

v
e
l

CES26
Index of cycling activity (AM Peak) (Calendar Year) 
(Baseline 2009)

Annual 115% 122% 129% - - - - -
Up is 
Good

Good

CES27
Index of cycling activity (PM Peak) (Calendar Year) 
(Baseline 2009)

Annual 115% 123% 125% - - - - -
Up is 
Good

Good

CES28
Index of cycling activity (12 hour) (Calendar Year) 
(Baseline 2009)

Annual 115% 125% 128% - - - - -
Up is 
Good

Good

CES33
Pedestrians crossing the inner cordon (12hr into & out of 
city centre) Indexed baseline 2009/10

Annual 105.5% 106.4% 106.6% - - - - -
Up is 
Good

Neutral

CES34
% of customers arriving at York Station by sustainable 
modes of transport (cycling, walking, taxi or bus - 
excluding cars, Lift, Motorcycle, Train) (LI 4)

Annual 76.30% 73.00% 68.30% - - - - -
Up is 
Good

Bad

Annex 2
P

age 33



P
age 34

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

   

Economic Development and Transport Policy 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 

15 September 2015 

Report of the Director of City & Environmental Services and 
Director for Communities and Neighbourhoods.  
 
2015/16 Finance & Performance Monitor 1 Report – Economic 
Development and Transport 
 

Summary 
 
1. This report provides details of the 2015/16 forecast outturn position 

for both finance and performance across services within City & 
Environmental Services and Communities and Neighbourhoods.  

 
 Analysis  
 
 Finance 
 
2. The services that relate to Economic Development and Transport 

Policy and Scrutiny committee cross two Directorates (City and 
Environmental Services and Communities and Neighbourhoods). 
Service Plan Variations which relate to services within this scrutiny 
are shown below: 

  Forecast Variance 
 Budget Outturn  
 £'000 £'000 £'000 

City & Environmental 
Services  

   

Transport 5,948 6,133 185 

Fleet -355 -180 175 

Highways 2,592 2,592 0 

Parking Income  -6,720 -6,584 136 

Development Services, 
Planning and Regeneration 

786 811 25 

Economic Development 172 172 0 

    

Communities and 
Neighbourhoods  

   

Parking 1,040 1,040 0 

Agenda Item 7Page 35



 
  Note: “+’ indicates an increase in expenditure or shortfall in income 
   ‘-‘ indicates a reduction in expenditure or increase in income 
 
3. Details of the main variations by service plan are detailed in the 

following paragraphs. 
 

Transport (+£185k) 
 
4. There is a shortfall of £100k unachieved ANPR income following 

the suspension of enforcement cameras at Coppergate, £50k 
additional costs, mainly staffing, across CCTV and increased costs 
of £46k in maintaining the council’s traffic systems. The service is 
looking at options as to how these savings can be mitigated. 

 
Fleet (+£175k) 

 
5. There is a £112k saving within the travel management unit still to be 

allocated to service areas for which a delivery plan needs to be 
agreed. This saving is not currently expected to be achieved in 
2015/16. In addition there is a forecast shortfall in vehicle workshop 
external income of £63k. 

 
Parking Income (+£136k) 

 
6. Income from car parking to 30th June 2015 was £37k below 

forecast which represents 2.7% of the budget. This equates to a 
projected shortfall of £136k for a full year. There have been 
technical issues at the Pay on Exit car park at Marygate and this 
has contributed to approximately half the shortfall. Actual income 
will continue to be monitored closely. 

 
Development Services, Planning and Regeneration (+£25k) 

 
7. The early indications are that there will be £100k shortfall in building 

control income. This is offset by an expected increase in income 
from land charges of £75k. 

 
Performance 

 
8. The economy and transport dashboards are at Annex 1 and Annex 

2 of previous Agenda item, 2014/15 Finance and Performance 
Outturn Report. 

 
 

Page 36



 
Many of the performance indicators for both transport and the 
economy are reported on an annual basis, the focus of this report is 
on the most recently available statistics that have been released in 
quarter one. 
 

9. For transport, there is not yet available data for quarter one for the 
dashboard. However, there has been some progress on transport in 
quarter one, most notably the road improvement works to address 
the A19 “pinch point” in the south of the city. 
 

10. Members will also be aware that there is a separate paper at this 
meeting to discuss developments on the LSTF. 
 
York’s Economy  
 

11. In the first quarter of this year, job seekers claimants’ figures 
continued to be strong. Claimants are at pre-recession levels of 
1.3% (end June), compared to 3.4% regionally, and Youth 
unemployment is at its lowest since 2006. 
 

12. These figures also need to be compared for context against overall 
employment figures. In the year to March 2015, the number of the 
working age population in Full Time Employment in York increased 
by 2.3% to 68.1%. Nationally saw an increase of 0.1% to 74.1% 
and regionally an increase of 0.2% to 72.8%. This has meant an 
increase of 2,300 full time jobs for males and 1,000 jobs for 
females. (Source: Annual Population Survey). 
 

13. In other data, we have seen that business start-up rates in Q1 are 
20% below the level seen in the same period last year. We have 
also seen that the number of vacant city centre premises has 
increased to 6.6%. We are working with Make it York to understand 
and remedy these trends.  
 
Implications 
 

14. There are no financial, human resources, equalities, legal, crime & 
disorder, information technology, property or other implications 
associated with this report. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



Risk Management 
 

15. The report provides Members with updates on finance and service 
performance and therefore there are no significant risks in the 
content of the report. 
  
 
Recommendations 
 

16. As this report is for information only, there are no 
recommendations. 
 
Reason: To update the scrutiny committee of the latest finance and 
performance position. 

 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officers responsible for the report: 

 
Patrick Looker 
Finance Manager 
Tel: 551633 

 
Neil Ferris 
Interim Director of City and Environmental 
Services 
 
Sally Burns 
Director of Communities and Neighbourhoods 
 

Report 
Approved 

� 7/9/2015  

    
 

Glossary 
ANPR- Automatic Number Plate Recognition 
CCTV- Close Circuit Television 
SME- Small Medium Sized Enterprises 
LSTF- Local Sustainable Transport Fund 
 

Page 38



 

 

  
 

   

 
Economic Development and Transport Policy 
and Scrutiny Committee 

  
 15 September 2015 

 
Report of the Director of City and Environment Services 
 

The Local Sustainable Transport Fund – iTravel York 

Summary 

1. The ‘iTravel York’ programme was devised to reduce carbon 
emissions, stimulate economic growth through influencing travel 
behaviour and to encourage modal shift.  Following a successful bid 
to the Government’s Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) for a 
four year programme, delivery commenced in 2011. In recognition 
of the success of the programme over its first four years, the 
Department for Transport then awarded a further tranche of funding 
to extend the iTravel York programme for a further year to March 
2016. 

2. This report analyses the activity and success of York’s LSTF 
programme to date and considers whether elements or all of the 
current programme could continue beyond the end of the LSTF 2 
funding period. 

Recommendations 

3. The Scrutiny Committee is recommended to  

Note the content of this report. 

Reason: To update the Committee on the iTravel York programme. 

Background 

4. This section of the report is divided in to three parts. Firstly 
consideration is given to the scope and activity as well as to the 
outputs and outcomes of LSTF1 (2011-2015).  Secondly, LSTF2 
(2015-2016) is considered.  Finally, the report identifies some 
elements of the current LSTF programme which should be 

Agenda Item 8Page 39



 

continued beyond March 2016 and some of the associated 
challenges in making this happen. 

LSTF1 (2011-2015) 

5. LSTF1 built on York’s history of sustainable transport successes 
and the ‘Cycling City’ programme which immediately preceded it.  
Named ‘iTravel York’, the programme aimed to reduce congestion 
and its impact on the environment and sought to enhance the city’s 
prosperity and growth potential.  It did this through an integrated 
programme of personal, business and school travel planning 
combined with targeted infrastructure (capital) enhancements to 
increase people’s travel choices. 

6. The programme was focussed on a geographic area identified as 
the ‘northern quadrant’ of York, bounded by the River Ouse to the 
west and Monk Stray to the east (see figure 1 below). It 
incorporated the city centre, the Monks Cross and Clifton Moor 
business and retail developments as well as York St John 
University, York Hospital and a number of other major employers. 
Approximately 80,000 people (40% of the total city population) live 
in the area and 50% of the city’s jobs are located there. 

Figure 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Central Government contributed a total of £4.645m over four years 
to 2015 of which 54% was revenue funding.  The total value of the 
LSTF programme was £7.71m, with the remainder of the funding 
coming from a variety of local public and private sector sources.  

8. The bid focused on addressing four key challenges 

Page 40



 

a. The economy and specifically how it would continue to develop 
in light of new developments proposed over the coming years. 

b. The negative impact that increased congestion would have on 
York’s ability to grow and attract ongoing investment. 

c. Growing emissions levels from transport. The bid considered 
how the programme would seek to tackle the threat posed by 
increasing numbers of diesel vehicles in the City on air quality. 

d. The Health and Wellbeing of York’s residents.  

9. The LSTF1 bid, including specific information about the package of 
measures employed, can be found at Annex A to this report. 

10. A full monitoring and evaluation study for LSTF1 was deferred as a 
result of the award of LSTF2.  An interim progress report was, 
however, produced detailing outputs from LSTF1 in December 
2014.  A full copy of the report can be found at Annex B to this 
report. Highlights include: 

a. Business: 82 businesses engaged with through business 
breakfasts and workplace cycle challenges and personalised 
travel planning activities. Over 1,000 new or lapsed cyclists 
from workplaces took up the cycle challenge between 2012 and 
2014. 

b. Personalised Travel Planning (PTP): Over 20,000 
households were contacted by a dedicated team over the three 
years of this work stream across the ‘Northern Quadrant’ of 
York. Of these, over 7,000 participated in a measure (e.g. 
signing up to a challenge to try a new mode of transport) 
demonstrating their commitment to at least consider altering 
their travel habits. 

Page 41



 

Figure 2 – 2014 PTP participants 

  

c. Communications and journey planning: The ‘iTravel’ 
website became a single point of reference for all travel 
information in York over the period of LSTF1 with over 20,000 
unique visits to the site every month since July 2013. The 
website is complemented by a York specific journey planner 
which handled over 75,000 enquiries from January – October 
2014. 

d. Health and active leisure: 10,000 people participated in the 
York Sky Ride and the Festival of Cycling while over 2,500 
participated in walking events in each of the three years of the 
LSTF1 programme. 

e. Infrastructure improvements: Three major off-road cycle 
routes were implemented and 123 bike racks were installed in 
businesses and schools across York.  In addition, 
approximately 100 bus stops were upgraded in the Northern 
Quadrant and enhanced at-stop timetable provision was 
introduced across the York area. 

f. Low emission vehicles: At the end of the LSTF1 programme, 
26 hybrid-electric taxis and 8 fully electric buses were on the 
streets of York. Further, 16 electric vehicle charging points had 
been introduced in York’s hotels and commercial 
developments. 

Page 42



 

LSTF2 (2015-16) 

11. Built on a solid record of delivery during LSTF1, the Council 
successfully bid for a further tranche of local sustainable transport 
funding from Government in 2014. With a number of other local 
authorities, City of York Council was awarded £1m of revenue 
funding, largely to continue the key elements which had made 
LSTF1 such a success. In addition to the LSTF awarded by 
Government, a further £180k of revenue funding was identified from 
other bodies. 

12. A copy of York’s LSTF2 bid can be found at Annex C to this report. 
Highlights, however, include: 

a. A focus on the ‘A59 corridor’.  In addition to continuing the 
support given to businesses, residents and schools in the 
‘Northern Quadrant’ commenced in LSTF1, targeted 
interventions are being made on the Acomb, Holgate and 
Poppleton corridor.  The choice of corridor was, in part, in 
response to the increased transport opportunities presented by 
the opening of the Poppleton Bar Park & Ride site, but also the 
fact that three of the four wards in this area are in the top 10 for 
obesity levels across the City. 

b. Continued roll out of the low emissions taxi incentive scheme, 
Plugged-In Green Fleets scheme and City Car Club as well as 
working with local bus operators to encourage the take up of 
ultra low emission vehicles. 

c. An enhanced employer travel planning service, providing 
assistance in the delivery of travel plans, trials of electric 
vehicles and the introduction of 3 car club cars at businesses. 

d. Residential travel planning, targeting 7,000 households in the 
Holgate, Acomb and Poppleton corridor. 

e. Active leisure local walks and bike rides including the 
introduction of 48 walking and cycling events to be held in the 
target area and the delivery of rides and walks through a GP 
referral scheme. 

f. Continuing the success of the Cycling schemes delivered 
through ‘LSTF1’ and ‘Cycling City’ before that, including the 
delivery of the annual ‘Festival of Cycling’ (now in its sixth 
year). 

Page 43



 

g. Further development of the ‘Bike Belles’ programme, designed 
to address the relatively low uptake of cycling amongst women. 

h. Bus stop enhancements at a number of well used stops in the 
Holgate / Acomb / Poppleton area. 

13. It is premature to draw conclusions on the relative success of 
LSTF2.  As part of the bid, however, monitoring and evaluation of 
the project were included and this work will be undertaken over the 
coming months.  The resulting documentation is likely to be 
available for scrutiny in late Spring 2016. 

Future programming 

14. The Government has not made any announcements concerning 
further Local Sustainable Transport funding rounds.  While not 
impossible that the Government will bring forward a further round, 
the assumption must be that, in the absence of any information to 
the contrary, there will be no Central Government grant funding for 
this work beyond March 2016. Given the funding pressures currently 
faced by both local and central government, a proportion of the work 
currently being undertaken is therefore likely to cease at this point. 

15. The Council is working with its partners to identify specific elements 
of the LSTF programme which might be continued beyond April 
2016 as well as possible funding sources.  Some examples of 
successful interventions which could be prioritised for continued 
delivery are: 

a. ‘Bike Belles’ – York now has a national reputation for its work 
encouraging and enabling women to cycle. Our work is being 
replicated across the country. 

b. Workplace and residential personal travel planning – York 
is constantly changing and developing. Ongoing 
encouragement is required to ensure that 
employers/employees and residents are fully informed of the 
travel choices available to them.  

c. Low Emissions vehicles – Again, York has established a 
reputation nationally for its work in this area and the LSTF has 
helped to pump prime the take up of ultra low emission 
vehicles. Work is currently underway to prepare a bid for the 
Government’s UItra Low Emission City (Go Ultra Low) fund. 

Page 44



 

d. Communications – The LSTF has enabled the development of 
a wealth of travel choice information, both via the website and 
through the proactive and reactive conversation with residents, 
businesses and visitors via social media. The online journey 
planner also enables visitors to the city to plan their journey and 
then, as it is embedded in to the iTravel website, to find any 
other travel information they may need (e.g. bus timetables). 

e. At bus-stop timetables – The LSTF has enabled the 
successful production of composite bus timetables (displaying 
all eleven local bus operators’ routes in a combined information 
panel) and route diagrams. 

f. Festival of Cycling – Now in its sixth year, the festival of 
cycling is an opportunity for cycling for all ages and abilities. 
Moving forward, the event’s high profile offers opportunity for 
possible sponsorship. 

Consultation 

16. Informal consultation on the future of LSTF has been held with a 
number of internal and external parties involved in current delivery. 
These include the council’s Public Health team, sustainable travel 
charity, ‘Sustrans’ and the local community interest company ‘Get 
Cycling’.  Engagement with the city’s bus operators will be 
undertaken through the next Quality Bus Partnership meeting in late 
September. Dialogue will continue to identify any possible funding 
sources to assist with the delivery of LSTF work streams beyond 
March 2016. 

Options 

a. This report is provided for information only. 

Analysis 

17. This report has been produced in response to a request for an 
update on the iTravel programme tabled at the June meeting of this 
Committee.  Analysis of the success of the iTravel programme to 
date can be found at Annex B. Consideration of the future delivery 
of sustainable transport promotion can be found at paragraphs 14 - 
15 of this report. 

 

Page 45



 

Council Plan 

18. The iTravel York programme contributes to the following aspects 
of the Council Plan: 

a. Create jobs and grow the economy – Encouraging more people 
to use sustainable modes of transport should reduce 
congestion in the city which then makes the movement of other 
vehicles more efficient thus saving businesses money in lost 
time.  Workplace travel planning also potentially assists with 
creating a more healthy workforce through the adoption of 
active travel choices. 

b. Get York moving – making sustainable travel a more attractive 
and efficient choice should reduce residents’ reliance on private 
motorised transport, thus reducing congestion and helping to 
get the remaining traffic moving better 

c. Build strong communities – provision of better cycle links 
between parts of York and building awareness of travel choice 
options should help communities by reducing severance 
caused by major roads, rivers, railways and a lack of 
knowledge as to the travel options available. 

d. Protect vulnerable people – Pedestrians and cyclists are the 
most vulnerable types of road user.  Provision of cycle route 
infrastructure as well as cycle training and advanced training for 
young drivers should improve road safety 

e. Protect the environment – Increasing the take up of low 
emission vehicles across York and encouraging the use of 
other sustainable modes of transport will serve to enhance air 
quality standards. 

 

Implications 

• Financial  

There are no financial implications with regard to the outcomes 
of this report as it is provided for information only. 
 

• Legal  

There are no known Legal implications resulting from this report. 
 

Page 46



 

• Human Resources (HR)  

There are no known HR implications resulting from this report. 

• Equalities  

There are no known equalities implications resulting directly 
from this report. 

• Crime and Disorder, Information Technology (IT), Property 
& Other 

There are no known implications resulting directly from this 
report in any of the areas outlined above. 

Risk Management 

 
19. In compliance with the Council’s risk management policy there are 

no risks associated with the recommendations in this report. 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the 
report: 

Andrew Bradley 
Sustainable Transport 
Manager 
Ext. 1404 

Neil Ferris 
Interim Director City and Environment 
Services 

Report 
Approved 

� 
Date 3/9/15 

    
Wards Affected:   All � 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Annexes  

Annex A – LSTF1 bid 

Annex B – LSTF1 monitoring and evaluation 

Annex C – LSTF2 bid  

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



����������	
�������������������������

�������������

�
�

��������	
�����������	���
���������������
���������
�

��������������� !!���������	���������"������������
###$���$��"$�
%!�	%	�������%�
&������	������������!	�'����������������!	�!��������	���	���!	�'�������������������	��
������(�!���������$�
�

��������
��������
����
�
������
���	���
���
����
�������	��������������	
��������
�

���������	���	���� !���������������	�
������
)���	��*���+� ���������,�	���	���	���	��������������������	���!�	��

�
"���#���$��������������	�
������
��������	
�+� �����-��������	���!�	�����������
�

%��
��
�
����������������(�.(/�00�1/��
&����������		�������$��	
�2��	
$��"$�
�
'�	
��������		���	���!�	�����������3���+��������	�����+�.���$������	�4�������

� ���������	
+��5��67������� �
�

(�	�
�������		���������	��������###$��	
$��"$�
%�	���!�	�%� � �
�

�&%�� )�����'��*��
���	����
��������������$���������
�

�+,�'��*��
��������������������	���!�	����	
�8�������������	��
������������
������������	�����	�������������	��	������������������	��������������������
���������������������	��

�

�-,�.����������	����
�����
&�������������	
4�������	������������������	���!�	������������������	�����������������
!	��	����+��������4�������!	�!�����#��������"�	������!�����������	���!�	��!	�"�����$�
����!	��	�����#����	�������������������������!������������"�	������������������
�������4��!	��!�	���������	�#���!��������$�9��#��������"�	���������	�����!	��	��������
!�	�����+���������������������	�"���!����������������#������	���������	���	���	��
�����������������	�����!��!��4���	�"��������$�����!	���	�������#�����������
:�	���	��;���	���������������#��	�����	���	������������	��������	���	��	�!�����
��!������������	������������������$�

�

�/,�0��$����������������
��������������������������<��	���	��
=���	���4������	
$������	������
���������������)�"�	�5�����������
#��������>��
���	���?����������@�
�����������$������������	�+��#���������
��	�����	������������������������������
>��
���	����������������>��	�����
��������������4�����"�	��������	��
�������������������	�����������$�
 !!	�A��������B(+(((�!��!���?/(C����
��������������!�!�������@���"����������
�	�������0(C�����������4��'�����	��
���������	�$� ������!	�!�	��������

)��
�����

1������
�

ANNEX APage 49



����������	
�������������������������

�������������

���	��'��	������	�����������	����������	�����"���������	�������!�����������	�������#����
����	��������	���	���	������!	�������$��
�
��������������������������	���#��������������"�	�����	��������"���������������8
#�����!!	�����������!	������������������������	���!�	���!������������������������
������$�������!!	����#������A�������������������	��������A������������=������������+�
#��
��������!������	���!�	�����#�	
����������	�������	����������������	���	���	��
������������!	�"������	�����"�	�����������	���?������	���!�	�������?���@+� ����
��	
�>�'�	�������&��+�,�"���!�	�@��������	�#���������������������"�	��������������$�
�
��������������	
��������?���@������	�����	���������	����!�������!����	�����	��
��		�����������������	������	���"������������	�	��������	����$�9���"�	������	�������(0�
�=��	��������#�������		����!�!������������!!	�A���������((+(((�#���������	��������	����
����DC�����(�1$�����������	�����	��������		��������������������		����#��� 1/�
?�����8��	��	����@��	��
�	���������������������������������		����#��� ��D6�����	�
	����	�������������	��$�����������������8	����������!��������������	"������	��#������
������#�	���	�"������#�	
�!����	���"�	������!�!������������!!	�A��������D0(+((($��
�
��������������	��������#�	
�����	���"�	�����������0����	�������A����������=�����������
�"���������������������������	���!�	���!������������������������������"����������������
���������������������������	���������������	�����	���!	�!�	������������	��������$�����
��"���������������������!����	�����	��+��������		��������=����������������
���	���	���	��#������������������������	�!	�!�	���������	�!��������!�����������������
������������	��������������3E$������������#�	
�����������!	������"���"�	��������
��'�	������������	�����	���������		��������"�������$�������	
�F�)������	"���#���
���	���������������������!��������#�	������������������������������	�!����������	�
����������������������������"�������������	�$���	
������������������	�����������������
��		����������#����������������������������������������7�����	�������������$�����
����	�������������"�����������������	������	��������"��
�!������!	�!�	��������#�	
�
�	�!������	���������������	�������	
�	�����������#�����D0C����!����	������!	��!�	����
�����	��#��	���!$����������!	��	�����#���������������!	��	������������	�����������
������A����"��$�

�2,�����������������	��
��3�����4��
��5���� �
���������*��
���	�
�	������������ � � � �
7A!	��������������	������	��	�������� ��?!��������!������������� �����&�����@�
�	����������� � � � �
���$�����*��
���	�
E�����!���������� � � �
��	���!	�'�����������!	�!������ �
�6,���
������3�$����	
��7����G6$66����
�

�8,���
���9���������$����
���
����	��$�
��7����G/$1/0��
�

�:,����������������

7;� -<++�+-� -<+-�+/� -<+/�+2� -<+2�+6� ��
���

��4�����
������$�	��$�
�

2+=� :-+� :<6� 8>6� -?6/<�

%���
���������$�
	��$�
�

+>=� =2-� ><-� +>-� -?++6�

������
���
���
�����

=8<� +?<>=� :/6� /2-� /?+-8�

��
��� +?68>� -?:6+� -?-2-� +?-<=� :?::+�
�
�

ANNEX APage 50



����������	
�������������������������

�����D�������

�>,����������
���
����
*����"���������������"�	�����������	�����������#�	�����	
4�����+�	��������	������������
��!!�	�+��	�������������������	�!�	���	���������!���������!	�"��������	+�������	������������

������	�������	�#�	
�#�����"�����������	��!�������������"���!�	�$������	�������!!�	���	���
����!	���!����	�������������	�������������������!�	������!!�	������"�������������$�����
�����������#�������������������������������	�����������!!�	������������������$�

+,�����������%��
���
���	�
��4����� �� ��

�������)�"�����)����	���� GD.1+B((� ������#�	
�������!	�'��������������������
�	���!�	����������"����������������	�"���
����"���	$���

�������F�&�������������:�	���	��
;���	����?������������!��	���	��!�
���� "�"�@�

G�(+(((� �	�����������������������#����������������
�	���!�	�����������������"�����

�������F�&�������������:�	���	��
;���	����?������������!��	���	��!�
���� "�"�@�

G�(+(((� �������������	��	�"���!���������

�������F�&�������������:�	���	��
;���	����?������������!��	���	��!�
���� "�"�@�

GD+(((� ����	�����������������������#�������

 �����������	������������ G�0+(((� ������	��������������	�������

��	����	��!�?&���5!�	���	@� GD(+(((� &���	�����!	��������

3��"�	����������	
� G/(+(((� 7A�����������:�$�(�&���	��������3��"�	�����

��	
�7�"�	���������	��� G0+(((� �	�����������������%�"�������	���������
��"���!���������"�	������!	�'���$�

�����!	��	�������!!�	��?��	���	�
5	�����������@�

G�/+(((� ����	�����	��!�������������	���!�	���	�
�	�����������$�&������������������
�������������	���!�	�����!������

��"����������?H������	���	��!���$�$�
&�
��)����+�����	���$�*���������
*�����	�������������������������@�

G61+D((� H�������	������������������!!�	����	�
"�������	����!	�'������

%���
��� �� ��

���������!�����)����	���?���+�
��!�����)���!�����$@�

G�+(B0+(((� ,�	��������������	�����������	��!�����
!	�'�����

������%7��������9��	���	���	��
�	��	�����?H�	�����������%���������
��$@�

GD0+(((� D(C���������������	���������������	���
��	�����������

&��������9��	���	���	���	��	�����
?H�	�����&���������@�

G�((+(((� �0(C���������������	��������������
��#�	�������������

��	
����&�
�������� G�(+(((� >��������������	�������	
����&�
��
�������

���!��	���	��!� G0(+(((� ����������	�����#�!�����	������������
	����������:�#���������'������
����	����������������������������

���!��	���	��!� G0+(((� ,������������������	�����#�����	��������
>��
���	����

��������&����������	
� G0+(((� ��������
����)�����10��	�����������&��������
��	
�?���'������������������@�

3��"�	����������	
� G�(+(((� )�����������������	����������!�����

��	����	��!�?&���5!�	���	@� G0((+(((� �9��	��������������	����
�������

)������+���������?&���5!�	���	�@� G1+(((� ����	����������	��������!�	���	������������
�������������&�9����=��!�����

,�"���!�	�����	��������?>��
���	����
>����	!���@�

G0(+(((� ��������
����#����*��������*������
>��
���	����,	�"��

,�"���!�	�����	���������?-�������
,�"���!����@�

G0((+(((� -�����������%�����	��������������&�����
���	���	���	����!	�"�������

,�"���!�	�����	���������?����5�����
,�"���!����@�

G�((+(((� ������������	������������#���#��������F�
�������!���!	�"�������

,�"���!�	�����	���������?��������>��	@� GD(+(((� ���	�����)����*��
���%�������9�!	�"�������

�
�

ANNEX APage 51



����������	
�������������������������

�����/�������

-,� 
��������
����������3�������
���
���	�
,�"���!�	�����	���������?:������������
F�-�������,�"���!�����@�

G1(+(((� ��	�����%��	����	����������$�

)�#�����������������
���
������	��� G��+(((� >��������&�
���
������	���!	�'�����������
����H�������	��	����������	��?�������	�����@�

�	�"������������	�!���������	�
�	������������?7�"�	������� ����+�
��	
�-��!����+�3��"�	����������	
�����
�������������#�����#�	
���!!�	���
�������������	�"��@�

GBB+(((� �����������!	���������������������	�"����

�	������	������	�'��� G�(+(((� ����������#����	��������������#�	�����	��5��
����������?���
�����7�"�	�������
9��������+���	
�7�"�	���������	���	���!�����
��	
�3��"�	����@$�

����	���	
���	���	���!� G/1+/((� ����������� �����������������	�������	��!�
?!�	����	@$�

�

�=,�'��
���	��������	�
*����"��#�	
���#�����������	���������������������	������������#��������"���!�����������$�
����	������!�	���	���!��	��������	��������!	��	������������������������������������	
�
!	��	�������	��	����������!!�	��������"���!��������"�	�����!	�!�����!�
�������
�����	��$����������#����
���!�	���	����"������	��������	���!!�	����	�����!	�!�����
�����	�����������������������������
�
����	���
� ����
��	��
���	
������!	���!��������!�	���	������������!	�"������B(C������	"����#������"����
�!!	�A��������G0((
����9��5���!��������
�������=��!���������(��$� ��!�	���������:�	���	��
;���	�����!!	���������#��������	��
����#�!����������!����������!	�"����������"������
���	�����#�������	����������	�"��������!����������	���	���	����!	�"�����������	���
�������������������$�������#����������������������	���������������������������������:�	���	��
;���	������������������������	�����1$�<��	��4���"���������������������"����������	�����
"���������������������!�	���	���!�#���������������#��	��	��������������!	�"���#��������
!	��	���������	��$��
�
@��3�'������?�����������3��������������#��#�����=��!�����������������!�	���	��#����
�	���!����	����	�����&���������������9���	����������8�������?&�9��@$������#��������������
�"�	�.0C�����������������������	
�#��������"�	������&���:�����"��?���������������������
���#�	
���	������������!�	!����@+�)�����������������	�9���	�������?���������
!�������	������������	�����������������	�����������������!��	����+��������#������������A��
�������@������	�������������	��	����?!	�"�����������	�������������!	��	������������������
'�������@$�*��#����!	�"���������������	�������������	����������!��������
����������������
�	��������:�	���	��;���	������������������������	�$������������!�	���	��#������!!�	��
�����������	������!	�"����������	����	���������������������#�	�+�������	��������������
��������	�����������������������������	���������������	����	�������������������������	"���$�
�����!�	���	���!�#������!	�"���������������	�����������	��������������������	"���$�
�
&�	
�%��	
�����)�
!��3�������*���	��#�	
����#������������'�	�	����!�	���	�������!	�"��
����������������������������	�����!�����	���������������+���������������	���#��������������
�������������#�������������$������!��������������������7������������"��������������
!	�!�������	�����	����	���!!	�"�����	�G��6
������	���	������������!	�"���������������
�	�+�
����!�	
������������	���������	����������������������������
�������������������������4��
�������#�	
$�
�
'��4�
�����
����
%���
���#����"�	���		��		����
�����%#"��?�%���
���"�	���		�'��3?�#��3	�%��		�
�	���		�	?����������0����?��'��
�3����?��4�4�?�)�	
������������!����	������
������������#����!	�������������������	���!�	�������!������+�!�	���!�������#�	
!����
�����������������������������������������������!	�"��������������������	�����������
������	�$������#����!	����+�	�"��#�������!�������#�	
!�����	�"���!���������������������

ANNEX APage 52



����������	
�������������������������

�����0�������

�������������	���!�	�������������	��$�����������#����#�	
�#�����>& �������������>��	�
	������!�	
������!	�"����"���������#����������������������������������	��$����!��	��
�	��!��������������������	�����#�����	����$����������#����=�������	���A��!�����������
��!!�	�����������������	���"����	�����'�	���!����	��������������
�
���������������������������	���������	��������������� �����	����������������������������
���	��	�������������������	�����������������������������	�����������������������!"#$$$����
�����������	��������������%�����	�����	����	����	��	���������������������	���������	�����
����	����	�	��������	���$��
�

��	�
������	����������	��	�����	����������������������������	����������������		��������	�������
�����������������	���������������&��������������	���������������	�������	����������������������
��������	��������	�����������������$��'�����������	�������	��������	�	�������������	���	�����
�������������������	����������������������(��������������	�������������	����	�����������������
	�������������	����$�)������	��������������	�����������	��������������	��������������������	��
���������	���������������������������	�����������������������	���������	����	���	��������
������������������������	����*����������������	��	��	�����������	���������$����

�
#������
@��3�'��		��-��������!!�	��"�������������������	
+������#����!������������	������������	�
�������������������!!����������!	�������������������	���!�	���������������+�����#����
��!!�	�������������#����	�����������	�������	
����������!	����������!�����$�?���
�
��	�����"��#���������	����!�����������������	
4�����������������	��	���(��@$�
�
������	����������
������$���	�
���	��
@��3��
�A����B��4��	�
����	�"����������	�����������!	��������"��������#��������������
�����+�����������<��A����	��#����
����������4I����!������	�������"�������	����	����������
#��
�����������������	�$�
�
B��4��	�
�����@��3������3��"�	���������A!������+�#���������	���������������������	�����
�	�����0(((�����(�0$������#���������������#�	
�#������������!	�"������!	������
�������������	���!�	�����������������#�������	���������������������A������������	������(�
?G�(
%���	@�������������������������/�	�������������	����������!�����?G�(
@����������!��$�
�
������	�����%����$�	��*����"�������	����������!��#�������������������	��������
����!�������������$������#���������������������"��!�	���	�+�����"�	������������������
�"����+�	�"��#����������!��������������	��	�"���!����+�����#�	
����#����������!	�"��������
�	��������!!�	�����������	�����	��$�������	�����������������	�����������	���#����	���	���	��
�	���A!������	����������	�����������������"�����������"�����	���������������������
!	��	����$�
�
%�4���	����
����$���	�
���	��
&�
��)�����?���������������	������!���@��9��!�	���	���!�#�������������+�&�
��)�����
#�����!�	��������	��������!�����-�����������#����!	�"��������	������!�	
����#����
�����������������$������#��������"�	����������������#�	
���!����	������������!�	�������
����-����������������	������������������������	���������������!�	���	���!�#��������!����$��
�
'��3����
�"�3���	��������
�����	���������#��������������������������������	
����
������#����!	�"������	�����
�����������	�"������	������	��	��!�+�����������������+�
��	��	���+���	���+����!�+����������!����?����������������#@�#���!�����	�����������������$�
�
��	
���	������	�	����	���������������	��������	������#�������������+�����	�"�������	��#����
����������������	�������	����������	
����������#��������"�	�����&�
��9��!	�'���?���!����
����	����	�"������������������@$�*��#����#�	
�#�������������!�	����������������	�����10����
��A������������!	�"�������������!	�"��������!�	���������J���!��)�#��	��������������
,�	#�����	!����"���!����$�
�

ANNEX APage 53



����������	
�������������������������

�����1�������

��	
�
�
�������4������#�
���	
	�������
���������#��������"�	���	�������!�	����������	����
�������!	�'����#��������������+��������������	������������������#�����	���"�	�	�!	��������
������������$�
�
@��3�&�4�������
��������4����
����$������� ������!��������	��!�#����	�!	�����������
��������������	������!�	���	���!����	�+������	���!�	�+���"�	����������������������������
�	��!�$� ��!�	��������������!	��	����+�������	���#����!	������������#�7���������
��	������?�7�@�����#�	
�#������������������������������	
����������!	����������
��!�����+������������������	���������������������������������!���������������	���!�	��
�����	��$��
�
A�	������!�
����������
�����������	����!!�	��"�������	
4������#����#������!	�"������
���
���������������	����	���������	��������A��!��	����������������������?0/(������@�'����
���	���������	���������,�	#�����	!�$�9����������������#����#�	
����!�	���	���!�#��������
����������������������>��	����-�A���)��������	�����#�������!�	�������J���!��)�#��	���
-��������	��������$��
�
'�����	��
����
������@��3�'��
���	���C)��
��@��3	�����'������������#����#�	
����	���������	��������
!	������	�������������	�������������"����������5!�	�������!�
�+����	������	
��������
����#�������	��������#�	�������$���������#������!!�	��	�������������������"�������"�	������
!�	���	���!�#�����������	�������	"�����������.0 ��"�$�
�
).��)��
��@��3	���������@��3��������	�����������!!�	��"�������	
4������������"���������
�����������!�	���	����������������������	
�!	��	����$������#�������	�����������������������
!	�'�����������"�	�����������������	����������+�!�	�����	����������	������	��!��!������#��
�
���������������������"���!������������*��
8���#�������'��	����!�����	$�
�
)��
��@��3	�����%���
��%����������������������	����#������		������������'�	�����������
���������!!�	��"�����������������#�������	������G�+0((
%���	�������������	�
�����=��!�����
��	����������	�����������	"����#������	������������	
$�
�
D�����4��$�
�����4�	���� �����'�����E����*��
����	���	���!�!	�'��������!	�"����������
��	"������	�����	�!��!����������"�	�����	���!�	����	"����������"�������	�$���	���	���������
��	�����������+��H��?"������	����	"��@+�����������+������+���	������)����+���	
��	���+�
7�"�	�����������	"���+���	
�������	
����J����3��"�	��������������������+���	
����
+�
J���!��)�#��	����	���+���������	���	
���	���	���!$�?���������	������	�!�������������
���������!	�'��@$��
�
+�		������������������	���,������	���	�����������	����������������	��������������
������	������������������	$�
�

�&%�� )�"�F������������������$��

"+,��������������
�5
�
+,�&�������
�����	����������"�����������������������������������������������������
����������
����������������������������$���	
�����������������������	�#���������������3E�?�������
5�����
���	��(�(@��������������	���!����������"������!�	��������	
���	������-����	�
��������3E+�#����66C����������������������"��!�!����������������!������?5��������
:�����������������@$�
�
���������,�"���!������	���#�	
�?�,�@��"������������!!�	����������	������+(((�'����
����!	�"����060�������!�	����	���������	��$�*�������������	����������	�����������������
��'�	������������	�#���#�����������"�����	�����	���"���!���������	�#������������$�����
��	�������������������������,����������A�������������������	���!�	����"������������������
!	�!�������"�������	�#�������������"���#����������������������	������������������������+�
�5������:5�����������$�9����������!��������������������������������	�������0(C��!����

ANNEX APage 54



����������	
�������������������������

�����6�������

�(�1��������	����((C�����(�1��	������((B������������	��#��������������������		�����!����
���#�����	�"��������$��
�
�������4��	����������������������!�	�������������������	����	�������������	"������	����	�����
��		���������	�������A!���������������������	�#��"�	�������A���(����	�$����	����������
�����������������������	
4����������������������	����������C����������!��������#����6�
��������"�����	�������	��	����������G//D�$� ������������������������	���!�����	���������	������
�������	�+��������"�����	����
�������	�	����	�������!�	��"���������	8����������
��"�	�������#���������	�����#��
���������������������	�����	����������������������
�����	�����	�$��
�
�������������������	����������������������	������#���������	���������������"�����$�
����	�"�	�+�	���#���+���	����?����������@+�����#��������������	����	���������������	�����
��		��	�+������	��������"�������������������������	����
����������������	���	������
�!��������	���!	�"�����$������	���!�	�����#�	
����"�	���������	����������#�������������
��������	������!���������	�����������	��$����������������������	���"�������	��������	�!��
?1(810C@��������������������������	������!�	
�����������	��������������?$�$��!!	�A$�0(C�
���#��������D0C�����������	�@$��
�
 ������������!	�!�	�������������	�#����A!�������������������#�����������	�������������������
����8�����:�	���	��;���	���$�����������������������"���!�������������������	����	���
�
>��
���	����� ���A���������A���������"���!�����#��������!�����������	�����	���	�1((�
�#�������������1�-���	��������������"���!����$�9��������������	��������		����!	�!�������	���
�����������������������"���!������������>��
���	�����	��$� ������	!����������!������	�
������	�������	������������������	�������������	���!�	�����	���	���	�$�
�
-�������� ���A��������������	����"���!�������������������000��#�������+��������
?��+(1���@����!������	�����	����$� ���#��	������"�	�����	�"�	������#����������������	�
���������������������������#��
�������#�	
����������	�����	������������!�	���$�9������
��������!���������������#������!��������A!�����#���������������!�	���$���
�
:������������� �	�����������?D�0��#�������@�������A���������"���!�����	�����	��������	��	�
����	���������������������	���	���!!	������������������	�$�
�
�����(�(�<��	
�:�#������&������������#�	������7������H������?�(�(@4�	�!�	�������������
�	���!�	�������"������
���	�������!�������������������������������+�����#�����������	�#����
G/$0�������������(D0�?GD$D6�������(�(@$���������������	���!�	���!�����+�<�	���4��		���	�������
�������+������������	�������	���#��������������!	���	����������+����������	����
��"�	�����������������!	�"��������
����	
�������	���"�����������"������+������	����������
���������������!��!��$�
�
-,�%��$�	
����
��"���������!�������	�������������������	��������������#������#�	
�������!����������
�	�#������"��������"��������������������������������$� ��C���	���������	��������#�����
����������������������186C���	������������������������$�������������������������A�������
�����������	�����������!!�	�����������	��	�#��$���
����������������������!	������#���
������������!	��	����	���������	��������������������������	��������	���������������������$�
<)���������������	
K���	���!�	������	����������	������������������"������������������	��
���
!	��	��������	�����������������������4�L�����	�E�������	����������	
�7��������	���	���!$�
�
�����,����������������	��������������������"�	�.+(((�����������(�1+�!�������������	�������
�����		������"���������#������������������������!�����((C$�����:�	���	��;���	����
��������������������������!�	��������	
4��	�������#�	
$� ��		����D(8�������'��	�������
���� ��D6�����	�	����	�����������:�	���	��;���	�������!	�'����������
���!����������	����
�(�1�#�����������������������	��$�9���������������!���������������	���#�	�������������"����
���������	
4���	�#�����������#��������������	�������	�������"�������
�����	������	�����$�

ANNEX APage 55



����������	
�������������������������

�����B�������

���������������������������	�#��+��������������������������+��������	����������������������
����#��������������	�!�!�������$�
�
/,�&��		���	����������	���
�
7��������������	���������������!�	����������	���"������������!�	�����	���������	���	
$�
�����������������!	�'����������	�����������"�	���������	�=������������������	�������
	�"�	����������	����������������	����	�����������#����������	�������"������	������������
��������
���!��	���	�=������$�
�
7����������	����	���!�	����������	��"�	��/C������	
4���������	�������������$�9�	������
�����	������������"�������!��������	��������������	�=������������	�����	�������������	
4��
��	����������������������������(C�����(�($� �	�;�������>���������� 	����? ;> @���"��
���������	����	�������������	�	����	�����������������	������	������������������$� ���	���
!�	��������������������������"�	����:5�������	�����������������	����������	�������"�	�
������������	����	�$�9�����������
���������	���������������������$�)��������������������	�"���
��������	���������������������#��
���+�����������!������	���!�	���	����!�	��������
������������������������	
$�-�#�"�	+������������	���������#������������"�	���	
4���	����
��	������	�����"�	���!������#�������������������	�=���������'���"��$���	
�������"���!���
������������7��#��������������
��������������	�������"����������������!	�"������	���	�
��	������������������$���
�
2,�.���
������!������$�
5��������������	
�	����������	��������������������������+������	��������������������"�	���$�
9��,�����	��((.+�������0C����������������	
�����"�������	������������"�������A�	���$�
��	���!������	�������	������������#�	�����8��������	��!�+�������������"�	�00����	������
������#������������������������������"�����#�	$�7����������������!����������!��������
��	������������������	���!�	���������+������!!�	����������+����������������������!	�"���
������+�������"�������!�	�������	��	�����������8���������!	�"�����$������(�(�9���������
,�!	�"�������������������������#�	���"�����!�	����!����	�����������������������(C������
��!	�"�������������+���������#�����������(C��������!	�"��$��	���!�	�+������	�������������
��!�	���������������������#����#�	
��������	+����	����	��!����������������A�����������������
�������������������������	�"�������!	�����������������������������������$�
�

"-,�&4�������
5#����������������������������������	���!�	�������	�����
����"�	�����������(����	����	
�
	�����������	�������
����	�����"��������������	�����	�!�����������������������#����
��!�	����������	��	���������	
���	����������	���������������	�$������������!	������"��
'��	�������#�	
�������		�������"�������+���
����	��������((��������+�����������������	
�
������!�	�����	��������!	�!�	��������!��!���#�������?��C@�����#��
�?�0C@����#�	
�#����
��!�	������������	
���	������-����	�����*������	
���	����"����#�����	������������DC�
��	�������������C���	�#��
���$���	�����������������!���������	��������������+�����������
�����	
���������������#�	����6C���!�	�������(C$���	��	�!���"����?�	�"�	�F�!�������	@����0DC�
�	��������#�	����������	��������?1DC@��������������?1�C@��"�	���$��
�
������������	�����������������������������	
�!	��	����������������	����"����	������
����!!	�A���������0C$�>��������������	���	���	�������	�����"��'�����������!������
�������������������������������������	�������"���������������	�!	��������������������������	��$�
�
��	���	��������������������		���������������	�������	�"���!����	������!�	�����	��	�����������
���$������	���#����������������!	�!�	���������	��#��	�������	��	�!����������5D��!�������
�	����������:�	���	��;���	����������������������������!�!������������-�A��+�*�������������
7�	�#�
�?�!!	�A$��0+(((�!��!��@$��������D��������������	�"�����������0�C��������
	��!���������	���������	�����������	��	���	��	�"���������������	�������	
$�������#�����	���
��	��	���������(��?�������	�@�����6C�#��������	����������������"�	�������	�����D(8/(C$��

ANNEX APage 56



����������	
�������������������������

�����.�������

��
)� � ���
� ��	 �
 ��� �	
���
 �� ���� ���

(C

0C

�(C

�0C

�(C

�0C

���� �*��� � ��� � �� �>��	 >��
 �� �	�� �  ���:� 	 �� � 	�

M�
� �M�$ 0� 
� �$0M0
� 0M�(
� �(M�0
 � �0M�0 
� �0M0(
� NO0(
�

�
�
�����	��������������#����������#�����	��	�!�!	�!�	�������	�'��	�������#�	
�!�	!������������
�((��������#��������������	��?D0C@$�����!	�!�	���������	��	�!�������	
�	����������������
��'�	����������!�	
�����������	��������	
�#������������	�����!!	�A��������10C$���	"����
����	��
�������(�(������������������������������	��	�!���������:�	���	��;���	����#�	�����	�$�
5"�	�00C���������	�!������	�#������������	���������������	������������0
����!�	������
�!!	�A���������0C�����	���������������$�����!�����������	�	�������������	�����������	���	��
���������	��������:�	���	��;���	��������!!	�!	����������	����	�����	�����$�
�
>�����������	������#������������������"�����������������������������'��	�����������	���������
:�	���	��;���	��������������$�������	���	������	�	����	���������"�	��������������
�		����#������������	�����	�	��������������"�	�D(+(((�"�������!�	�����?�����	������
�������������������������	�	����	���@$����	���	�����	�������������������(�������������#����
�����	������	���������"���������������������#�'��	����������?�"�	�����!������	������#�
�(�!�����!��
������@$��������"����������������	������	�"����	�������������	����"�������
���������	�	�������	�����������	�����$�
�
������������-�#�	���#�	����������:�	���	��;���	�����	�������������!	�"��������	
����!�	�����
������#�	���!�	�5��!��� 	���$��������	�����������"��������#�����	��#��	���!�����������+�
���	���	������������������������	���!�	���	�����������������!	�"������������!�������+�
��	"�����������������$�
�
*���������������	����!��!���
������������	���������'�	��������	
����������������!!	�A��������
0(C��"�	�����������(����	�����	���	�����������������!�!��������#����	���"�	�	�!	�������$�9��
!�	�����	����	����������!	�!�	�������������	����������!��!�����������#�����6�8��0��������
������������	���#��	������((.������#����0C�����������������������.C����E�9����������+�
��!�	�������(�(���"�	����������	��������������������	��!�����6C����������������������
��C�E�94�$��
�
*����"������������������������������������I�#�����"�	�.0C�������������"�����	�"���
!����$�-�#�"�	������!�	�����������!�	��"��#��
�����	���������������	���$�>����!�	�����
�	�!�����	�����	�������������������	�#������#�	
+�����1(C����������!�	�������"����'��	����
������	��	������	
����0��������	�����+�#�����0C���"������'��	�������������������������?����
������������	������)�!�	�@$��
�
����!	�"��������	�����<����	����	
4�	�!�	��������������	���!�	�����������
�������������������
����������������	
$�9�!	�"���������������A�����������#������#�	
��	��"������������
��"���!����������'�	������������	
$�
�
���������#����
����	���!�	���������#�	���������������	��������D���������������

ANNEX APage 57



����������	
�������������������������

������(�������

P��*��
����L����������������	�����������!��	�	���������������	�	����	���$���#�������
�"���������������!��������	����������!	����������������$�
P���������L����
����������"���+�!�	�����	����������:�	���	��;���	�������������������
���
	��������������������	�$�&�		��	����������+��������������	�������"���+�!��	���������������
��
����!�	
���$�
P���������	���!�	��L�!��	�	����������+������'��	���������+���
�����������������������	���������	�
!��������'��	����+��������	��$�
�
5�	�!	�!����������!	��	�����������������������������	����������������$�����
!	��	�������!����������	������	8��	���	���!�	����	������#����������
�������!	�"����
�������������	
�F�)�����!������������	�!�����	����	�!	�!�	��������'��	����������������
��	
�������!	�"����������������	���	��������������������	8	����	�����������	������	�����
�	��������������"�	��"���	������������	�������������������	�$�
�

"/,� *��
�4�	�
������	������������������#����������	
������	���!�	����	����������������D����������
��"���!�������	����������#����0����������
�
'��4����$�1����
����
����
�4�	���������	�������������	���	�!������������	��
������
������������������
�����4��$��
��
�$������3	���������������������#��������
���	���������������
��!���������	�������������		����������	
�
&������$��$�"���4�������%���$�������A�����������������#��
���+�����������!�����
�	���!�	���!������
���3���$�����	���
�&��		���	����	���������	����������!������������	�������������������
������"�	�������
&�������$�'������
���
	������!����������������������!����������	������	���������
����	��������������"���$�
�
���������������!!�	����������D���'���"����������������������	����������"���	���
�������	��������������	��	�"������������!�������������+����������������	�
����������������
#������!	�"��������	���������	���	���	����!	�"�������������	�����!�������!���������
���#�	
$������!�
������������	���?���� ���A�����F��@�!	�!���������������"�	����������
�����!	��	�����#������!!�	������������	������������$�9���	��	����	������	����+�#�������
���!	�"����	������������	����"��+�#�����	������	�����+�����+���������	����������	���	�����
��"�	������$�����������!!�	������������#����!	��	������!	�!���������������D��
-�.��������/����	�������������	�������	���������	��	����	�	����������������������������
���������	�$�
-�'������������������������������������	�������	����$�
-�.��������	�������	��������������	��������������	��������,���	��	������	������	��
������	�	���������&���	�����������	�����������������������������	���$�
-�0����	�����	�����������	�����������������	�����$�
-�.��������	�������	�������������������������	��	�����������	��������	�������$�
-�.������������	����	��������������$��
�

�&%�� )�%�F��������3�$�����

%+,�'��3�$����	����
����
5�	�!�
������������	����������������	�"�������"���	���������	�������������������������
�	�"����������
����	���!�	�������������!	���������������	
$�9���������������������������
�����	����	�������	�#�������	��A!�	�����!	��	��������������������	���!�	���!�������"�	�
����������(����	����������"�	�������������������������������	
�!	��	�����������((B$�*��

��#���������	�����!�
������������������	�������	�����
�����	���������	���������	
�?����
 ���A���F�����	����������������������	�����������	�����	�!������������@$��
�
*��������������	�����	��!��!���������������������������������������	���"�������+�
��!���������	����	��	�'��	����+���������	����!��!��������������#�������	�"��$�5�	�

ANNEX APage 58



����������	
�������������������������

��������������

��	�������!!	����#����������"���������������	���������	������������������	���������
!	����������������	�����������������	���!�	�������!��!��4����������"��$�
�
��	��������������!	��	�������	���������������:�	���	��;���	����#�����	���"��
!�	�����������	�"���!�������+���������������*��
89���������'��	����!�����	+�������������	��
#��
����������������#������������'��	����!�����	�����������������������#�������������������
����#�����	����	��������#����)�#��������������3��"�	����+�����#����
��������	����	�����10+�
����	�����������������	����������
�����������������������	�������	������������������	�$�������
�������������������	���#������!	�"������=�����������	���!�	���"�������+���
��������������
��#�	����������������	�"�����	�����	���"�$�
�
*���	��!	�!��������������	�����!�
������������	����������"����!	���	��������������
:�	���	��;���	����#��	��������	������������������������!����������		���������������
��������!�����������	�����	���	�#��$�����#��������"���	��������������	����	���������������
�����!���������	����D�����!	�!�������'�	��������������	���	���	��#�	
�$�&����
<	�"����4�����"���	��������������	�������<�!����4����	���	���	�������	���#�������
!	��	�������������	$�����������������������1������!�
�����?0�&���"���	��������+���
9��	���	���	�@�����������	���!	��	���������"�	�����������������������������
������������������!	�'��$�
�
"���4�������%���$�����4������
+���"�	���		���$�$����
�
*��#����#�	
�#����������������	���������������!	�������������������	�"���������������	�
��!���������������	
�����+��"���������!����������$������#��������	������	��������	�����
!��!������	�������	�����	��	�"�������"���	�#������!!�	���	�������	���!����	�$�
�
>����	�����������8�
P��)��������������������	���!�	�����������+���������������#�	
������������������	����
!��!������������	�����������!�������+�����#�������������A!�	��������������������������$�
P���!����	��������<&�����������������	�"���9�������"�4��#�	����������	����&�������� #�	��+����
����	������!����������������������#�����	�����������$�
P��3���	��
��#�	
!�����	�"���!�������+�#�������
����������"�	�����������������$������#���������
���!�������������������	��������#��	�"���!�����������������������+�����	���!�����������
����#���	��������������#������������#�	
����#�����������������������	������	�����>��
��
�	����������������>��	$���
P��,���"�	������������������	���!�	�����	���	���	���������������!�	
���������	8���	����
��������������������������������$�
P���	����������������7���������������	������������������������!���������!	�"��������	��
�5��	��������!������$�
�
-���&����
��������%�����$�	�
5�	�!�
����#�������	!�	�����������	������������������"������������!�����������������
P����	�����������	�"������������?���@����	������������	�����������:�	���	��;���	���$������
#����������������"����������	�������	�"�����"���	�+�!	�"������	���������#��������	�����������
����������"������������	"��#������=���������
���������������	�"��������	�������	��
���	���"�$�����!	�!�������������#������������!!	�A���������1+(((���������������!�	���!����
	�!	���������0(C����������	�����	��$�
P����	�����������	�"����	�������L�������������������	�����������!�����	����	�����������
�	���������	������������������!��!��$��
P���	������������������	����#������������	���	
���	���	���!$��
P��)������������#�	������������������"������������������	�������	�������	���������!	�"������
����������	�"�������"���	���������������������������	�"��������$��
P���	����������������7����	���	
��������������	���?�����������	���	���	�����!������
����"�	�����	���������	�!	��	�����@����	������	��������������������!	�"����	�=������$�
*��#����#�	
����!�	���	���!�#������	
�7�"�	���������	��+������!�	���	�+���A���	�"�	�+�
������	�+�����������+��������������������������!	����������	����������������!�����	��
���������������'��	������	����������������������������#�	�����������	���!�	�+�#��	��
!�������$�

ANNEX APage 59



����������	
�������������������������

��������������

P��9�!	�"����������������������������	
������������#�������L���������������A!����������
�������������8���!8���!���	���	
���	������������	�����������������������	���!�	�$����������
#��������������	��!������	�����������#�������������������������������	������$��
P��*�����������������������������*��
��$���#���������	���	
��������	���������������
!��!����������	��
����	��'��	������������+�!	�"��������������������	�����	������"����������
!��������	�'��	���+����������������A�������������������	"�������������������'��	����
!�����	$�
�
/���'���������	���
����
��
�4�	�
 ���	����+�����	���������������=����������!�������	�����	��������	���#���������������������
	���������!������	���!�	�����	�������	
$�*��#�������������������������������!	�"�������������
�������������������������������	���������������!	�"������������	���������!�������	�
����	������$�*���������������������"�	����������#���������	����8�
P���	�������������������	���"��������!!����	����	���������������	�������!������	����
������	�"�������	������+�����������!��!������!��������	�'��	��������	����������"��������	�
#�	
�
P������	�	����������������������!	��������
P��>�	
���������������	"�����������:�	���	��;���	�������������	�������(�����1$�
P��7A�����������)������(���	������������3��"�	����������	
�?�������������!!�	�����������
3��"�	����@�
P��*�	
�#���������!�	���	���������	�����!��
��������	�����������	���#����������
�����������$�
P�����	����
���������������	�����	"����#����#�������������	�������	����	��������������
�������������	�����	����������������	�������
�����	�����������$�
P��<9�!	�"����������"������5���	����!��4�������#������"������	�	��������������	
����������	���
��	"��������!	�"�������"��������
����#��������	���������������	�������������+��$�$�����
���!����$���������#���������������������������������"�	����������	�!�	���	�����������	����
�������$��
�
2������������$�$����
�
 �
���!�	�������	�!	�!������������������#�������������	�����������������������	����������
!��!�������	�"��������������+���	��A��!�����	��������������#���������	�����
P������	����<&�
��9�4������	��L���<&�
��9�4������	���	��������������#�����!�����������+�
#�	
����#�����������������		�������������	����������	���������������������������������
����#��$�
P��<*��
����#����*���4�L������!�
����������"����	�!	���	����������������	��������	�������
����	�!�	�����������"�������	����������������#��
+������	��������������$��
P��H�	�����	������������������"�����
P�������	��	���������	����	�0�����	�����������#��
P�� �������������������������"��������������������������������	����<&��������������&�
�4�
!�������������"�$��
��
6���.���
���������	�������*��
	�
*��#��������	��
���������	���������	���!	����������������������������������"���	�"�����	�
�����	���	�!�����#������������������������������	��$�������������	���#���������������#����
������	
�J����D(���!��������!	�������"�	����������������������D(�������������A�	����!�	�
���$����	��A��!����8�
P��������������	��	�������������#��
�$��
P���	�����������#��
��������������!�������	����	���������#�����"����������!	��	�������
����!�������#��
�������������$��
P��,�"���!���������!	�����������!�����	���������#�����!!����
�
�����	
���
���������4����
	��%���
����
8��������	
���
���������4����
	�
*��!	�!������	����������!	�"��������������#��
���+�����������!������	���!�	��
���	���	���	�+���������������!�����������<�����	4������	���������������"�$������#����	������
��������	������	���������������!�������������������	�"����������������:�	���	��;���	��������
�������	�$�5�	�������������	���	���	����!	�"���������������

ANNEX APage 60



����������	
�������������������������

������D�������

�����	�	�
P�����!������������������������	�������	������������������#�����	���!����	�����������������	�
��������������	�����+��	������������!	��	��������)�����������������	�9���	������������A�+�
#�������������!���������������!�$�
P��)�����������������	�9���	����������!��������
����������!������������	������:�	���	��
;���	����?>��������(�:�$@�
P��3!�	���������	����	�����
����	��������������������:�	���	��;���	������������������!	��	����
?>�������/�:�$@�
P��9������������������8������
������������������	
�F�)����������
P��9��	�����������&��8��55����������������'��	���������	�������������	����������������
���	��������9������������	�����������!	��	����
P��9�!	�"��������������������	�������������!��������	�����1������������>��	$��
����!��3��$��
P��9�!	�"�������������
��#������������������>��	�����>��
���	�����	�������	��������������
��	����	���	��	�!�$�
P���	�"��������������!	�"���	�������!������������������	���������	�����5���	�)����)����
��
����������������A�������)�"�	�������	������������������"�����������7�	�#�
�����
��	�������#��������������	�����	�������������$�
P��9�!	�"�����������������	���������������$�$�#������������!����+���!	�"����	����������
��������	�	����	�������������	�����������������	�������	�����������������������	�$�
���������	
	�
P�� ���#�����	��������#����)�#��������������3��"�	�����"�����������>��	�����>��
���	����
���������������������A�������	���������!	�"��������
��������������
����#����-�A���)����
����*���������)������������������5���	�)����)���$�
P���	����������
��	�������	����	�����10������������&����������	
�
P��9�!	�"�����������������	������	������
P������������	���	���	����!	�"��������$�$��!�	��������������	�����
�����������	�����11�
����
���	������	����������������	�������	���	��=���	���+�	��	�������������������������+�
��!	�"����������+�������
�����	����$�

�

%-,�'��3�$����	
	���������������������������#���	����	��
��#����	�!�
������������+�
�������	���������#���	�����
�����	���,��$�� �������������	��
��#�����!�
�����������	�
�������	��������������� ���A��$�
�

������7���������� G
� �(��%��� �(��%�D� �(�D%�/� �(�/%�0� ������

�� )�"����� /1� ��B� ��B� ��B� /(��

�� ��!����� �0� D(� D(� D(� �(0�

&��������7���������� G
� �(��%��� �(��%�D� �(�D%�/� �(�/%�0� ������

�� )�"����� 1B� B�� B�� 6B� D(6�

�� ��!����� �B� D�� D�� D�� ��/�

7���������������!������ G
� �(��%��� �(��%�D� �(�D%�/� �(�/%�0� ������

�� )�"����� �B/� D1(� D1(� D/D� �+�/1�

�� ��!����� �� �� �� �� ��

-���������������	��
�	�'����

G
� �(��%��� �(��%�D� �(�D%�/� �(�/%�0� ������

�� )�"����� D�� D�� �/� �/� ����

�� ��!����� �� �� �� �� ��

�������	���!�	��9�������"��� G
� �(��%��� �(��%�D� �(�D%�/� �(�/%�0� ������

�� )�"����� D(� /(� D�� D�� �DD�

�� ��!����� ��0� �((� ��0� �0� /00�

�	��	�����>����������
F�,���"�	��8�����	���

G
� �(��%��� �(��%�D� �(�D%�/� �(�/%�0� ������

�� )�"����� 1(� .(� .(� .(� DD(�

�� ��!����� �� �� �� �� ��

9��	���	���	�� G
� �(��%��� �(��%�D� �(�D%�/� �(�/%�0� ������

�� )�"����� �� �� �� �� ��

�� ��!����� /�� 1B(� 1�0� .0� �+//��

0��)9�� ���� 73� 8<>� +?88/� +?6<:� >8:� 2?822�

�

ANNEX APage 61



����������	
�������������������������

������/�������

%/,���
�����������	
��
�$�����
�
5�	�!	�!�����!�
������������	���#����!	��������������������������������	�"��+�?���������
#��
���+������+�!������	���!�	�+��	����	����������!������"����������������@$�*��#����
����"�	���	�������������	�����"���	��������������	���?����������������I����������
����������I����������������!�����I�����������������	�+�����!������	���!�	�@+�
��!���������������	���	���	����!	�"������$�����!	���	���������������������	���#�������
�������:�	���	��;���	���������������#��	�����	���	�������	������	��������	���	��	�!�+���	���
��!������������������������������	�#���!��������$��
�
��	�������	��������������	�����������������
������������4������	��������#�	
�#�������!	�"�����
���!�	��������������!	��	����������������������������	���������!�������	���������	��	�
!�!����������������	��$�*���������������!	�"�������������������������������!��������
��	�������������!	��	�����#���������������$��
�
����������������������������	������?���@+��,�������������D�!	�"����������	������
��	��������	��������$�����+������������	����������7���	!	������	���	���!�+������������	��
�������	
�������!	��!�	��������	����������"���������4������������������������������
��"�	����������8�	����������$����	
4������������������#�����������+��,���������D+�����������
��!	�"���������������	���!�	����������������������������+�	������	���!�	����������������
��#�	�������������"���$��
�
5������������	�������������	
4����������������� ����������������	�������������������
�	���!�	��������+�����	���������	��	+��������������	�"��������+���!!�	���������
��!	������"�+���#���������+��	���!�	�����#�	
+���"���!���������������7�+�����	�����	��
��	
�����������������������������#�������������$���	
�������������	���������7�	�!����
��"���������>���	�+����������������	������5�������������(C�����(�($��
�
��	
4�����������#����!	���������"���	���!�	������������������������+���!!�	���������"����������
��
����������	������+����	�����������������"�	�����4���������	�!�����������$�&��
����	���������"���������������	�"���#��#������������	���������	��������������$�*��#����
#�	
��������"����#���������������������������	��������������!!�	�������������#���������
!	��	��������	�����	���!������$� �����������"��+����������#������!!�	������< ��"����	
4�
!	�'��+������	��������#�	�����������������������������������"�������	�+������!!�	���������
�"������������#�������!����������<J����D(4���	����?D(�������������A�	���������@$�
�
 ��7=���������9�!��� ����������?79 @�������	�����������		����������	�!	�!�������������
���D+����#������������������������������$� ����������	
4��������������������:�	���	��
;���	���+�#��#�����������!�����������"���	������������	����	���������������
��!�������������!!�	�����	���	���	����!	�"����������������	���������	�!	��	�����+���	�
�A��!����������D+� ������	
�������#���"���!�����$�9����	�����������������#��#����
����	��
�������������79 ������������!	��	�����!	��	������!�����������$�
�
��������������#�	
����#������		�������������	�����������"���!�������������	����#���	�
�	���!�	�����������������	��$�9��������������	�����������������#��������������'������
�	�����������$�9������������������	������������������	����������!!�	����#����#�����������
�����A!�	�������"���!����������������������������������	�����#�������������
��#���������
��	
$����������#�����������������#����#����!	�"��������������������������������	
����������
�	���������������!!�	�������������������
8�����	����<������������ �������7�������4��	������������������������,�"����������
�������
8�>����������������	�"��������������������&�
���������	���������������$�
8�����&�
����������������

�

%2,�%������
��	�����
�
�����"���!��������D+��A�����"��������������#����		������������((.%�(�����������
=����������	�������"�	������������?B.+(((@+����	����
������	�#�	
���!�+������8�������	"��+�
�	���������<���	�����4���#������	+������A�����������	������������$� �#����	��������

ANNEX APage 62



����������	
�������������������������

������0�������

���
������	��#�	���������������"�����	
�7=���������9�!��� �������������	+�*�������*�����
?�����������	��������	���	���!@+���	
�;�������&�����	���	���!+�9�����"����	
���	��+���	
�
7�"�	���������	���	���!+�����������	��!����	�������!��!�������������	
�9���!�������
��"����:��#�	
$��
5��������	������D�=����������	�����������������������#�����
P����
�����������������������	���������������������������!�	������	���!�	����������������
��	
������?B�C@$��
P��9�!	�"����!������	���!�	��#��������������!�	��������������������������������D�
=����������	��?6DC@$��
P����!!�	������������������	�����	����������������������	���!�	����������������!�	����������
��	��	���!�	�������	
�?6�C@$��
P������	����������������	�������+����	���������������#���	�������4���������������!�	�����
�	���!�	�������?1BC@$�
P��9�������!�	������	�"�	����!�	��������	������	���!�	�4����������������	�������A��������
����	��	��������������������
����������������?1�C@$��
�
)��������������������������	
4��<���������#�4�	������!�	
���������!!�������	���?��������>��	�
����>��
���	�����������:�	���	��;���	�����	��������	����@����	����������������������
����������������"��!��	��������	����8�	����	�$��
�
*���������!�����������������������"��������1���J����	���(���#����#�����������������
	�����������
������	��������������������	�+�&�
��)�����?������������9���	�������!���@+�
�������������������+������������	��	��!�������	
�)�����	�$��������������������������	
�
#�	���������������"���������������!	�!�����$��������
������	�������������������	�����������
#��
�����������������������	���!�	�������	
+���������������������������#�����	��!	��	������
��	�����������	�"���!����������	����������������������+����+�	�����������������	������+�
���	����
��������	������+�#��
����	�������!�+�������"�����	��	�"������������������+�����
�����	�����	�����������������������	����	����$�5�	�����	�������������!	��	�����$�
�
*����"�����������#�����������	����	���"�����	��������������!�	����������	�#��������	�
�A!�	����+�����	�������������#�	
����!�	���	���!$���������������
�
���������0�����L�7�!�������.((������+�������	������������������	������#��
��������
�����������!������$�5"�	��(C��������	���!��������������#�	
$�
�$��%�������@��3�L� ���	��������	�����������Q������������!	������������#����������������
����	�!��!��������	
R+��
%�%�L�����3E4��:���������������5	�������������!!�	����	
4��������������
������	�����
!�	���	+��������	����!�	��������������"����7�	�!������������"���$�
).��)��
��@��3	���������@��38�	���������������!!�	�������	��������	���!�	�����!	��������
�����������#�������������	�����������������=��������$�
G�	�
�@��3�L���	
4�����	����������!	��������������������	�"����������#��������	
+����
��������������������"������"�����	�+���������������������4��������$�
��	
���	�L���!!�	�����������������"��������������&�
��9��!	�'��+���"���!��������
�����������������=��������	���#���������	������	���	�����$�
������@��3�'��
���	���C�)��
��@��3	�����'������L���!!�	���#�	
����	���������	����
��������	�����	��!����������"���	������	�	�����
%���
���#����"�	���		��		����
����8���!!�	��������	���#�	
����#��������������+��$�$�
�	�"���!�������+���!	�"������������+�!	�������������"����$�
@��3�&�4�������
���������8���!!�	��������	����������������	��������������������
	�������������!���������������������������������	�"��$�
@��3�%�����%�����$��L�!	�����������������������������������!!�	�������	����"������	�
�������?��#������A������@$�
�
�����������������������	�"������������������#������	�����������
������	�����������
�	�����������$����	���������8��"�����!!�	����	�����������	�������������"���������������	�����
��!!�	�+�?�������������!!�	������"�����@�������������	���������?���� B@$� ���!��������
!�	�����#����������������"���������"��"���#��������!	�!�	����������������������	����!!�	��"��
�������!	�!�����!	��	����$��

ANNEX APage 63



����������	
�������������������������

������1�������

��������������������	��������+������������	���������������#��#����#�	
����!�	���	���!�#������
�����	�����	�������������������"�	���	�!	�!������?���� .@$�

�

�&%�� )�9�F�G���������������

9+,� �
����	�����4���������������
5�	������!	��	�����#��������"�	���������	�#��������	����	���������������+����#����
�����"������	����������	���	���������$� ��(�1����������������������	�������������������
��!�������������������	������������������������	���#�����������������������������������
��������������#������!�	��������D������,�����������������	����$�
�

��$����9+,+��#�������������	���
	�����-<++���������
�����	�������	����-<+8��
�

�
���������
	����D����$���
���$E�
5�	�	���	�������������������	��������!	�!�	������������D����#�������#���������"����������
�������������	���!�	�������	��+��	�����"�������#�����	�#�#������������"����!����������
���������������	���+������������
P�� ������������.C��	�#�������	��	�!���"�	�����!�	����?�((B8�(�1@+���������������#����($6C�
��������	�#������!�!��������������!�������I�
P��������	�#�������	�!��#������"�������!	�!�	����������������������������������������
��	���������	��������#�	
$��>������������������������������	���������	�!��#��������������0/C�
�	�#��������������������������#�����((B������(�1I�
P���5������������#������	��������	�����������������	�#����������	������	�!������+./(��������
!�	���������	�������	�������������	�����!��
$����������������A������������!���������#�	�
'��	�����!�������������������#�	����������������I�
P��9����	�+����������������#����	������������������������������!�������+����'��	����������
�����������	�������	����!	��������������������	����"����������������������	���"��#����
��	���	����������������������������������#�	
$�
3���������+��������"��!	������������������������!�����������������	�#��$�
�
���������
	������'/�������������	���	�
���"�	����+������������"������������������������	���!�	�����#�	
������!	��	������
����	����������"���	�������#�����������!�!��������������!���������	�#��������������
#��������"�������������!�����"����!���������������	�����	8�������	�!�$���
*�������"���������	������������D����������!	��	�����#������"�����������#������!������
��������	�������(�1�?�����"���������������#���	�'����������������	����������������������
���������@��
P�� ��(C���	���������������	�!��?'��������	�0C�!�	��������	�#��@I�
P�� ��(C���	��������#��
�����	�!��?'��������	����$0C�!�	��������	�#��@I�
P�� ��(C���	�����������������	�!��?'��������	����$0C�!�	��������	�#��@I�
P�� ��$0C���	���������	���!���I�
P�� ��$(C�	������������	��	�"�	��	�!��?��!�	������������������������/$0C���	���������	�
�	�"�	��	�!�@$�
�

�#�'&�;� ) (�
-<+8�9 �
) �.�)0�

-<+8���'�
-<+8���'�����

�����

����� 1(..� 1�(0� 1�B�� 6D�.�

*��
� �.1//� D(�06� D(0DD� D�1(B�

&��� ��(.6� ���0(� ��D�.� ���(6�

��	���������	� ��B�/� �D61(� �D1//� �D0/6�

��	�,	�"�	� 1(D�0� 1D(60� 1�61B� 0BB16�

������ ��..6.� �D/0/6� �D/0/6� �D/0/6�

1)������������������������������)������"$2�����	��������������������	����!3$�)���������
45�������������67���	��!���8�	�	���	����������	�����������������	���������!!���������	�����
��������������!39������	�����6
��!3�).50:;�<:;=)'8�������������6
��!3�+)0>�8�����
+?)@��������6
��!3�+)0>�A�+?)@8$�

ANNEX APage 64



����������	
�������������������������

������6�������

9����������!�������������	��#�������������������������	���������������"���������������
!�	�����	����������#��	����#����	���	���	�����!	�!����$���	����������������������	�����
����5���	�)����)�������#����-�A���)����������������>��	��	���A!��������	�����	�������
�		����"�	����#���"�������!!	�A$��(8D(�!�	������������������((�!�	�����#�����������	��������
����������	����	����$�
�
���������
	����
������3�$��
 ���"�����������"�������������#������"�����������#��������������
�
������
��$�
�����������������
P��>���������������������D+.(����#�	��	��	�"�	��	�!������������#�	
���	�������� >�!��
�
?��!�	���#�����(�1�#�������D@�����������	������������+/0B��	��	�"�	��	�!����!�	���#����
�����I�
P��D�+�((�"������
��	���"����	����������#�	
���	����������	�����!��
I�
P�������������#�������	����������#������4����"����������"�������������	������������#����
�(8�0CI�
P�� ���������!������������������������	�"��������+����#�����������	�#���������!	�"������
��	�������������	����������������������!	�"���!�	��	�����������������	�����	���!�	��
�����$�
�
�������$�������
P��3�����������	����������������������������������	������������	��	�!��#��������������	��������
�����	����	�������������������+60(��������?B((��	�����"������(�������@������	����!�	����	$�
P�����������	�������	�������	����������"������!��
+��A�������	����	����������������
��!	�"����	��������#���������	���<����������	���4������������	������������	���	���	�+�
"������������	�����!!��������$�
 �������������������������������D����������������#��������"�	���������
P��-����������������������������	�������!��
��������"���	�"��������+�!�	�����	��������$��
��	��A��!��+���"��������G1((�!�	�������������������	�����������������������������������
����
�!����������	����	������������	��������7�������?H�����������&�����������������+�
�((6@$��5�	������������������������!	��	�����#��������"���"�	��+(((������������!��
����	�
�������	�!��!�	���������(�1$��5�	��#��#��
��Q������������	�������R��"���������#�����!�	��
���������������������	
�!	��	���������	�����������������D/���#�����������#�	
�!��������
�(�($�
P��7�������������������������������������	+���	�����������#��
���+�����������!�����
�	���!�	�����#�	
����������������#������!	�"���������	�������+(((�����������������������
#����������	I��
P��9�!	�"�����	�=������������	���������������	��������������	��	��������#�#����#������"����
!�	�����	������������ ;> ���������������"�	������������������������"�	���������������������
��������������$��9������������?�$�$����������@+��������	����!�	�����������	�����!!����
��	�����#�����	����������	���������������������������!	�"�����������	�=�����������
	����������������$�
P��������������������"�����������	
���������#��	���������#���������	���������#��
��������
!�	�����	�������������������
������������������	�����	��	�"�	����������	���#�	�����
�����������'��������	�����"���	���	������$�
�
&4��������	�����������	�
5�	�������������������
���������������!��������������������������!�
�������"��������������
��	���������"�����$��
�
��	����+���	
������������"�����������������������	���!�	���"�	���	���������+���������
�������������������	������������������	������#��
���+�����������!������	���!�	��
�����
P����	
�!�����	���!�����	�����������#�����������	���������������������	���������.B6�����
�������������#��
������������������	��������	�����������������������������=����$��
P����	
4�����������!����������!	����������������"�����!��������������������������������
�����������3E�?��C���	�'��	��������#�	
@����������������������	������$������	������������
�������	
�!	��	������������������	���	��	�#���������#����0S6$0C�!�	������I��

ANNEX APage 65



����������	
�������������������������

������B�������

P����	
�	����������������������������������	
�F�)�������#�	
���������3E�#�����"�	�D���������
!�������	��!�	����	$���
P��)��	�������������������������	"������#�	
+�����	���������������������������A!����������
������	
�F�)�������#�	
����#�����((�������((1�����������	���0(C��	�#����������!��	������
������������������	
�F�)�������#�	
��?�"�	����BC�!�	��������	�#��@I�
P����	
��������������������������!�����	������������	�"���!���������"�	�����������#��
�������#����.0C�������������"�������"���	�"���!��������!���$�,�	��������������������
��	
�!	��	����+��#��"�����������"���������"��"����������&�
��9��!	�'������������������
������	��������/0C�?�	�����C�����1C@�#������������	�	������������	��	�!�����������
6?��	�����B����C	�0��(�	������:����	��4����	���!�8$�
P����	
�#�����������������������,��4������������	�������	�"������������!����������((������
����!	�'�������"�����0C�	������������	�������	����!��
�!�	����+��������	�#������D0C�
��	��������������6D�)��0������������	���������������������	��������38$�
9��	�������������������������	���������"��+���	
�����������������������������������	�������"�����
#��������'��������!�!����������	��������/(+(((�?�0C@�������!���������	�#�������B+(((�
'����?DBC@��"�	������������!������������$��
�
����+���	�!	���������!����������������!�
���+�#����������������+��������"���������
#����������	���������A���������	
��A!�	����������"�����������������������	���!�	�$�����������
�	�
8	��	��!	�"��������#����������8������
��#����������!�	���	���!�������������������
!	��	���������������������#����"�������=������+��!8��8�����	����	�����������		��	�����
�������������	�"���������������#�!	��	�������	��������������������"�	����������
��		��	����������"������"���	������$�
�
7A�������������"���������������!����������������!����������������	�����	�!	��������
����	����"���	���!�	�������������	���	���!!�	�����������������A!�	����$�5�	�!	�!����������
!	��	�����L���������	�����!�
�����������"���	�����������!������������	������
!	������#��
���+�������������������8���������������������������	�"���,������	������
��#��!	�'���$��>�����	��������������������������	�"�����#������#�����#�8#������!�������
��.C�	������������	��	�"�	��	�!�������������	������	�������������	����"���?���������!�
�(S��C+��������	�!���!��1SD(C+�#��
�����!��(S�DC@$�6:�������9�?�������	$���$����!���
)���.���	�����?���	���������0�������������	���?��	��������)������)����8$�

�

9-,�����������	�	
�������
��
�������������	���!�	�������������������������������������4����	��������?�����D@�������	�
!�	���	�4��	!�	����������	��!����������+�������#����	��������"�	���������!������$����	�����
�������"�����������������������������	���!�	���	�����������������	��������	�+�#����#����
����	��������������������	���!�	�������	���#���������������������!����������!!�	��������
#��������	���������������������!�	���$�
�
 ��#���������	
���������������������������������	�����������������	����������"���!������
���������7���������������)����������#�7�������������!���$����������#������!!�	������
!	����������������7�+�#�	
����#��������������+�������������"���������������������#�
������������	��������#����������	��#���	�����������$�*��#����	�	�����������	�������!����+�
#����������������+��������������������������!	�������������������	���!�	�+��������������
�	����������������	��������$���	
���������	��������	�����"�������	�����������������
�����+������"�����������	�������������������&�
��)�����������	
�7�"�	���������	���
�	��"����������
������	#�	���������������	���!�	�������	��������#�����������������������
�����!�	��������������$�
�
��	�������������������	
�#����"����"���!����������	����	������!�	���	���!�+�#��������
!	�"���+�!���������"������	������	��#����#��#���������������	��������������?���� .@$�
������!�	���	���!������"�����������������!�
���+�	���������	���!!�	���������������	��
	����	��+��A!�	���������
��#����������#�������!������	������������<�#��	���!4���	�
�������������	���!�	���������#�������	��������������������������+�"�������	���������4��
���������������	���	����!��$��*��#�����������#��������������+�"���"������	��
�	��������������������:�������	�����>��������������������������������������	���!�	��

ANNEX APage 66



����������	
�������������������������

������.�������

!	�'����	�����������������������"�������	�+�	�!�����������������������������	
+�����
���-�A���-��!�	��������!������	!�������������	���!�	�$��
�
������������!	�'����#��������	�!�
������������	���#��������������8����������+�
����	����������	��#�����������������������+������������	���������	��A��!���#��������	����
G�0+((($�&��#�	
����#����,�������"����������������!	��	����+�#��#������"����������
�"���������������������	����������!��+����!������������������"���#������������	���!�	��
!�����������"�	���!!�	����	��������������	���!�	�������	��������������	�$�
�
>������������!�����!	�'�����������������#����������������	������������	�=��	��	�"�����
���������������������������!�	���$�>��������������������#���������������#����������������4��
����#����������������������$������!�	���	��#������#��=��!�������	�����!	��	��������)����
�������������	�9���	���������"����������������������������=��!���������	����������������
�����!�	������������#�������������	������������	�
�����������	�"������$��
�
���	������������������!!�	����	���	
4������������	�������������������������������#���	��
���������������������������������������#���������������������������������!�	���$�

�

�&%�� )�&�F�9���4������
��

&+,���������
�
����
���������!	��	�����#���������!�������������������������!!	����#�������������������
����"�	���������������������	
�!	��	������"�	����������D����	�$������!	��	��������#�	
��
#����������������������	���"���������	�����������!�	���	�+���#�	����	�������A�������������
�	�������������������������	���!�	��!�������+��!�	����������"�������	�+�����#��������
��"�	���������!	�������$�3���	���������������	�������	�!	�'���������#�������	��!��������
��	�����"�	��������!�
�������������	��$�������"�	�������	���	��#���������	�������"���	��
�	��!�������	���������!�����	���������������!	��	������������	��������������	��
��!���������������������������"��#���!�������$�,���"�	���������!	��	�����#�������	�!�	����
�����	�����	��������������7A����"��>����	�����������	�������������������$�

�

&-,� �
��
�����	
���	�
 ��!	���������������������!����!	���������������!���������"�	��!�	�������������������
 ���A��$�-����������	�������������������������#����!�	��	�!����
�
���������$�$����
�
&���������	����&��������	�����������������������������"�����!�	���	���!�#��������	��������
������I�)�������	�������&�
��9��!	��	���������!�	���	���!�#��������	��������������I�
,���"�	������	��	���������	����	�0�����	�����������#����!�	���	���!�#����!	���	������������
��	
I���������������������	�����������!�	��������������I��
���	�����#�	����-��������	�������"�	�������������������	�������!�	���	���!�#����������I�
)�����!	��	�����������!�
������������#��
������������"���#����������+��������*��
�#����
*���$�
�
"�	���		���$�$����
�
&���������	����&������	����������	�"���!�������������������>��	+�>��
���	���+�������������
��	
���������������+�������������������I�,�"���!����������������	�"�������
��I�,�"���!���
#���������	������	������������������	���!�	��#�	
����#������������	���	
���	���	���!I�)�����
��	�������#�	
!��������������"����+�!	�������������������"������������!�	���	���!�#����
������������������:�	���	��;���	���I���������������������	���������������!�	�����
���������$��
���	���5�#�	�������������!	��	����������������"�����"���!���������	���
�
&����
��������������$�	�
&���������	����,���"�	���������(((�����������I�,���"�	�!�	�����������������������	�"���
�	������+������!!�	���	�"���!������������#�	
!������������"��I�)�����!	��	����������	
������
�"����+�!	���������������#�!����������I��	�����������7�+������!!�	���������	����������
!	�'��������������	������5����������	�"���������������$�

ANNEX APage 67



����������	
�������������������������

������(�������

9�����	�����������)�������&���"���	����������	�������)����3��	��!	��	������
�	������	����,���"�	��������0+(((������������!�	�������?���	��8/@$�
9�����	�D��)�������)����)��
�&���"���	��������!	��	����������!	�"����	���$�
�
.���
���������	����
&���������	����)�����!	��	��������#��
��������	��#��
�����������������	����I��	�������
��	������������	����!�������!!�	�����������	��#��
����������	����I�,�"���!�������������
<*��
�9�4�#������$�
���	���5�#�	�������������!	��	����������������"�����"���!���������	���
�
'�����
���	���
�
&���������	����,�"���!���������������������������!!��������I��	���������������������
��!	�"�����������������+�#���������	���	��������������	"����	���������!�	���	�I�9��	�����
&�����55�������	������������	��	�������'���������������:�	���	��;���	���������!	�"��
	�����������
&���������	�������!��������������������������#�����	���!����	����	I�9����������8������
���
�����������)�#�����������	�������&�	���	
�����)���������I�3!�	�����������!�����	�����1�
���	��8/��9�������)��9�����	����������!������������:�	���	��;���	���+��������	�������������
3��"�	����$�
�
%���
���	�����	�

*��!�����������"�	��������	���	���	����������������	������!���������������!�	�������
�������������!	�"����������������	!�	���������������	�"���!��������!	�������$�
&���������	����9�!	�"������	����)�����11I�7�������������#�	��������
��������	����)�����10�
�����������&����������	
I�3!�	����!�����	����	�����������������>��	�����>��
���	���$�
&���������	�D��9�!�����������#�����	��������
����-�A��������������>��	I�9�!	�"��!�����
	���������#�������#����:�#�7�	�#�
�����-���������I�7��������������!	�"���	�������!�����
�������5���	�)����)������	�!�����	���������������)�"�	�������	��������	�7�	�#�
$�9�!	�"��
��������������	�!�����	�������������������>�����	�	���������	���������������9���	�)����
)���$�

�

&/,������������3�����	3	�
�����"�	����	��
������������"�	���������!	��	�����������	�����������#�����������������
���������!	�!�����������������	���	��������������������	���#������"������������������
����"�	��������	
���������#��	�������������	�$�����
���!���������	��
������������#���������
�����	�������������������������#����!�	��	�!��$�
�
'���
�����L�)��
�����������������!����������	�������������������������#���������������������
>���6$���"������	��
������#$�>����������L���	�����"��"�������������!���������	��!����	����
!	�!�	������������$� ����	��!����"������	��������	���!!�	����	��������$�
�
'��
���	���	�8�)��
����!�	���	��!��������������!	��	����$���"������	��
������#$�>����������L�
7�	���������#����!�	���	�������������������������	����������	�
�����'���"�������
�������������������	��������	��������������!	��	����$�����	��������������������
��'���"����������������������	���������	��!�������������������	�����!	��	����$�
�
����������L�)��
����������������������������������#������������"�������$���"������	��
������#$�
>����������L�9�����������������������	�����!	��	�����������������	����!	��	�����L�
��!�����$������������������!	��	�����#�����������	������������������������������
����"�	�������������	������	���$�
�
����������L�)��
����������	������������#��������������"�	�$� ����������������������	����
��	���������������������������������������$�$��������	������	��
�	���"�	�����$���"������	��
�
�����#$�>����������L��	�!�	��	������������������������������!!	�!	���������������
����#���$�3���	��
�������	�������������������	��
���������	��������$�
�

ANNEX APage 68



����������	
�������������������������

��������������

����� !���	���C�
�
�
����%��	��
	�8�)��
������!���������!!	�"��+�������#��	���!+�
�����	����������������������������������������!	��	����$���"������	��
������#$��>����������L�
7�	����"�������������������	�=��	�����������������������$�)����"��������#��	���!�����������
�����	����������$�$��������	���#�-�A���)���������������>��	�����	�������	��������	��$�

�

&2,�'��*��
��4����
����
�����������#��������"�	��#����������#�	
�#��������,�!�	���������������	���������"���������
�����!�
�������������$��*���������������������������������������!	��	�����������	��
���������������	!�	�����������������������"�	�����������	�	��������������	������������
��	���������	�������"�����$��*��#�������������"�	��#�������������	����	��A!�	������#����
����	�+������#����������3E�������	���+����#����"���������	���������	�$���
�
�����#����������������������	
�!	��	�����#����"�������#�	
����������������������	��
�	�������	
����	��	������������������	�����������#$�9�����������#����"�������#�	
����
����������	����������	�+�����!��	�����������+�����'��	���������	��	��	�����#�����������
���	����������������	�$��
�
*������������#�����	��	�������������"�	����!�	�����������	��#��������������4��#�	
���+�
�"������������
��$���	��A��!���#�	
!�����	�"�����	"�������������	����������	�����	"��������
#�������!�����	���������	���������	����������������	�"���!����	��$�����!�	���	���������
!	��	�����#���������"��"�����������"��������������������#����������	��	��	������������
����	��
��������	��#����	"���$�

�

ANNEX APage 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

Monitoring and Evaluation  

Interim Progress Report 2014  

 

15
th

 December 2014  

  

P
age 71



Work-streams  
The iTY programme deliveries eight different work-streams which together aim to encourage behaviour change in York towards more sustainable and active modes of 

travel.  The following pages outline the progress against the indicators set out in the Monitoring & Evaluation Framework for each work-stream:   

• Business engagement 

• Personal travel planning  

• Marketing and communications  

• Public transport initiatives 

• Schools engagement 

• Health and active leisure  

• Infrastructure improvements 

• Alternative fuel vehicles 

 

  

P
age 72



Business engagement  
A key component of the i-Travel York programme is the promotion of sustainable travel to people at their workplaces. The Workplace PTP project is being delivered by 

JMP Consultants. 

Data type and indicator  Evidence  

Input data  Amount of staff time 

spent engaging with businesses 

1 x FTE post  

Workplace PTP: A total of 338 Travel Adviser hours were spent engaging York employees at businesses in 2014.   

iTY expenditure £260k – includes FTE post and capital match funding  

£10,000 – Workplace PTP 

Output data 

Number of businesses engaged 

Business Travel Plan Network:  CYC has 82 businesses on network database.  CYC has hosted a number of breakfast briefings on 

a range of topical subjects (including, the Workplace Cycle Challenge, Workplace PTP surgeries etc). 6 events have been run to 

date.  

Number of businesses 

implementing a travel plan / 

activities

 

Travel Plan implementation:  20 businesses have an approved travel plan with CYC; this is increasing as new planning 

applications have a travel plan requirement. These are now being administered via the ionTravel management system. 

Workplace Cycle Challenge:  This initiative has grown year-on-year.  In 2012, 64 organisations participated in the three week 

challenge. In 2013, 71 organisations participated and in 2014, 82 businesses took part.  

Workplace PTP: In 2014, JMP successfully engaged with 14 businesses in York and ran 29 workplace PTP events at 13 

organisations.   

Match funding: Through i-Travel York, CYC has offered match funding to businesses for the provision of cycle parking.  Four large 

businesses in York took this opportunity to improve facilities for their staff (York Science Park, University of York, York Hospital 

NHS Trust and Aviva) – collectively, 523 new cycle spaces have been provided through this initiative.  The photo adjacent shows 

the new cycle parking facility at the University of York.   Additionally, CYC offer the “Park that Bike” scheme to smaller businesses 

who wish to install cycle parking next to their shops / business – 186 spaces for cycles has been provided through this initiative.  

Process data 

Staff views on effectiveness of 

delivery 

Management System: CYC has procured a management system to support workplace travel plan development in York. This will 

provide the mechanism to ensure that all business travel plan activities are consistent, including the engagement procedure, 

data collection and reporting.    

CYC has also developed the following video as an engagement tool to promote the business travel planning offer. 

http://www.itravelyork.info/for-business/travel-planning    

All initiatives have been extremely popular with organisations in York.  

Feedback from participating Business Travel Plan Network:  CYC filmed these events and interviewed attendees, resulting in very positive feedback from all 

P
age 73



 

 

  

businesses the businesses represented. 

Travel Plan implementation:  No feedback received from businesses.  

Workplace Cycle Challenge:  No feedback received from businesses. 

Workplace PTP:  “I just wanted to say a big thank you for supporting our Staff Benefits Fair on September 24th.  It was the first 

time we had run a Fair at Fulford and we were unsure of the response. We have received very positive feedback from our 

employees”. Chris Tye from Shepherds on the Workplace PTP.  

Match funding: The photo above shows that the new cycle parking facility at the University of York is very well used. At Aviva, the 

removal of the old style racking, re-assessing the space and installing new semi-vertical racks proved a great success and 

improved capacity by around approx 30%.  

Outcome data 

Numbers and proportion of pupils 

reporting change in behaviour  

 

Travel Plan implementation:  Mode shift data as a result of businesses implementing travel plans is not yet available.   

Workplace Cycle Challenge:  

 
2012 2013 2014 

Participants 1,524 1,708 Not yet available 

New / lapsed cyclists 286 430 300 

Miles recorded  cc 100,000 126,856 102,000 

Trips logged  cc 16,000 14,830 12,000 

    
 

P
age 74



Personal travel planning  
A total of 12,000 households in the Northern Quadrant will be targeted by locally recruited and trained Travel Advisers in 2013 and 2014, to talk to people about their 

travel choices, offer information and advice, and provide incentives to try more sustainable modes of travel.  Residents are also targeted at community events across 

the city. The project is being delivered by JMP Consultants.  

Data type and indicator Evidence  

Input data 

iTY expenditure 

Spend to date (October 2014): £353,000  

Amount of staff time spent engaging 

with people through different 

pathways (e.g. door-knocking, 

community groups)    

Over the 2 engagement periods (summer 2013 and summer 2014), 7,878 Travel Adviser hours were spent on this project. 

This includes engagement, staff training, leafleting, packing, delivering resources and after-care calls.  Of these, 728 Travel 

Adviser hours were spent delivering community events.  

Output data 

Numbers of households engaged / 

participating through different 

pathways (e.g. door-knocking, 

community events).  

A total of 10,819 households were contacted through the PTP project during the Year 2 engagement period (from the start of 

May to the end of August 2013). This is 64% more than the 6,003 contacted in Year 1.  The majority of 2014 engagements 

were from residential PTP in the New Earswick, Huntington, Earswick, Haxby and Wigginton areas of the Northern Quadrant, 

with 2,936 households participating as a result. Additionally, 1,912 participated at 21 community events, given a total of 

4,848. ‘Participation’ involves signing up for travel information, taking a personal ‘challenge’ to try something new, or joining 

the online club MyTravelYork.  Including the 2013 participants (2,228), the total for the project is 7,076.   

 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

2013 2014 Total

Community events

Household

P
age 75



Number of resources / incentives 

distributed  

Resources issued: 11,342 (2013) and 18,524 (2014) = 29,866.  

Incentives issued (includes pedometers, slap-wraps, bus taster tickets, car air fresheners and kids bracelets): 1,842 (2013) 

and 4,480 (2014) = 6,322  

New members of MyTravelYork online club (2014): 1,828.  Including the 682 existing members from 2013, the total 

membership is now 2,510.  A series of monthly e-newsletters have been issued to MyTravelYork members during the 

engagement periods.  

Numbers of challenges given 6,255 personal travel challenges were issued over the 2 year period – 2,021 in 2013 and 4,234 in 2014.  Approximately 10% 

of the challenge postcards were returned; however, through the aftercare calls, the Travel Advisers found that many 

participants completed their challenge but did not return their card.   

Process data 

Advisers’ / front line staff views on 

effectiveness of delivery 

The Travel Advisers visited another PTP project to share experiences and tips, and felt that the level of engagement they 

provide York residents was very in-depth and of a high quality.   

In September 2014, the York Press published an article about the i-Travel York project.  One of their journalists received PTP 

support from a Travel Adviser, and interviewed one of our participants for her experiences and feedback.  This generated very 

positive feedback from both.  http://www.yorkpress.co.uk/features/features/11444815.print/    

Feedback from participants / 

number of complaints received 

JMP has excellent feedback from participants, and has received very few complaints on the delivery of the project. 96% agreed 

that i-Travel York is good for its residents. A few quotes from participants include:  

“The call at the door was very well received because of the way the Travel Adviser spoke; he was full of life and was very 

informative, never once told me what I needed / wanted but offered his advice on each thing.” 

“Money well spent, the people who deliver the project clearly know what they’re talking about.” 

“Extremely useful – it did what it said on the tin, the guys were very helpful and I appreciated the follow up.” 

“If you make use of the project, it'll benefit your fitness and your community to have fewer cars on the road.” 

A number of profiles have been developed for prize winners from the challenge prize draws:  

http://www.itravelyork.info/about/your-stories/    

Customer satisfaction with service 

offered 

The ‘aftercare survey’, undertaken with 348 participants in September and October 2014 found that 97% of participants were 

‘very’ or ‘fairly’ satisfied’ with the service they received; and 99% rated the quality of information received as ‘very’ or ‘fairly 

good’.   

Outcome data 

Numbers and proportion of pupils 

reporting change in behaviour  

The ‘2014 aftercare survey’ also determined the following behaviour change as a result of the personalised engagements:  

P
age 76



 

  

 

17% 17% 13%
2%

82% 82%
86%

82%

1% 1% 1%

16%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Walking Cycling Bus car use

Decreased

Stayed the same

Increased

• 20% of respondents completed 

their challenge 

• 17% increased their levels of 

walking 

• 17% increased their levels of 

cycling  

• 13% increased their levels of bus 

use 

• 16% are using their car less 

• On average, participants are 

walking an extra 22 minutes per 

week 

P
age 77



Marketing and communications 
Marketing and communications is key to promoting the project and developing brand awareness.  

Data type and indicator Evidence  

Input data 

iTY expenditure 

1 x FTE member of staff, marketing & Comms officer. 

Total expenditure year to date -  £247,660 (includes PTP costs)  

 

Amount of staff time spent in various tasks   Staff time not provided but activities include: 

• Advertising and promotion of i-Travel York initiatives and events including the PTP team. 

Generating ‘click through’ traffic on third party websites.  

• Planning, compiling, printing, selling advertising space, and distributing the latest edition of 

the well in-demand York Cycle Route map.  

• Organising, promoting, and staging the fifth highly popular Festival of Cycling with live 

outside broadcast on local radio station.  

• Tactically advertising and promoting cross-modal and seasonal sustainable transport 

initiatives and activities using online and ATL media including sponsorship opportunities on 

local commercial radio station Minster FM.  

• Creating and distributing printed and promotional matter of various types to continue the 

promotion of the i-Travel York sustainable transport message.   

Output data 

Number of hits on the website  

Statistics on website ‘hits’ outlined in the first graph below demonstrate that after 12 months since 

the launch, the website was still reaching a steadily increasing audience in 2013.  The second 

graph shows data for 2014, highlighting a consistently high level of engagement with the site 

compared with the previous 12 months. 

P
age 78



 

 

Information accessed from website by users  Other key statistics on website use include (2014):  

• 3.39  - average number of pages viewed by browser  

• 2.53  - average number of minutes spent on the website  

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

Total visits 

Non-mobile

Mobile 

Unique visitors

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

50,000

Total Visits

Non-Mobile

Mobile

Unique Visitors

P
age 79



The pages dedicated to Park & Ride were the most ‘hit’ on the website. 

Number of Twitter followers and Facebook likes  
 

2012 2013 2014 

Twitter followers   109 375 1,562 

 Facebook ‘likes’  29 113 192 

    
 

Use of on-line journey planner 77.6K sessions on journey planner for period January 1st– October 21st, 2014. 

Cycling specific marketing campaigns  Bike Belles: In 2014, CYC commissioned Sustrans to deliver a bespoke cycling project to engage 

women in cycling.  Between 14th February and 26th June, a total of 27 events were held, engaging 

a large number of women.  

• 400 women were actively engaged in the Bike Belles project  

• 2,000 women were indirectly engaged through social media interactions 

Festival of Cycling & Sky Ride 2014 

• Total number of participants on Sky ride = 10,000 

• Estimated number of visitors to the Festival of Cycling over the week end = 7,000 

Process data  

Customer satisfaction with services  

PTP ‘champion’ Beverley Cole thought the i-Travel York website “was a great tool to help people 

find suitable travel alternatives”. (2013)  

Number of complaints received  None recorded by CYC Comms / Marketing staff.   

Staff views on effectiveness of delivery  “Website traffic looks very encouraging and I’m particularly impressed with the high levels of 

mobile access - around a third of visits to iTY at the moment are being made via mobile devices”.  

Linda Capel, October 2012. 

Outcome data 

Brand awareness and understanding  

JMP led a focus group (through the PTP project) with staff at York Hospital in May 2014 – four out 

of eight staff (50%) recognised the i-Travel York logo.  In PTP aftercare surveys, 21% were aware of 

i-Travel York before the conversation with the Travel Adviser.  

Feedback from supporting community groups, schools, 

workplaces  

Excellent feedback from workplaces who received PTP surgeries.  E.g. Brian Golding, Director of 

Estates and Facilities from York Hospital said “I was delighted to invite the i-Travel York team to the 

hospital; during the event many of our staff and visitors reviewed their travel arrangements. The 

personal attention meant that individuals were able to get advice directly related to their own 

circumstances.” http://www.itravelyork.info/about/prize-draws/september-prize-draw-winner  

Not provided for community groups or schools.  

Considerable growth http://twitter.com/itravelyork 

Moderate growth www.facebook.com/itravelyork 

P
age 80



 
  

Evidence of improved willingness to consider sustainable travel 

options  

The PTP aftercare survey asks participants who changed their travel behaviour whether they intend 

to sustain it – 90% said they were intending to continue with their change across all modes, with 

even larger reported intention for those who were cycling or using public transport more following 

the engagement. 

Proportion of businesses, schools, community groups 

approached that are willing to participate in campaigns  

Not provided  

Numbers of ‘sign-ups’ to MyTravelYork  682 from PTP engagements (as of September 2013)   

1,828 from PTP engagements (as of September 2014) = 2,510 in total from PTP.  

Total number of MyTravelYork members (from non-PTP pathways) has not been provided.  

Numbers and proportion of people reporting change in 

behaviour  

No evidence available yet 

Participants' perceived benefits of new options  No evidence available yet 

P
age 81



Public transport initiatives 
 This work-stream delivers improvements to bus journey reliability and passenger information, as well as smart ticketing and modest service improvements.  

Data type and indicator Evidence  

Input data   

iTY expenditure 

Approximately £100,000 for public transport schemes, specifically £50k bus stop upgrades, £20k for real time screens, £30k 

for developing new timetables and £20k for developing/ promoting the All York bus ticket. 

Staff time 1.5 FTE, plus additional staff time from parallel Better Bus Area Fund programme. 

Output data 

Number of bus stop improvements  

Approximately 100 bus stops upgraded in Northern Quadrant. New timetables provided at all bus stops across the city (approx 

1,500 bus stops). 

Number of RTPI boards installed  Two real time screens provided at York Hospital 

Number / proportion of smart tickets  Not provided 

Service improvements delivered Not provided 

Process data  

Delivery according to programme 

Work completed by Autumn 2014. 

Staff views on effectiveness of 

delivery 

None at this stage  

Quality of improvements (compared 

to industry best practice) 

A new system has been implemented for collecting data on customer satisfaction.  This has comprised both surveys 

undertaken by CYC and surveys by Passenger Focus.  This has allowed CYC to compare customer satisfaction with attributes of 

York’s bus service with other towns and cities across the UK and define the extent to which York meets best practice.   

The first set of surveys took place in 2013 and has allowed us to benchmark fares and passenger facilities, but did not capture 

the new timetables as these had not been installed by this point.  However, they will be captured in the Autumn 2014 surveys 

which will report in Spring 2015.   

Outcome data 

Changes in bus patronage  

 

Bus use increased by 2% in York between 2012/13 and 2013/14, compared to a decline in the surrounding counties of 4% 

for North Yorkshire and 7% for East Riding of Yorkshire over the same period. 

P
age 82



Schools engagement 

Reliability improvements  Bus service reliability has improved significantly in York during the i-Travel programme, with excess wait time for frequent 

services falling from 1.4 minutes in 2010/11 to 0.6 minutes in 2013/14 and punctuality of non-frequent services increasing 

from 74% on time in 2010/11 to 84% on time in 2013/14.  It is difficult, however, to disaggregate the effect of the LSTF 

measures from those of the Better Bus Area Fund programme.   

Passenger satisfaction Significant and measurable increases in customer satisfaction with bus services has been recorded as a result of both this 

project and the parallel “Get on Board York” programme funded by the DfT’s Better Bus Area Fund in 2012.  Operators have 

also made a number of improvements to services in York on a commercial basis over the same time period, most notably 

FirstGroup reducing bus fares in York by 25% to 30% in September 2013.  The charts below show changing passenger 

satisfaction with services: 

 

Although not covered by the surveys in Autumn 2013 (because they had not been installed) the new timetables developed 

through LSTF have received high levels of praise from bus users in York who have found them to be significantly clearer and 

easier to understand than the timetables they replaced.  They are also easier for people with impaired vision to read.  

Consequently we are expecting the Passenger Focus surveys for Autumn 2014 to show a step change improvement in 

satisfaction with on street bus timetables in York.   

Sales of the AllYork bus ticket (York’s multi-operator ticket developed through LSTF) now total around £50,000 per year 

(approximately 1,000 tickets per month), with ongoing volume and revenue growth.  CYC is now working with the bus operators 

to develop additional ticketing products, such as an annual ticket and a ticket which can be purchased through employers. 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2012 2013

Very disatisfied

Fairly disatisfied

Neither satisfied nor 

disatisfied

Fairly satisfied

Very satisfied

P
age 83



This work-stream involves promoting sustainable travel to pupils and their families through their schools.  

Data type and indicator Evidence  

Input  

iTY expenditure 

 

1.5 x FTE staff member (0.5 schools engagement officer; 1 Bike It officer)  

Amount of staff time spent 

engaging with schools and 

pupils 

Bike It:  462 hours (2013); not provided for 2014.   

Big Pedal: Not recorded (part of 1.5 FTE time) 

Walk to School Week: Not recorded (part of 1.5 FTE time) 

Output  

Number of schools engaged 

 

Bike It: 23 schools (2012-13)  

Big Pedal:  18 primary schools and 3 secondary schools took part in 2012.  Only 12 primary schools and 1 secondary school took part 

in 2013.  From bike shed counts, it has been determined that 7 primary schools and 1 secondary school took part in the Big Pedal in 

2014.  

Walk to School Week: 30 schools took part in October 2014, totalling 9,047 students. 29 schools took part in May 2014, totalling 

7,512 students.  13 schools took part in 2012.  

Not provided for other school travel planning activities 

Number of schools 

implementing a travel plan  

Number of schools implementing a travel plan - not provided 

Process   

Staff views on effectiveness 

of delivery 

 

Not provided 

Feedback from supporting 

schools 

Not provided 

Outcome  

Numbers and proportion of 

pupils reporting change in 

behaviour 

Big Pedal: 29,966 bike journeys were made in 2012; 1,202 hours were spent cycling in 2013.  Comparable data for the two years has 

not been provided. 2014 information not provided. 

Walk to School Week: 13 schools took part in 2012 to record a total of 15,090 miles.  Comparable data was not provided for 2013. 

Bike It: See the following graph for the impact of the 2012-13 programme (for work in Osbaldwick and Wigginton Primary Schools).  

The 2013-14 results have not yet been published / provided. 

P
age 84



Health and active leisure  

A key component of i-Travel York is the delivery of health and leisure projects, tasked to promote active travel options in lieu of sedentary pastimes.  

 

Numbers of pupils using 

cycles / scooters to school  

 

  Average bike and scooter count in Primary Schools 2012-14 

Numbers of pupils sustaining 

a change in behaviour over 

time 

Not provided  

 

Proportion of non-school 

journeys made by bike by 

pupils 

Not provided 

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

35.0

40.0

Cycle Walk Scoot/Skate Park & 
Stride/Park & 

Cycle

Bus Train/Other Car

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 (
%

)

How do you usually travel to school?

Pre 2012-2013 Post 2012-2013

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

Average bike and scooter shed counts across all 

Primary Schools in York have generally fluctuated 

across the three years.    

On the other hand, average bike and scooter counts 

have generally increased in Secondary Schools across 

York.   

However, not all schools provide this data every month 

so firm conclusions should not be drawn from this 

dataset. 

P
age 85



Data type and indicator Evidence  

Input data   

iTY expenditure 

 

0.5 FTE staff member 

Amount of staff time spent engaging with 

people  

In 2014, the York Health Walks scheme has been actively supported by a core group of 20 Volunteer Walk Leaders who 

are supported by a further 5 Volunteer Walk Leaders who offer ad-hoc support as back markers for walks with participant 

number in excess of 20. Between them theses 25 Walk Leaders contribute 25 hours per week to the delivery of this 

initiative.   

32 Sky Ride Local sessions or 64hours (32 x 2hours) have been delivered by British Cycling trained Ride Leaders. 

38 inclusive cycling sessions or 76 hours (38 x 2 hours) were delivered between April - Sept 2014 by a total of 16 staff 

comprising 13 coaches and 3 volunteers to a total of 103 participants. 

5 bike maintenance classes were run by 2 staff providing 20 hours of tuition in total. 

8 adult cycle training sessions were using 5 different venues across the city. These were staffed by 8 National Standards 

Instructors who provided a total of 64.25 hours of support to the sessions. 

Output data 

Number of participants in events / 

organised activities such as led-walks 

and bike rides  

 Walking Cycling 

Until end Sept 2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014 

Number of events held  192 260 316 18 16 24 

Number of participants (in total) 2123 2791 ? 72 66 156 

Number of ‘new’ participants 125 172 258 38 43 35 

Number of events held  192 260 316 18 16 24 

 

Cycle Loans: 20 people borrowed bikes to complete cycle training 

Adult cycle training:   8 group sessions delivered at 5 different venues, 45 participants received this initial 1 hour 

session. Participants in group sessions booked a further 36 x 1.5 hour (total 54 hours tuition) individual cycle training 

sessions.  Total hours tuition provided across all provision = 99. 

Bike maintenance classes: 112 adults participated at 3 ability levels.   

Other events: York Sky Ride with 10,000 (2014) participants, 50+ games with associated walks and rides, Eng-Age 50+ 

event raising awareness of cycling and walking opportunities and HEAL health walks provided by CYC . Bike Belles: 

Aimed to encourage female cycling through social rides, maintenance classes and other methods. Between 14th 

February and 26th June, a total of 27 events were held, engaging 1546 women. 
 

Number of on-going participants  In 2014, a total of 156 adults participated in led cycle rides, including 121 existing participants.   

In 2014, the York Health Walks scheme had 132 regular adult walkers (regular walker = someone who walks at least 

P
age 86



once per month or 12 x per annum). 

Process data  

Staff views on effectiveness of delivery 

Staff found use of pool bikes to support adult training useful but some clients require smaller bike frames than those 

currently available in the pool bike scheme.  The use of an adapted trike for those with balance issues was also helpful 

but it needed to be transported from the Sports Village. The booking of follow on cycling training sessions with payment at 

the initial session was very effective. It supported continuity of service and was well received by customers who did not 

want to lose the momentum and enthusiasm they developed in their initial sessions. 

Feedback from supporting community 

groups / individuals 

Nordic walking (November 2012): “I just wanted to say how great all this is. New friends, good conversation and a great 

work out into the bargain.  I will certainly be spreading the word for Nordic Walking. Thank you again.” 

Adult cycle training (July 2012): “I found it really useful for getting my confidence back by having a go riding a bike again, 

without having to commit to buying one. The instructor was great and answered lots of questions. I think the scheme is a 

very good idea!” 

Adult cycle training (July 2013): “I couldn’t ride at all before, so I didn’t expect to get riding after my first session. I was 

pleasantly surprised that I was able to ride alone after only half an hour! It spurred me on and I booked onto the next 

session.”  

Adult Cycle Training (July 2014): “I'm just writing to say thank you for the course on Saturday. I found it useful and not at 

all intimidating (cycling is very competitive these days - I just want the confidence to get back on my bike).” 

Adult Cycle Training (August 2014): “I just wanted to let you know how much I appreciate your efforts.... I have learned an 

incredible amount, and surprised myself with what I have achieved.” 

Adult Cycle Training (December 2014): “I would just like to thank you all for the cycling training.  It has made such a 

difference to my confidence on the roads and with my bike in general. Thank you for the supportive training sessions and 

the details that I needed to understand re road safety and positioning etc.  I would recommend this to anyone and feel 

fortunate to have been able to take this training up.  Many thanks” 

Outcome data 

Numbers and proportion of participants 

reporting change in behaviour 

The following table shows data from the Living Streets York Walking Challenge (3 week period, Sept-Oct 2012), namely 

number of participants, miles walked and mode shift (this accounts for journeys that would otherwise have been made by 

car).   

 Workplace Residential Schools (primary)  

Participants  63 24 21 schools with 2.889 pupils  

Miles walked 1,533 343 13,260 

Mode shift  13% 15% Not available 

Also, 60% of workplace and residential participants said that they walked more than usual during the challenge; 37.5% of 

workplace and residential participants said that they intend to walk more after the challenge.  

Data to show behaviour change for other projects (walks, rides, training) is not yet available.  

None provide for 2013 or 2014.  

P
age 87



 
  

Socio-demographic characteristics of 

participants and behaviour changers 

Walking participants: 18% male; 82% female                         Cycling participants: 36% male; 64% female 

Age profile of walking participants April -July 2012                Age profile of cycling participants April -July 2012 

 

None provided for 2013 activities.   

Led walk activities (2014): None of the participants were under 25; 20% were 25-54 and the remaining 80% were 55+. Of 

all participants, 70% were women. No data provided for 2014 cycling activities.  

Scale of change (number of journeys per 

week, number of minutes extra exercise / 

active travel etc) and why 

Not yet available (to be collected from participants in 2014) – not provided  

Numbers of people sustaining a change 

in behaviour over time 

Not yet available (to be collected from participants in 2014) – not provided 

Evidence of improved willingness to 

consider sustainable travel options 

Not yet available (to be collected from participants in 2014) – not provided 

Participants' perceived benefits of new 

options 

Not yet available (to be collected from participants in 2014) – not provided 

Case studies of sample of participants Case studies have been developed for Nordic walking and adult cycle training (January 2013) – none provided for 2014. 

4%

1%

7%

15%

38%

31%

4%

0%

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65-74

75-84

85+

0%

20%

20%

12%

32%

16%

0%
0%

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65-74

75-84

85+

P
age 88



Infrastructure improvements  
The i-Travel York programme incorporates a wide range of improvements to bus, pedestrian and cyclist infrastructure.   

Data type and indicator Evidence  

Input data   

iTY expenditure 

 

Infrastructure ~ £1,585,000 

Output data 

Number of bus stop improvements  

Approximately 100 bus stops upgraded – see public transport improvements section. 

Number of cycle schemes 

implemented  

Infrastructure schemes ~£1,585,000 

• Haxby-Clifton Moor Cycle Route - £1,360k 

• Jockey Lane Cycle Route - £150k 

• Clifton Moor pedestrian and cycle routes - £75k (£55k LSTF)  

Cycle parking match funding 2014/15 

• Schools: 20 more places as Headlands Primary, Clifton Green Primary and Park Grove Primary. Potential for over 100 

new spaces at St Oswald’s Primary. 

• Business: Aviva have increased from 239 spaces to over 300.  

• A further 72 racks across 18 businesses and 51 racks at another 14 businesses  

Number of pedestrian improvement 

schemes implemented 

Clifton Moor pedestrian and cycle routes - £75k (£55k LSTF)  

Process data  

Delivery according to programme 

123 bike racks installed. More businesses are expressing an interest in scheme.  

Amendments to (and reasons for) 

originally planned programmes 

Route 65 Link no longer feasible due to entire site being designated SSSI.  

Customer satisfaction with services Not yet available 

Number of complaints received Not yet available 

P
age 89



  

Staff views on effectiveness of 

delivery 

Not yet available 

Outcome data 

Counts of use 

Not yet available 

Users’ satisfaction Not yet available 

P
age 90



Alternative fuelled vehicles  
This work-stream promotes an uptake of lower-emission vehicles in the city  

Data type and indicator Evidence  

Input data   

iTY expenditure 

£5k electric vehicle event in 2013 

£35k low emission taxi incentive scheme 

Output data 

Activities undertaken 

Engagement with taxi trade on benefits of low emission taxis and creation of the UK’s first ‘Low Emission Taxi incentive scheme’. There 

are currently 26 hybrid/electric taxis on the streets of York. 

Engagement with local bus operators to persuade them of the benefits of low emission buses. There are now 8 full electric buses in 

operation in York including a full electric Park & Ride site. A second Park & Ride site will also convert to electric shortly. 

Delivery of a ‘low emission vehicle’ event to showcase over a dozen low emission vehicles to the general public attracting 5000 visitors to 

York Designer Outlet. 

Delivery of the UK’s first ‘Pay as You Go’ publicly accessible electric vehicle recharging network accessible by mobile app, swipe card or 

voice recognition software. There are 17 dual headed standard chargers and 5 rapid chargers at city centre car parks and Park&Ride 

sites.  

Introduction of UK’s first ‘per kWh’ electric vehicle charging tariff on 31 July 2014. 

Delivery of 10 EV charging points at York hotels and 6 at commercial developments. 

Conversion of the world’s first full electric double decker City Sight Seeing bus. 

Successful integration of hybrid and electric cars into the CYC pool vehicle fleet partnering with City Car Club resulting in a reduction in 

CYC ‘grey’ fleet mileage by 34%   

Engagement with Freight operators resulting in the uptake of hybrid goods delivery vehicles in York. 

Development of CNG/biomethane refuelling centre with Urban Freight Consolidation Centre. 

Process data  

Delivery according to 

programme 

Not provided 

Outcome data 

Evidence of change in 

attitudes towards lower-

emission vehicles 

amongst target group 

The following graphs show the increasing usage of electric vehicle charge points in York. This excludes electric bus usage. 

P
age 91



 

 

 

 

There has been no research to date to collect data on changing attitudes to lower- emission vehicles in York.  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

York EV charging point usage

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Total kWh used

P
age 92



ANNEX CPage 93



 

ANNEX CPage 94



��

�

�
�

�������	
�

������������������
����

��������������
�������
��

������
�����������

���	���

��� �!�"�

�

� ��	��
	�#���
��
����$���%�!�

�

���&���������#�$��$���'�

���������	
���������	���	������	����������������
���	
���������� !�"�

�������	�(�)���	����
�����������%�*����������$+�)�����
�(,�-��+���
����������.��(���

���
�
������(������
�����(�$#���	�	�(�/��#'������������������)������
�����
'������&��	�

&�����)� ��+���	�"�	�'�����0#$(��)�0��#� ��)��������	��������$���(#������$���/�����
�

��	���

��(�������)������������%���1��*���)�����,����������	��)���/�	�
��
�&��������

��������#���������$������	�(�/��#��������(��)������
�
������(������
�����(�$��
,�

��
������(�����/�(��
�$�����(����-��+2
�(��)�������$�����$�/�
����&��$���
���
�	����

+��&(�	)�3��
�	���	�
����
'�����4��������
��$��#���	���)����(��$�����$�	��/���&����

��(��������	���(�#�����)��&��,����+������
��$�����$�)��&���)���)���	��������$������

��
����$���	���/���������(��

����������$��#���5����
��
��������)��$��)�
�������	��������

�(�������/�'������
�
������(�����/�(,�

�����&�&���������+����������'��3���/�(�-��+'���)���������������.��(�/�(���	��
���(�
������
�

����(��)����������	���	�$������$�����������	�����
�
������(�����/�(���

�)�
����-��+,��

���������$�	��
�������$���(�)#�
�$���
�&�����	�
����$��	
�&�((���/�	����6����
���
��2�

������(�������(�������6	�������	���2�4�����#,�����&���������((���������
�$$�

��(�(�&�

7���$���������0�����8.�$���/��

�
0��#����-��+�0���$�(�

��
��7���$�
�

��������"�
���

-��+�

-7����9�

ANNEX CPage 95



��

�

���

���
�
�����)#'�&��+(�$����	���
�	�����(���
���(�
�	����/�(�(�����)���4�$�
�&��$��

����	�(�/����)��.$�((������
�(�
��������
������	�(�
�������	�������$�$��)�
�������	�$����,��

���&�������$�������������/�
�����$#$(��)������(�	�(�/�������0#$(��)�"�/�(������������
�&�((�

��	��&�#����-��+'���(��)�	�(�/�������)�/�������2
�$�������������6����:�������0#$(��)2,�

-��+���&���
�����
�$��	���)��
������$�������(�/�(
������#�$��#��������;<,�7�������/���/��

��+=�	�(���������/����	�����:�+��:�((�
���4�$�����������
���&������
����
'���$����)��)�

�����&����������$#$(��)'�������/��)�/��#�
�$$�

��(,��������$����(�
��)��������-��+
�����

�����	������$������	������'�
��)����&��$��
����
����-��+'�����$���
�����������
���)�����	����

��$����)��$#$(��)�����((�(�/�(
,�

������/�'������)���������
����
���������'��
���(�
��	���)�(#�
�$$�

��(�	�(�/��#���$����
�
�

������)��������$���		������(����	�
�������-��+�&�((������$�
�	������)��/�(���	�(�/��#,�

������/�
�����������)����������'�$#$(��)�$��#'�9$$�

�-��+�=�:������:�
�9�������	���$,��
�

����(��)��
������
������
�
�����	���)���������$��������
�	�/�(����������
�
������(��

���/�(����-��+,�

�����/��(��)��������/�
������	���������
���#��	�����������������	�/�(��������)�����,��

-��+���
������$+���$��	����
�$$�

��(�	�(�/��#'�
�����)���	��.$��	��)�
����$�����)��
,����

��/��
�����������
����)��
��������
���	,����&��������������.��(������������
,����&�((�&��+�

&�������������������$��/�(#�����������	��/�(����'������(
�����
�������
����$��
��&����������

����������
,�

-��+���
���)��	����$+���$��	����
��/�$��	�(�/��#���	����
�����������	�(������������/�
�����,�

���	�(�/�������)��	
>����$�����	����
���	����#��,��

<��	���)��	
'�

�

� � �

�

<��
����8�)(��	� � � � � 0((�,�?���
�9(�.��	���

0�����8.�$���/�� � � � � ���	������0��#����-��+�0���$�(�

ANNEX CPage 96



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  1 

 

Local Sustainable Transport Fund 15/16 Revenue 
Application Form

 

Applicant Information 

Local transport authority name(s):  CITY OF YORK COUNCIL

Bid Manager Name and position:   DAVID SHORT,
         I-TRAVEL YORK PROGRAMME MANAGER 

Contact telephone number:   01904 551571 / 07572 103644
 
Email address: david.short@york.gov.uk 
 
Postal address: i-Travel York Programme Manager
   City & Environmental Services 
   City of York Council
   West Offices
   Station Rise
   York. YO1 6GA. 

Website address for published bid: www.itravelyork.info/lstf2 
  

 
SECTION A - Project description and funding profile 
 

A1. Project name: I-TRAVEL YORK

A2. Headline description: 

Please enter a brief description of the package of measure in no more than 150 words. 

This is a revenue bid to extend the i-Travel York Programme, through which we have developed 
a range of successful delivery mechanisms for promoting sustainable travel options.  These 
contribute to the LSTF objectives of economic growth and carbon reduction, whilst supporting the 
Council’s  longer-term vision for the City and linking to the LEP’s vision and strategic priorities. 

The programme will support the continued development of i-Travel York as the long-term 
sustainable travel promotion campaign in York.  It will enable the roll out of our pioneering Low 
Emissions Strategy, intensify our engagement with businesses through our highly effective 
workplace travel plan programme and provide a comprehensive residential campaign to reduce 
congestion and improve health on one of our most congested corridors.  It will also allow us to 
protect and continue our investment in cycling promotion, following our Cycle City programme, 
and in bus marketing, supporting our Better Bus Area status. 

  

ANNEX CPage 97



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  2 

 

A3. Geographical area:  

Please provide details of the area covered by the bid 

York is a compact historic city with a population of over 200,000. There is high demand for 
population and employment growth, with the Local Plan seeking to provide 1,100 new homes 
and 1,000 new jobs per year over the next 15 years. 

We have developed the i-Travel York initiative as the long-term sustainable travel promotion
campaign for the city.  As such, the programme relates to the whole of the City of York Council 
area.  It also seeks to engage with commuters travelling into York from the broader travel to work 
area and some of the 7 million annual visitors to the City.

The first phase of the project focussed particularly on the Northern Quadrant of the City, which 
contains 50% of employment and 40% of the population of York, and where there is relatively 
high reliance on the car for short trips. We will continue, through this programme extension, to 
offer support to businesses, residents and schools engaged thus far in the Northern Quadrant in 
order to ensure that the benefits of the programme are sustained.

This bid will widen our successful initial business engagement to the rest of the City. We will also 
provide a targeted intervention on the Holgate, Acomb, Poppleton corridor where residents, 
schools and employers will be engaged.  This corridor is an area of substantial population and 
employment growth where new transport infrastructure is coming on-stream.  It is also a 
relatively deprived corridor with below average health outcomes: three of the four wards in this 
area are in the top 10 for obesity levels in the City.   

We will continue to protect and enhance the investment in York Cycling City (and the legacy to 
Tour De France) by rolling out a series of cycling activities city-wide. In addition, we propose to 
develop a Cycling Hub at the University of York to further strengthen their excellent track record 
with promoting cycling to staff and students. We will also augment our Better Bus improvements, 
including expansion of community transport services and enhancements to waiting facilities in 
the target residential area. 

An annotated map showing the project area and location of some of the scheme measures is 
appended. 

A4. Total package cost ( m): 1.180m  

A5. Total DfT revenue funding contribution sought ( m): 1.0m     

A6. Local contribution ( m): 0.180m 

Please provide details of the source of any local contribution to the overall cost of the proposed 
package. Where the contribution is from external sources, a letter confirming their commitment to
contribute to the cost of a specific package element(s) will be required.

We have identified £595,000 supporting funding that we will be able to lever in, including non-
guaranteed revenue funding, funding in kind and capital contributions (which we acknowledge do 
not contribute towards the 10% match). 

However, we have secured £180,000 guaranteed revenue funding to support the bid, as 
follows. Letters of support showing these bodies’ commitment to providing this contribution are 
appended: 

ANNEX CPage 98



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  3 

 

· £100,000 contribution from the bus operators through the sacrifice of the BSOG as part of 

the Better Bus Area scheme, which will be used for revenue measures to improve network 

operations and information provision; 

· £65,000 Public Health investment in active travel initiatives including British Cycling local 

rides and a major annual Sky Ride event; 

· £3,000 from City Car Club: contribution towards piloting Car Club cars in business parks; 

· £12,000 from bus operators providing weekly taster bus tickets for new bus users and bus 

tickets for i-Travel York Travel Advisers travelling to employer and residential events. 

Funding that is not yet guaranteed but we hope to lever in through our programme includes: 

· £40,000 employer match funding for travel plan measures; 

· £25,000 from employers’ subscription fees for ionTravel, the software package that City of 

York Council is utilising to manage travel plan implementation and monitoring. The Council 

has agreed internal planning policies to require new travel plans to be developed using the 

software and for a developer contribution to be made towards it; 

· Circa £10,000 from employers investing in private liftshare schemes, based on York 

Carshare, which is funded by the i-Travel York programme; 

· Additional employer funding to support the Workplace PTP programme. One major 

employer has already indicated that if the initial workplace PTP that i-Travel York is 

providing is successful, they will commission further PTP engagement themselves. 

Funding in kind will be provided by: 

· £24,000 Sustrans volunteers and central contribution to associated programmes; 

· £14,000 Active Leisure volunteers’ time in providing social walks and guided bike rides. 

Capital funding that our bid will be able to unlock includes: 

· £272,000 investment by the taxi trade in new hybrid / electric vehicles as part of our Low 

Emissions Taxi Scheme; 

· £30,000 to be invested by University of York in the Cycle Hub facility; 

In addition there are a number of proposed capital items in the Leeds City Region SEP which are 
linked to the objectives of this LSTF bid. The SEP growth fund bid includes investment for cycle 
route improvements, bus priority measures and low emission buses which complement and 
support this LSTF proposal.   

A7. Equality Analysis 

Has any Equality Analysis been undertaken in line with the Equality Duty? 

Yes No

Please see appended Equality Impact Assessment form.

A8. Partnership bodies:  

Details of the partnership bodies (if any) you plan to work with in the design and delivery of the 
proposed package of measures. This should include a description of the role and responsibilities 
of the partnership bodies such as Civil Society Organisations, Private Sector bodies and
Transport Operators, with confirmatory evidence of their willingness to participate in delivering 
the bid proposals.

ANNEX CPage 99



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  4 

 

The success of the LSTF funded i-Travel York programme has been, in no small part, due to the 
strength of the good working relationships that have been developed with a range of partners.  
To sustain the success of the i-Travel York programme, and to develop additional new elements 
of the programme, we need to retain the involvement of our partners.  The additional benefits 
from new programmes will only be achieved if we sustain our existing programmes, and provide 
our private, public and third sector partners with assurance that their investment in i-Travel York 
will yield long term benefits for their businesses and organisations.  We will continue to develop 
relationships with our stakeholders through the successful i-Travel York stakeholder group, which 
brings together a range of interests, such as the Chamber of Commerce, Civic Trust, York 
Environment Forum, York Cycling Campaign and CTC. Our key partners in taking forward i-
Travel York and in boosting the benefits of existing programmes and in developing new 
programmes include: 

Bus operators: the Quality Bus Partnership (QBP) brings together York’s 11 bus operators. The 
bus operators continue to support i-Travel York by providing All York taster tickets to promote 
bus travel to employees and resident through the PTP programmes, and through offering free 
travel to i-Travel York travel advisers undertaking residential and employer engagement work. 

Community Transport Operator: York Wheels operates our highly successful Dial-a-Ride 
service and through i-Travel York we will support the expanded community transport operation 
and help develop an enhanced brokerage service to improve the efficiency and scope of 
community transport services. 

East Coast Trains: East Coast has introduced a cycle hub and over 200 new cycle spaces at 
the rail station during the first phase of LSTF.  It is currently working in partnership with the 
Council to redevelop York station to improve interchange facilities. 

Employers within the Travel Plan Network (TPN): during the first phase of LSTF, a TPN has 
been established with over 80 members and we will further develop its membership and scope.  

Workplace Personal Travel Planning service: through the TPN i-Travel York provides 
personal travel advice to employees on their travel to work.  The 2015/16 LSTF will allow this 
service to employers representing over 20,000 employees to be augmented, including Best 
Western (210 staff), Monks Cross (500), Aviva (2,000), Nestlé (2,500), Shepherd Group (1,500), 
Benenden Health Care (200), Joseph Rowntree Foundation (600), University of York (3,500 
staff), University of York St John (700 staff), York College (600 staff) and York Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust (8,500).  The service will also be extended to other employers. 

The three Higher and Further education institutions, namely University of York (3,500 staff, 
16,000 students), York St John University (700 staff, 6,000 students) and York College (600 staff, 
8,000 students) are fully engaged with the i-Travel York project through the TPN and we will 
extend our collaboration with them on travel plan implementation and the workplace PTP service.  
This includes the development of additional services, including an innovative cycling initiative 
aimed at students and staff, to which all institutions have offered support.  The University of York 
has offered match funding to help deliver a Bike Hub on campus.  

Schools: We will extend the Bike It officer service to a further 6 schools (circa 2,500 pupils) in 
the target corridor, as well as supporting schools that have been involved in the first two years 
(representing circa 10,000 pupils). 

York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (8,500 staff) is an active member of the Travel 
Plan Network and will undertake workplace PTP this summer.  It is keen to extend travel 
planning services to their visitors during the next phase of the programme.  Priory Medical 
Group runs three GP practices in our target residential corridor.  There is agreement in principle 
to run a GP referral scheme to offer walking and cycling to patients. 

We also plan to collaborate the Institute of Advanced Motorists to extend the one-day driver 
training course aimed at high risk young drivers, and to expand our work to include some elderly 
high risk groups as well; the Safer York Partnership & North Yorkshire Police in promoting 
bike security and providing a tagging service; York’s Cycle shops and other retailers to 
promote their services in the residential PTP programme in return for free bike health checks, 
discounts and prizes for programme participants.  

ANNEX CPage 100



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  5 

 

A9. Local Enterprise Partnership:  

Details of the Local Enterprise Partnership bodies (if any) you plan to work with in the design and
delivery of the proposed package of measures. Where the bid is for a capital and revenue 
scheme it is essential that the relevant LEP has considered the bid and, if necessary, prioritised it
against other bids from the same area. All bids should include a letter from the LEP confirming 
their support.

Please identify where in the LEPs Strategic Economic Plan (section and/or page numbers) we
can find evidence of ongoing support for sustainable transport projects. 

The City of York is an integral economic driver for two Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) areas, 
namely the Leeds City Region (LCR) and York, North Yorkshire and East Riding.    

The LCR Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) emphasises the importance of increasing the quality of 
the city region’s transport system and the promotion of sustainable modes as key priority aims.  It
commits to a range of capital schemes that will improve and extend existing sustainable transport 
networks over the next five years.  The range of schemes is multi-modal and together aim to 
reduce congestion, improve access and connectivity, improve journey time reliability, and unlock 
key strategic economic development sites to help to connect people to places to jobs.  The SEP 
also proposes to join up cross-boundary ticketing between York and West Yorkshire, with the 
further development and roll out of smartcards under the Yorcard scheme.   

This LSTF bid supports and complements significant capital schemes within the LCR SEP, 
including a range of investments to support growth and address existing capacity problems for 
highways and public transport networks in the York area.  These measures include bus priority;
cycle network improvements; interchange improvements at the Railway Station; electric buses; 
traffic signal upgrades; Northern Outer Ring Road upgrade; the York Central access road and 
the James Street Link Road; and an additional new Park & Ride site at Clifton Moor. 

These capital schemes will all benefit from the support and additionality that the proposals set 
out in this LSTF bid will provide.  The revenue programme is acknowledged in Appendix 1 of the 
SEP (Transport Technical Annex) as being an important element in promoting economic growth 
and maximising the value of the capital investment in improving transport systems.  This bid 
directly supports the SEP through the delivery of spatial priorities. The existing i-Travel York 
programme targets the “Northern Quadrant” of the city, while this bid will extend the programme 
to the west and south of the city, to support the identified growth areas at York Central, British 
Sugar and Northminster Business Park.  The SEP identifies York Central and the former ABS 
site as having strategic importance in accelerating growth and that transport improvements form 
a key part of the necessary infrastructure to enable their development (see “Visions and Strategic 
Priorities” section).  The Holgate/Acomb/Poppleton corridor currently suffers high levels of 
congestion.  The extension of the i-Travel York project into this area will improve and promote 
sustainable modes of travel, including the new Park & Ride site on the A59 due to open in June 
2014, whilst the residential and workplace PTP service will influence travel behaviour of residents 
and employees alike. 

In the appendices, we have provided a letter of support from Leeds City Region LEP, showing 
their formal approval of and support for the i-Travel York bid.   

The York North Yorkshire East Riding (YNYER) LEP identifies congestion in York as a significant 
impediment to economic activity and growth potential in the area. It specifically supports the York 
schemes going forward through the LCR SEP in its “Collaboration” section, as well as endorsing 
sustainable travel modes under Priority 5 “A Well Connected Economy”. As such, the YNYER 
LEP has been happy to show its support for the programme by providing a letter, also appended. 

ANNEX CPage 101



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  6 

 

SECTION B The Business Case

 

B1. The Scheme - Summary 
Please give a detailed description of the scheme being proposed, including the objectives. 

 
Scheme summary 

The proposed scheme is to deliver a continuation of a number of highly successful elements of 
the i-Travel York scheme and to take some of these elements ‘to the next level’.  The scheme 
objectives are discussed in more detail in section B2. The scheme comprises the following: 

· Continuing to promote the i-Travel York brand and campaign messages across York and 
further enhancing the website and on-line services and apps to provide a one-stop shop for 
travel information and ongoing communications with project participants; 

· Low emissions roll out: following the successful initial delivery of a number of low emissions 
initiatives, we will continue to roll out the low emissions taxi incentive scheme, Plugged In 
Green Fleets scheme and City Car Club.  In addition, we will specifically market charging 
points, electric vehicles and car club solutions to employers through our employer travel 
planning service. We will also work with local bus operators to encourage them to introduce 
ultra-low emission vehicles in line with City of York Council’s electric bus roadmap;

· Employer travel planning service: having set up a thriving travel plan network in the first 
phase of LSTF, we will offer workplace PTP consultations with employers and their staff 
across the city.  We will then offer a full suite of further travel plan services to deepen 
employers’ engagement in travel planning, including assistance with developing travel plans, 
travel plan grants, trials of electric vehicles and car club cars and advice and support on 
implementing car park management strategies. This initiative enables inbound commuters, 
who have a much higher car based modal split, to be targeted;    

· Residential programme: we will offer an integrated residential programme of PTP, active 
travel promotion and Bike It focused on the Holgate, Acomb, Poppleton corridor. This major 
corridor suffers congestion and is a location of major employment and housing growth and 
has a new Park & Ride service coming on-stream. Furthermore, the neighbouring residential 
areas are below average in terms of health indices and levels of physical activity. Our road 
safety initiative will particularly target this area; 

· We will further develop our package of cycling support and promotion, including our 
successful annual Cycling Festival and Workplace Cycle Challenge. We will work with the 
Higher Education institutions to deliver a “Bike Hub” service to promote cycling amongst the 
student population. We will expand our Bike Belles programme, specifically encouraging 
women to cycle more;

· We will also develop a programme of bus enhancements, in association with the Better Bus 
Area status. Bus wardens and network monitoring officers will be retained to assist with 
maintaining and enhancing network reliability. The staffed travel information enquiry point at 
the rail station will be maintained.  The capacity of the community transport operation will be 
expanded alongside the development of a new brokerage service.  Enhancements to waiting 
facilities will be implemented in the target residential corridor.   

Scheme detail 

Below, we outline in detail the different scheme elements. 

ANNEX CPage 102



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  7 

 

1. Promotional campaign, communications and web services development 

Having developed the i-Travel York brand, City of York Council wants to utilise it as the long-term 
brand of sustainable travel promotion in York.  Over the 2015/16 period, we will undertake the 
following activities to further strengthen the brand and service offer. 

Further development of website and on-line services: 

A comprehensive website has been developed during the first phase of LSTF 
(www.itravelyork.info), which has become well known, with readership growing to 35,000 visits 
per month by February 2014. Our ambition is for this to become the ‘go to’ place and one stop 
shop for people travelling to and within York. We would like to further enhance the website and 
on-line comms as follows: 

· Enhancements to the three mobile apps we have developed (live traffic information, bus 
times and Park & Ride times and services), including seeking customer feedback and 
updating the apps and promoting them more intensively, including via employers and visitor 
arrival points in the city; 

· Content refresh, looking at current usage and updating the website according to customer 
demands and ensuring that up-to-date content is added. We will seek to integrate the 
website with 3rd party websites, such as visitor attractions and employers, so that they are 
using i-Travel York to power their travel information and thereby spread project awareness; 

· Further development of the personalised, interactive section of the website: we have 
developed the ‘MyTravelYork’ section of the website where individuals can sign up to the 
project, create their own profiles and receive news updates, events notifications and 
promotions from i-Travel York. We believe that this is vitally important for creating an 
ongoing dialogue with customers and building their loyalty towards the project.  By March 
2016, we will have grown membership to over 4,000 individuals.  As membership grows, the 
value of ongoing communications grows as does the ability to attract promotional offers.  

Continuing communications with a growing membership is a major element of developing a 
legacy for the i-Travel York programme. Our longer term ambition is to link membership of i-
Travel York with personal mobility accounts, with customers managing their payment for travel 
alongside receiving loyalty rewards and ongoing information updates. The development of 
smartcard products and mobility accounts is currently underway through West Yorkshire’s Better 
Bus Area Fund programme, which York is participating in. 

Ongoing communications and promotional campaign:  

i-Travel York has been highly successful to date at communicating the benefits of sustainable 
travel at the individual level. We will build brand awareness and broadcast these messages.  In
order to further build support and awareness, we need to start communicating the benefits at the 
City level: i.e. that encouraging people to make sustainable travel choices helps to reduce 
congestion, improves reliability of trips, improves air quality and helps protect the unique asset of 
the City Centre, so vital for our tourism and visitor industry.  This linkage between the promotion 
of sustainable travel and the broader ambitions of the City needs to be communicated - 
particularly to stakeholders - to build support as we move forward with more ambitious parts of 
our transport strategy and economic growth strategy.  This element will include development of a 
PR strategy, identification of appropriate ‘city-level’ messages to communicate and brokering 
discussions with stakeholders to build their support.  The brand will continue to be promoted 
through various media channels to continue to maintain and build awareness.  

ANNEX CPage 103



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  8 

 

2. Low emissions roll out 

York was one of the first authorities in the UK to develop a Low Emissions Strategy and, during 
the first phase of LSTF, we have delivered a range of low emissions initiatives through this,
including the introduction of electric buses, low emissions taxis, electric vehicle charging points 
and a roadshow to promote low emissions vehicles.  We have the long-term ambition and a road 
map to electrify the majority of the bus fleet within the next 5 years (anticipated to be part funded 
by the LCR LEP growth fund bid), as well as to develop a freight consolidation centre and 
provide a low emissions City Centre delivery system. Specifically, we seek assistance from the 
LSTF to roll out the following schemes to address York’s air quality problems and carbon 
reduction agenda: 

Low emission taxi incentive scheme: offering a small grant to taxi drivers to purchase a hybrid 
or electric vehicle.  Following successful development of this scheme during the initial LSTF 
period, we have a waiting list of taxi drivers who want to utilise the scheme.  The longer-term 
ambition is that as the proportion of low emissions taxis gets towards 20% of the fleet, word of 
mouth and personal commendations will encourage further taxi drivers to select a low emissions 
vehicle when replacing their current vehicle. This scheme will generate 5600kg CO2 savings per 
year per vehicle and 95% PM10 savings. 

Plugged in Green Fleets scheme: in order to encourage employers to take up low emissions 
vehicles, we will provide a grant to employers to install a charging point at their workplace and 
the loan of an electric vehicle in order to trial it for a 2-3 month period. The rationale for this is 
that many employers are reluctant to make the initial investment in electric vehicles, but once 
they have seen them in operation, will see the benefits and cost savings they provide.  We 
therefore want funding to deliver a total of 12 charging points at employer locations in business 
parks around York as well as to lease one new electric vehicle so we have two vehicles we can 
loan.  We will promote this offer to workplaces through our employer travel planning package.   

City Car Club extension: City Car Club has enjoyed significant expansion in York over the 
LSTF period, partly assisted by the Council’s Travel Plan and adoption of the car club vehicles 
for Council business travel.  We will expand this by encouraging businesses to consider car club 
vehicles for occasional business travel so that they can save business mileage costs. This will 
help overcome the common barrier we face when promoting sustainable travel modes for 
commuting that “I occasionally need my car for business”. Similar to the Plugged in Fleets roll 
out, we will offer employers and business parks the opportunity to host a City Car Club car for a 
trial period.  City Car Club will co-fund provision of a vehicle at these new locations, together with 
discounted membership and some free drive time to encourage initial use. We will promote 
membership through the workplace engagement.  We plan to deliver 3 car club cars at business 
parks / employers across York through this approach in a way that becomes self-sustaining.  

Switched On Roadshow: we will market the uptake of low emissions vehicles via our Switch On 
Roadshow, which will attract over 1,000 people. We will provide test drives of electric vehicles 
and electric bikes and demonstrate a low emission City Car Club car.  We will provide people 
with the opportunity to sign up to the car club and offer any York employers the chance to sign up 
to the electric vehicle or car club trial.   

ANNEX CPage 104



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  9 

 

3. Employer travel planning service  

Engaging employers in workplace travel planning is a significant component of the i-Travel York 
programme. Having set up a hugely successful Travel Plan Network and established positive
working relationships with a large number of major employers, we would like to utilise the 
2015/16 LSTF bid to take employer engagement ‘to the next level’, by offering the workplace 
PTP service and, alongside this, bringing in a suite of travel plan services to deepen employer 
engagement in travel planning and embed it into their business practices to ensure a legacy. 

Workplace travel plan network: We will continue to operate the workplace travel plan network 
in its current, successful format.  As we move forwards, we hope to grow membership to more 
than 100 employers and be able to source more contributions from York employers showcasing 
successful schemes and measures they have implemented in association with i-Travel York. We 
shall also continue to support the Sustainable Travel Initiative award as part of the York Press 
annual Business Awards.  

Workplace PTP service: sessions are arranged with the employer where staff can have a one to 
one consultation with an i-Travel York adviser who will provide information on their journey 
options to work.  These sessions will be carefully designed in consultation with the workplace 
contact to ensure they are offered at the right time in the right place to engage the maximum
number of staff.  Budget is sought to provide capacity to offer one to one consultations with 3,500 
staff. 

Active Travel workplace support service: in association with the PTP sessions, we will bring a 
range of services to staff, including cycle training, Dr Bike, cycle try out sessions and loan 
schemes, assisted cycle purchase and mobile cycle shops, public transport season ticket loans, 
registering for York carshare scheme and City Car Club.  We will offer employers an ongoing 
‘active travel support service’ through a membership scheme whereby employer make a small 
contribution to provide ongoing access to the above services. 

Workplace Travel Plan support: when we meet with employers to plan the workplace PTP 
session, we will introduce our broader travel plan services and discuss which elements they 
would like to engage with us on, including: 

· Assistance with developing their travel plan and advice and support on how to deliver certain 
travel plan measures; 

· Access to Travel Plan grant (below); 

· Signing up to using ionTravel – City of York’s travel plan monitoring tool - and initial support 
in starting to use the tool; 

· Accreditation of their travel plan on our Bronze, Silver and Gold award scheme (linked to 
Sustainable Travel Initiatives business awards); 

· Low emissions pilot: we will introduce the Plugged In Fleet and City Car Club offers to 
employers to establish their interest and potential to take part in a trial; 

· Car park management advice to support the travel plan (including potential to manage 
demand more effectively by introducing car share preferential parking, car park permit 
schemes or charging regimes). 

Travel plan grants: to support the above, we would like to offer small, matched funding grants to 
support the implementation of travel plan measures, such as installing secure cycle parking, 
providing car sharing parking spaces or developing their car park management system.  These 
grants would be to a maximum of £5,000 and would require a 50% match from the employer. 

Through the above package, we will provide intense engagement in travel planning with a range 
of employers in York, representing a large volume of the work force.  We will particularly target 
employers with whom we have already established relationships through the Workplace Travel 
Plan network, as well as employers in the three business parks (York, Northminster and Holgate 
Business Parks) on our target congestion corridor of Holgate Road. 

ANNEX CPage 105



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  10 

 

4. Residential travel planning programme 

We will continue to offer our highly successful residential PTP service, Bike It officer service and 
Active Leisure engagements. To maximise impact, these activities will focus on a particular 
corridor and be delivered in parallel.  The selected corridor is the Holgate/Acomb/ Poppleton 
area.  The reasons for targeting this corridor are manifold.  New transport infrastructure, in the 
form of Poppleton Park & Ride is coming on-stream in mid-2014 (served by a fleet of electric 
buses) to complement recently installed bus priorities along the A59 corridor.  There is significant 
employment growth occurring along this corridor, notably at York, Northminster and Holgate 
business parks and mixed use development is beginning at the British Sugar site and York 
Central. These developments could significantly increase congestion on this corridor without 
positive intervention.  Additionally, this residential area has poor health outcomes and will 
particularly benefit from an increased uptake in active travel modes.  Therefore our programme is 
as follows: 

Personal Travel Planning programme: We will target 7,000 households in the Holgate, Acomb, 
Poppleton corridor for personal travel planning, utilising the same proven methodology that has 
been employed to date, whereby our team of i-Travel York advisers approach households to 
engage them in a conversation about their travel issues and offer ideas, resources and 
incentives for trying out alternative sustainable travel options.  This service will be delivered from 
mid-April to the end of August 2015, coinciding with the best weather for people to contemplate 
alternatives.  A number of community events will be run in the area to broaden visibility and 
reach of the project.  A range of supporting services will be offered to households including cycle 
training, sign up to the York carshare database, discounted public transport tickets and 
signposting to other services, including the Active Leisure walks and bike rides.   

Active Leisure local walks and bike rides: During this phase of LSTF, we have set up a 
programme of health walks and social bike rides across the City, led by volunteers and 
supported and managed by the Council’s Sport and Active Leisure service. Currently, there are 
291 walk and bike ride events being run each year, which have been attended by a total of 3,563 
people.  LSTF funding will enable a series of 48 walking and cycling events to be developed in 
the target area, as well as supporting the current programme of walks and rides across the City. 
In addition, we will also deliver led walks and rides through a GP referral scheme. The Priory 
Medical Group which has 2 practices in the target area, has expressed a willingness to offer led 
walks and rides to patients as a ‘green prescription’.

Bike It Schools: We will deliver our successful Bike It schools programme, recruiting a further 6 
schools within the target corridor (circa 2,500 pupils), as well as continuing to work with the 20 
schools already engaged during the first phase of the LSTF programme (circa 10,000 pupils). 

Road safety promotion: We will continue our road safety promotion campaigns that were 
developed during the first phase of LSTF.  The Institute of Advanced Motorists’ Momentum 
course teachers advanced driving skills and we subsidise attendance on this course, targeting 
younger drivers and elderly drivers who are more at risk at being involved in a road traffic 
accident.  The target residential area is relatively low income and contains a higher proportion of 
young drivers in the high risk socio-demographic groups (according to MAST statistics). We 
would like to continue this initiative by providing funding for 80 places on the course during the 
2015/16 financial year. Through the residential PTP and schools engagement, we will also 
encourage people to sign up to our “Journey Safe York” campaign where people express their 
personal commitment to being considerate road users. 

ANNEX CPage 106



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  11 

 

5. Cycling City  

York is the third cycling city in the UK after Cambridge and Oxford. Our previous Cycling City 
project and subsequent LSTF programme have continued the investment and growth in cycling 
which we will build on in the 2015/16 programme as follows: 

Cycling Festival: We will continue to run our hugely successful annual Cycling Festival in 
September 2015. This celebratory weekend event attracted over 10,000 people in 2013 and 
offered cycle try outs, bike maintenance, as well as being an important affirmation of the positive 
role cycling plays in York.   

Workplace and Community Cycle Challenge: We will continue to run the annual Cycle 
Challenge which has grown over the last years to record participation in 2013, with 1,671 
participants who cumulatively cycled over 126,000 miles during the 3-week Challenge period.
This included 345 new cyclists and there was a 6% modal shift away from the car to the bike for 
work trips. The Challenge is programmed for July 2014, taking place at the same time as Tour 
De France, so we anticipate huge interest and participation this year. But, with our proposed 
intense engagement with employers during 2015/16, we anticipate the Challenge being taken up 
by even more people next year. 

Bike Belles programme: We have launched our Bike Belles programme in the last year as part 
of our strategy for addressing the relatively low uptake of cycling amongst women. The 
programme has already generated huge interest and exceeded its initial targets, with over 500 
women engaged by the project, 40 champions recruited (target 20) and 30 organisations 
engaged (target 20).   As well as championing women’s cycling, the project seeks to identify 
barriers to cycling so that City of York can address these and identify positive messages to 
enhance cycling take up and provide appropriate cycling activities for women to begin to 
participate. We are linking the Bike Belles programme to our workplace engagement, with Bike 
Belles events being run in association with PTP stalls and seeking to recruit internal champions 
to promote women’s cycling in the workplaces. Given the huge interest and enthusiasm that has 
been generated for the programme to date, we would like to build on it in 2015/16. 

York Universities and College Cycling Initiative: We propose a bold new initiative with the 
major HEFE organisations in the City - namely University of York, York St John University and 
York College - to increase cycling to campus amongst students and staff.  We propose to do this 
by having a dedicated staff member, programme of engagement activities, training and support 
of staff and student volunteers and development of a Cycle Hub, initially at the University of York.  
A key element in this initiative will be the development of a Cycle Hub at the University of York, 
which may lead to the development of similar Hubs at the other two organisations. The University 
of York has offered to match fund the provision of the bike hub building and equipping it.  The 
intention is for the hub to be partly self-financing from year 2 onwards through revenue received 
for its services and partly subsidised by the University as part of its travel plan promotion 
commitments.  This model has been successfully implemented at University of Leeds and Leeds 
Metropolitan University, where their hubs have continued to operate for 5 years, with a mix of 
university funding and revenue generation through their services. 

Led rides: A programme of guided cycle rides, supported by our Sports and Active Leisure team 
and volunteer ride leaders, will be available throughout the City as well as specifically in the 
target residential corridor.  A seasonal timetable is released each quarter with around four guided 
rides scheduled, for a range of abilities.  The team is also running 10 rides designed for novices, 
older adults and people living with a disability or medical condition this summer.  The Sports and 
Active Leisure team is offering cycle taster sessions at four major community events in 2014.  To 
support these activities, the Sky Ride Local programme will deliver some 35 guided bike rides in 
2014, where British Cycling ride leaders guide participants of all abilities along scenic planned 
routes.  British Cycling’s Breeze programme will also run a number of free guided rides for 
women.  In addition, a major annual traffic-free Sky Ride will take place in York in September as 
part of the City’s Cycling Festival. Last year, the Sky Ride York event attracted 8,000 people.   

Cycle training: We will continue to offer cycle training to adults and families who request it,
through the residential and employment programmes. Based on levels of demand to date, we are 
seeking funding to provide 425 hours of training sessions. 

ANNEX CPage 107



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  12 

 

6. Bus promotion 

Through the LSTF, Better Bus Area fund and Green Bus Fund, we have been able to take 
forward a number of bus initiatives including provision of enhanced information, including mobile 
apps and near field communications in bus stops; upgrades to city centre bus stops, including 
RTI installation; wi-fi on Park & Ride and the Leeds to York bus routes; better management of the 
highway network using UTMC and on street bus wardens; and assisting operators with purchase 
of electric vehicles. 

In response to our measures, the bus operators have reported patronage growth and First Bus 
has responded by cutting its bus fares. 

These and other initiatives continue to be pursued via York's recent designation as one of five 
Better Bus Areas, where operators invest a proportion of their commercial BSOG into highway 
measures and operational improvements to improve service reliability. 

We would specifically like to support these measures with the following: 

Better Bus network management and information services: supporting two Bus Wardens, 
with a crucial role in assisting passengers and keeping buses moving in York city centre, two 
Network Monitoring Officers, who manage traffic flows to maintain headways and punctuality on 
the bus network, and staffing a “Bus Passenger Enquiry Point” at York Rail Station;

Community transport extension and information service. Match funding has been secured 
from the new Vangarde retail park which will enable the purchase of a fifth Dial-a-Ride vehicle 
and pump priming of additional services in 2014/15 to increase connectivity for the least mobile 
parts of the community, particularly focusing on enhanced transport links between York’s rural 
villages, the northern quadrant and York city centre. We will further expand services into 
2015/16, including addressing unmet needs in the target Holgate, Acomb, Poppleton corridor. 
We will also develop a brokerage service, so that i-Travel York can provide advice on journey 
options for unmet needs.   

Bus stop enhancement programme in the target residential Holgate, Acomb, Poppleton 
corridor which will be looking to improve awareness and perception and increase use of the bus. 
20 well-used bus stops will receive upgrades to improve the waiting environment for passengers.  

B2. The Strategic Case  
This section should set out the rationale for making the investment and evidence on the 
strategic fit of the proposal including a clear explanation of economic impacts on the area in
question in terms of a) its contribution to the local economy and b) impact on transport. 
Please explain how your proposal meets the objectives of the fund:

The strategic case for York 

York’s economic future and environmental future are intertwined. As a Science City and regional 
centre of learning, York’s knowledge-based and tourist economies are dependent on protecting 
the City’s special environment.  York’s economic growth potential is unique in the North of 
England and there is high demand for population growth and employment growth. The Local 
Plan has aspirations of providing 1,100 homes per year and 1,000 jobs per year over the next 15 
years to accommodate this demand.   

However, the historic nature of York means its transport network is highly constrained and any 
rise in traffic congestion risks dampening economic growth, as well as detracting from the City’s 
environmental asset.  Modelling shows that the desired growth in York over the next 15 years will 
make congestion 2 to 3 times worse unless a major mode shift is realized.  For over 25 years, 
York has pursued a policy of maximising the facilities for and uptake of sustainable travel modes, 
in order to try to manage traffic levels so that growth can be accommodated without causing 
unacceptable congestion and negative environmental impacts. 

York has been a pioneering City – implementing its network of City Centre footstreets in the 
1980s, developing a comprehensive Park & Ride network (recognised as one of the best in the 
country and carrying over 4m passengers per year) and continuing to invest in the cycle network 

ANNEX CPage 108



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  13 

 

such that York is the third cycling city in the country, in terms of mode share, with levels of 
cycling to work reaching 15%. We are also the first authority to develop an holistic Low 
Emissions Strategy. 

We continue to develop our ambitious transport vision and long-term strategy.  We are currently 
adding to the ring of Park & Rides around the city through our ongoing Access York strategy 
which will expand the capacity of the Park & Ride network by 1,150 spaces (30%). York’s 
successful bid for Better Bus Area status is allowing significant improvements to the bus network 
to be made in terms of real time information provision, bus priority measures and 
waiting/interchange facilities. The consequent improvement in bus reliability has seen bus 
patronage increase by up to 10% on some routes and the major bus operator, First, has cut fares 
by 25-30% in response to this. Through our Low Emissions Strategy, we have an ambition to 
move to a predominantly electric / low emissions bus and taxi fleet over the next 5 years, as well 
as to develop a freight consolidation centre to serve the City Centre via electric vehicles.  Our 
continued roll out of 20mph zones is improving road safety for vulnerable road users and the 
quality of the environment in our residential areas 

We also aspire to be a Smart City.  Our on-line and mobile travel information systems – that the 
first LSTF phase has helped to deliver – are transforming the quality and availability of transport 
information. We are working with local bus operators and regional partners to deliver a range of 
smart ticketing solutions.  In the future, we want to link smart cards and mobility accounts to the 
ongoing customer relationship management provided by i-Travel York.  .  

The original LSTF bid was developed in close alignment with the Council’s Local Transport Plan 
and strongly supports three of York’s five LTP3 key themes, namely:   

· Providing Quality Alternatives to the car to enable more trips to be undertaken by 
sustainable means; 

· Encouraging Behavioural Change to maximise the use of walking, cycling and public 
transport options; 

· Tackling Transport Emissions to reduce the release of pollutants harmful to health and the 
environment. 

Specifically, our 2015/16 LSTF programme will support economic growth by: 

· Working intensively with employers, tackling peak-hour commuting which will help combat 
congestion and improve productivity of the workforce by reducing disruption to the working 
day caused by parking problems; 

· Reducing congestion on a key corridor (Holgate Road) where high levels of employment and 
housing growth are occurring; 

· Reducing the costs of business travel to employers who participate in the pilot of electric 
vehicles and car club vehicles; 

· The promotion of sustainable and active travel modes will improve the health of the 
population with impacts on productivity as well as increasing access to employment 
opportunities; 

· York’s knowledge-based and tourist economies are dependent upon the City’s 
environmental asset, so reducing congestion and promoting sustainable travel modes 
protects and enhances this ‘selling point’. Conversely, unchecked traffic growth is identified 
as a major threat to York achieving its economic and development ambitions. 

The scheme will support carbon reduction by: 

· The promotion of sustainable travel alternatives to the car, reducing individuals’ carbon 
footprint; 

· As shown during the first phase of LSTF, growth in bus use has led to service improvements 
and fares reductions, which further increase the attractiveness of the bus vs. car. The new 
electric Park & Ride service will be heavily promoted in our work on the Holgate Road 
corridor; 

· Continuing with the roll out of low emission taxis, electric vehicles and the expansion of the 
car club dramatically reduces carbon emissions so that uptake of these vehicles gets to a 

ANNEX CPage 109



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  14 

 

critical mass where word of mouth spreads their uptake to the broader population. As the 
network of electric vehicle charging points become more widespread, it builds more 
confidence amongst potential buyers. 

The scheme will support health and quality of life by: 

· promoting the uptake of sustainable and active travel modes amongst the general 
population; 

· specifically targeting those with below average health and physical activity levels through the 
residential programme, which focuses on an area with poorer health outcomes. A part of the 
active travel promotion here will include working with 3 GP practices on their health referral 
schemes; 

· the Momentum course specifically targets high risk drivers to improve their road safety, both 
for themselves and for the communities they live in; 

· anecdotal evidence from our behaviour change work to date shows that those who change 
to sustainable travel modes regularly cite quality of life benefits, such as reduced stress 
during the journey, as well as mental wellbeing benefits. 

The proposed programme also directly supports other key elements of the fund, namely: 

· Door to Door Strategy: our positioning of i-Travel York as the ‘one-stop’ shop of travel 
information, together with web, mobile and on-street journey planning and real time 
information services contributes to the ethos of the seamless door to door journey.  We will 
market the new All York multi-operator ticket through the programme and we are working 
with regional colleagues on the development and roll out of the Yorcard smartcard project; 

· The Cycling Revolution: we are the UK’s third cycling city and experience in the first phase 
of LSTF has shown that cycling is the mode of most potential for replacing car trips. We will 
continue the upward trajectory by maintaining this investment in our existing successful 
cycling initiatives, as well as to increasingly target women and students through new, 
specially designed schemes.  

 

B3. The Economic Case Value for Money 

This section should set out the full range of impacts both beneficial and adverse in relation to

the economic, environmental, social and distributional impacts of a proposal.

This section describes the value for money case for the LSTF bid. Many revenue measures are 
challenging to perform standard economic appraisal on.  We have therefore focused on areas 
where we have better quantifiable evidence and so the appraisal concentrates on four areas, 
namely the Residential programme, Workplace programme, Low Emissions Roll Out and Better 
Bus initiatives, before combining the results in an overall assessment.   

Residential travel planning programme: 

Monitoring of residential PTP in York to date has shown impressive results in terms of the 
proportion of people increasing their levels of walking, cycling and bus use, and reducing their 
use of the car.  

A net of 31% of participants in the 2013 PTP programme said they were driving less, estimating 
that reduction at 24 miles per week on average.   

The proposed project extension will secure 2,800 additional participants.  If it generates the same 
impact, we can assume that 868 participants will reduce their level of driving by 24 miles per 
week average.  If this figure is then annualised, it suggests a reduction in car miles driven of 
1,110,720 miles per year.  If a decongestion benefit of 13.1p / km is assumed (WebTag Unit A5-
4), this implies a benefit of £231k. 

In addition to the decongestion benefit, the reduction in car use and increase in use of 
sustainable travel modes may be expected to have generated health benefits. 37% of 
participants said they were walking more, by an average 118 minutes more per week. 38% of 

ANNEX CPage 110



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  15 

 

participants said they were cycling more, by an average of 93 minutes per week.   Using a 
method for assessing health benefits as laid out in WebTag Unit A5-1 Active Mode Appraisal, the 
increase in cycling and walking implies a health benefit of £206k per annum. In addition, there 
are expected to be benefits relating to carbon reduction, noise reduction, air quality improvement 
and road safety improvement.   

The Bike It initiative, which aims to increase cycling (and other active modes of travel) to school 
led to a 6.6 percentage point increase in pupils cycling regularly to school and a 9.2% reduction 
in car use during the first year intense programme.  If a similar impact is delivered with the 6 
target schools (2,500 pupils), this will deliver £14k of decongestion benefits and £53k of health 
benefits. 

Other elements of the residential travel planning package have not been appraised. The benefit 
of these two major elements against the total scheme costs are 2.92, based on an assumption 
that the benefits of the scheme only last for three years. 

Employer travel planning package: 

The workplace PTP programme will secure at least 3,500 participants, as well as exposing a 
much wider workforce to i-Travel York and sustainable travel options.  Our workplace PTP 
consultant previously conducted a scheme at Longbenton, Newcastle which achieved a 10 
percentage point reduction in car use to work.  If the impact of this scheme is similar, we can 
assume that 350 people will reduce their level of driving.  Based on an average car commute 
distance of 6.2 miles in York (from LSTF baseline monitoring survey), if we annualise this figure 
for work purposes (253 days per year), this would generate a reduction in car distance of 
902,720 km per year.  If a decongestion benefit of 24p / km is assumed (higher than for 
residential PTP as most work journeys will be peak hour trips when decongestion benefits are 
more significant, based on a conservative interpretation of WebTag Unit A5-4), this would imply 
an overall decongestion benefit of £216k, giving a benefit cost ratio of 2.79:1. This excludes any 
calculation of health benefits, carbon reduction, air quality improvements, road safety 
enhancements or reduction in noise. With the addition of quantified health benefits from 
increased levels of cycling, the benefit cost ratio rises to 3.87:1 for this scheme element. 

Again, we have not assessed the benefits of other elements of the work package and have 
assumed that the above benefits only last for three years, but when these benefits are put 
against the total cost for the Workplace Package, it still generates a benefit of 3.72. 

Low Emissions Scheme: 

This scheme sets out to reduce the impact of car use by reducing the emissions generated from 
vehicles. The quantified impacts of two central elements of the scheme have been assessed. 
First, the low emissions taxi initiative has been assessed, based on the assumption that 20 
conventional taxis will be replace by 20 hybrid vehicles. This brings quantified benefits in terms of 
reduced emissions and lower vehicle operating costs as a result of lowered fuel consumption.  
Over a 6 year appraisal period, this generates a BCR of 2.38, largely due to the comparatively
small contribution made to the cost of new vehicles.   The Plugged in Fleets scheme delivers 
similar benefits by converting conventional petrol cars to electric vehicles, delivering a BCR of 
2.24.  

Better Bus Promotion: 

This aspect of the bid aims to promote bus use through improvements in reliability to the bus 
network through the use of warden, and also through the operation of a bus enquiry point. This 
provides decongestion benefits of £91k per annum.  The Community Bus element providing new 
services in the Acomb area brings benefits to those without access to other transport, generating 
value of time benefits of around £6k per year, although this brings much greater social and 
distributional impacts.    

ANNEX CPage 111



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  16 

 

Overall Scheme Benefits 

The table below summarises the Value for Money of the overall bid. It shows an overall Benefit 
Cost Ratio for the whole package of 2.94.   

Element Overall Scheme
Note the Present Value of Costs (PVC) is lower 

than the total value of the scheme bid. This is a 

result of discounting both benefits and costs from 

existing values to 2010 values in line with DfT 

guidance, thus allowing a consistent treatment 

when comparing different schemes. As both the 

costs and benefits have been discounted the 

results are consistent when estimating the Net 

Present Value and Benefit:Cost Ratio. 

Present value of cost (PVC) £836,139

Present value of benefit (PVB) £2,456,917

Net present value (NPV) £1,620,778

Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) 2.94

As mentioned above, this appraisal is partial as several elements are difficult to assess. 
Specifically the following items have not been directly appraised and we show the anticipated 
impact of these programme elements below: 

· Promotions, comms and web development work: we feel this provides a vital underpinning to 
the rest of the campaign items. We anticipate growing website hits from 35k currently to 50k 
per month as well as securing 4k registered MyTravelYork users; 

· Switched on Roadshow, which has previously attracted over 1,000 visitors and we feel is an 
important element in broadening awareness of low emission vehicles in order to cascade 
their uptake; 

· The continued operation of the Workplace Travel Plan network, which will seek to grow 
membership to above 100 organisations. This is a vital gateway into engaging employers in 
further activities; 

· Workplace travel plan assistance and travel plan grant which will help employers to develop 
their travel plans and deliver sustainable transport measures to further enhance uptake; 

· Staff active travel support service which will help to sustain sustainable travel use in the 
workplace after conducting the initial workplace PTP programme; 

· Driver safety courses for 80 at risk road users; 

· Bike Belles programme which will engage at least 30 employers and recruit at least 40 
champions to promote cycle uptake amongst women; 

· 425 hours of cycle confidence training for adults and families; 

· Led walks and cycle rides which will engage at least 4,500 people in walking, specifically 
targeting people with below average physical activity levels; 

· 35 British Cycling local Sky Ride events, plus the large annual York Sky Ride event which 
aims to attract 8,000 participants. 

The nature of an ambitious sustainable travel programme such as i-Travel York is that offering a 
comprehensive programme of ways to engage different target audiences spreads awareness 
and builds participation. We are therefore confident that the true benefit cost ratio will be greater 
than that shown.   

 
  

ANNEX CPage 112



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  17 

 

B4. The Financial Case Project Costs 

Before preparing a scheme proposal for submission, bid promoters should ensure they understand 
the financial implications of developing the scheme (including any implications for future spend and
ongoing maintenance and operating costs), and the need to secure and underwrite any necessary 

funding outside the Department s maximum contribution.

Table A: Funding profile (Nominal terms) 
 

000s 2015-
16

2016-
17

2017-
18

2018-
19

2019 - 
20

2020 - 
21

Total

DfT funding sought 1000      1000

Local Authority 
contribution

0 200 200 200 200 200 1000

Third Party contribution 
including LGF

180 115 105 25 25 25 475

TOTAL 1180 315 305 225 225 225 2475

Our bid is for £1m DfT revenue funding, which will be supported by £180k of local third party 
revenue funding in 2015/16 (as shown in A6).  For future years, we have committed at least 
£200k per annum local authority contribution to maintain the i-Travel York project. This is 
because as the brand and programme develops, more of it is becoming embedded within 
Council transport programmes and it is becoming an efficient means for delivering sustainable 
travel initiatives.   

For third party contributions, we include future year agreed revenue spending from the bus 
operators through the Better Bus Area. We also cite £25k third party annual contribution towards 
ionTravel software for managing travel plans. The Council now requires large planning 
permissions to develop a Travel Plan and to utilise the Council’s software system to manage it 
and planning policies have been established where developer contributions are sought towards 
ionTravel. The £25k figure represents what we believe we will secure in 2014/15 and into the 
future. We are very confident that further match funding sources will materialise in time, just as 
we have identified significant potential sources for this year (A6). 

 

B5. Management Case - Delivery  
 
Deliverability is one of the essential criteria for this Fund and as such any bid should set out any
necessary statutory procedures that are needed before it can be constructed. 

a) A detailed project plan (typically in Gantt chart form) with milestones should be included,
covering the period from submission of the bid to scheme completion. The definition of the
key milestones should be clear and explained. The critical path should be identifiable and
any key dependencies (internal or external) should also be explained. Resource
requirements, task durations and contingency should be detailed and easily identifiable.
Dependencies and interfaces should be clearly outlined and plans for management detailed.

 
A project plan gantt chart is appended. 
The project plan is relatively straightforward, as most of these elements are established 
workstreams that will carry on into 2015/16. As this is a revenue scheme, there are few 
dependencies upon other elements being delivered. In order to be able to begin delivery 
immediately from April 2015, we will internally support preparatory works to get the workstreams 
ready between any announcement of funding and March 2015. We are already beginning to

ANNEX CPage 113



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  18 

 

work with employers, so we will be able to programme interventions for next year during this 
financial year, so that delays in establishing relationships do not occur.

b) Where relevant, if delivery of the project is dependent on land acquisition, please include a
letter from the respective land owner(s) to demonstrate that arrangements are in place in
order to secure the land to enable the authority to meet its construction milestones.

N/A 

c) Where relevant, please provide summary details of your construction milestones (at least one 
but no more than 5 or 6) between start and completion of works: 

The bid is not dependent upon construction of any capital schemes. A number of schemes to be
delivered using funding from the Local Growth Fund, West Yorkshire Plus Transport Fund, Better
Bus Area and Council resources will complement and be complemented by the revenue
elements progressed through this bid.

Table C: Construction milestones: N/A 
 

 

B6. Management Case Statutory Powers and Consents

a) Please list separately each power / consents etc obtained, details of date acquired, challenge
period (if applicable) and date of expiry of powers and conditions attached to them. Any key
dates should be referenced in your project plan.

No statutory powers required to deliver the scheme. 
 

b) Please list separately any outstanding statutory powers / consents etc, including the
timetable for obtaining them.

N/A 

 

B7. Management Case Governance

Please name who is responsible for delivering the scheme, the roles (Project Manager, SRO 
etc.) and responsibilities of those involved, and how key decisions are/will be made. An
organogram may be useful here. Details around the organisation of the project including Board 
accountabilities, contract management arrangements, tolerances, and decision making 
authorities should be clearly documented and fully agreed. 

This extension to the existing LSTF programme will be implemented using the same governance 
arrangements which were established to deliver the first phase of the scheme. The programme
of works will be directed by the Assistant Director (Highways, Waste and Transport) acting as
SRO. Project Management will be provided by David Short who is the existing dedicated LSTF
Project Manager. He will use resources from an internal LSTF team, existing teams across the
Council including transport planning, sports and active leisure, highways and environmental
protection, and third party suppliers. Project leads will be responsible for delivering the packages
of measures.
A stakeholder steering group provides input, scrutiny and dissemination of the programme.
Delivery of the programme and escalation of key issues will be reported on a regular basis to the 
Cabinet Member for Planning, Sustainability and Transport in the Council.
An organogram is appended. 

 

ANNEX CPage 114



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  19 

 

B8. Management Case - Risk Management 
All schemes will be expected to undertake a thorough risk assessment and a detailed risk 
register should be included in the bid. The risk assessment should be proportionate to the nature 
and complexity of the scheme. A Risk Management Strategy should be developed and should 
outline on how risks will be managed.

A risk management strategy for the bid is appended.

 

B9. Management Case - Stakeholder Management
The bid should demonstrate that the key stakeholders, Local Enterprise Partnerships, and their 
interests have been identified and considered as appropriate. These could include other local 
authorities, the Highways Agency, statutory consultees, landowners, transport operators, 
voluntary sector, local residents, utilities companies etc. This is particularly important in respect 
of any bids related to structures that may require support of Network Rail and, possibly, train 
operating companies.

a) Please provide a summary of your strategy for managing stakeholders, with details of the key
stakeholders together with a brief analysis of their influences and interests.

Since i-Travel York is an existing programme, governance structures are already in place (ref. 
B7) and stakeholder relationships are established (ref. A8).  In terms of stakeholder 
management: 

Stakeholder group: a stakeholder group, comprising Councillors, Quality Bus Partnership 
rep., business, community and environmental interests meets quarterly to review project 
progress and offer scrutiny and assistance with the programme;

LEP: this bid is aligned with the Leeds City Region LEP (ref. A9). A number of the schemes 
in the LEP support and complement proposed i-Travel York initiatives. City of York Council 
officers are collaborating with West Yorkshire partners in the development of the transport 
strategy and priority schemes in the SEP;

Quality Bus Partnership: the QBP brings together bus operator interests and identifies priority 
measures to enhance the bus network. Our proposed i-Travel York measures in this bid 
complement the broader work programme being undertaken through the QBP, via Better 
Bus Area fund and LTP investments; 

• Travel Plan Network: the TPN brings together employer travel planning interests, with over
80 members and regular monthly forums;

 
An element of this bid is to enhance ‘city-level’ communications in order to successfully 
communicate the benefits of i-Travel York, particularly to broader stakeholder groups, in order to
harness and grow support and help develop further partnerships. 

 
b) Can the scheme be considered as controversial in any way?

Yes  No 
 

c) Have there been any external campaigns either supporting or opposing the scheme?

Yes  No

 

B10. The Commercial Case 
Please provide evidence of the viability of a proposal and, where relevant, the procurement 
strategy that will be used to engage the market. This should include evidence that you are able to
mobilise and begin to deliver at the start of the funding period if successful. 

ANNEX CPage 115



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  20 

 

It is the promoting authority s responsibility to decide whether or not their scheme proposal is

lawful; and the extent of any new legal powers that need to be sought. Scheme promoters
should ensure that any project complies with the Public Contracts Regulations as well as
European Union State Aid rules, and should be prepared to provide the Department with
confirmation of this, if required.

 
Most of the scheme elements we are proposing are extensions to existing successful delivery 
streams and we have internal staff and third party suppliers in place to continue these.   

The PR and comms workstream, Low Emissions scheme and Better Bus promotion work is 
currently being delivered internally by City of York Council staff.  The Active Travel led walks and 
rides are co-ordinated by our Active Leisure colleagues, in association with a network of 
volunteers. 

A number of delivery partners are procured to deliver other aspects of the programme, including: 

· Castlegate IT, a York-based IT firm, developed the website and are retained by the Council 
for ongoing maintenance and further development; 

· Sustrans is delivering the existing Bike It and Bike Belles programmes; 

· JMP, a consultancy specialising in sustainable transport, is delivering the residential PTP 
and workplace PTP elements; 

· Challenge for Change are providing our annual workplace and community cycle challenge; 

· Get Cycling, a York-based community interest company, assists with running the annual 
Cycling Festival. 

These firms have contributed their expertise and assessment of costs for delivering the next 
phase of the programme and are potentially available to deliver the scheme elements. Where it is 
necessary or desirable to open up delivery elements to competitive tenders, we have the 
experience of procuring this work from the first phase of LSTF. Should our bid be successful, our 
procurement would be able to take place after July 2014 so that partners are in place before April 
2015.   

We will also make preparations for the next phase between July 2014 and March 2015, so that 
implementation can begin immediately in April 2015. 

 

SECTION C Monitoring, Evaluation and Benefits Realisation 

 

C1. Monitoring and Evaluation
Evaluation is an essential part of scheme development and should be considered and built into 
the planning of a scheme from the earliest stages. Evaluating the outcomes and impacts of
schemes is important to show if a scheme has been successful.
Please set out how you plan to measure and report on the benefits alongside any other 
outcomes and impacts of the scheme:

 
Since the commencement of i-Travel York in 2011, City of York Council has been committed to 
monitoring the progress of the delivery and outcomes of the programme. 

In 2012, a Monitoring and Evaluation Framework was prepared to assist all i-Travel York project 
managers and partners to ensure that monitoring and evaluation was an integral part of the 
programme’s delivery.  The objectives for the monitoring and evaluation process are: 

· To enable continuous improvement in project delivery processes; 

· To demonstrate the value for money (or lack thereof) of each intervention to learn lessons 
for future delivery of sustainable transport projects in York; 

· To demonstrate the value of i-Travel York to funders and key local decision makers; 

· To demonstrate the value that i-Travel York provides to York residents and visitors. 

ANNEX CPage 116



i-Travel York LSTF 2015/16 funding bid  21 

 

For each programme component of i-Travel York, we have identified a range of indicators (input, 
output, process and outcome) to measure progress against the set objectives.  

Existing datasets (owned by City of York Council and its partners) are being utilised to provide 
context and help us understand what other changes to travel occur over the i-Travel York 
intervention period.  In 2012, a household travel diary and attitudinal survey was conducted to 
determine a baseline, utilising the Council’s Talkabout Panel which has 1,490 members and is 
reasonably representative of the City’s population.  At the end of the i-Travel York programme, 
the survey will be repeated in order to track performance across the implementation period.  

Aftercare telephone surveys are completed as an integral part of the residential and workplace 
PTP project delivery so information is collected without additional cost to the evaluation 
programme.  A collective total of 900 participants will be contacted after the 2013 and 2014 
summer engagement periods to obtain data on the perceived quality and benefit of the service 
and self-reported behaviour change as a result of the intervention. 

Annual progress reports inform the team of the key findings from these monitoring exercises. 

 
SECTION D - Declarations 
 

D1. Senior Responsible Owner Declaration

As Senior Responsible Owner for I-Travel York, I hereby submit this request for approval to DfT
on behalf of City of York Council and confirm that I have the necessary authority to do so. I
confirm that City of York Council will have all the necessary statutory powers in place to ensure
the planned timescales in the application can be realised.

Name: Frances Adams
Position: Assistant Director for Transport, Highways,
Waste and Fleet, City of York Council

Signed:

 

D2. Section 151 Officer Declaration

As Section 151 Officer for City of York Council, I declare that the scheme cost estimates
quoted in this bid are accurate to the best of my knowledge and that City of York Council:

- has allocated sufficient budget to deliver this scheme on the basis of its proposed funding
contribution;

- accepts responsibility for meeting any costs over and above the DfT contribution
requested, including potential cost overruns and the underwriting of any funding
contributions expected from third parties;

- accepts responsibility for meeting any ongoing revenue and capital requirements in
relation to the scheme;

- accepts that no further increase in DfT funding will be considered beyond the maximum
contribution requested and that no DfT funding will be provided after 2015/16;

- confirms that the authority has the necessary governance / assurance arrangements in
place and the authority can provide, if required, evidence of a stakeholder analysis and
communications plan in place.

Name:
Ian Floyd, Section 151 Officer, City of York Council

Signed:

 

ANNEX CPage 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

   

 
Economic Development and Transport Policy & 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Report of the Assistant Director Governance and ICT 

15 September 2015 

 

Update Report on implementation of recommendations from previously 
completed Graduate Business Start-ups, Entrepreneurialism and 
Higher Value Jobs Scrutiny Review 
 

Summary 

1. This report provides Members with the first update on the implementation 
of recommendations (Annex A) arising from the previously completed 
Graduate Business Start-ups, Entrepreneurialism and Higher Value Jobs 
Scrutiny Review. 
 
Background 

2. At a meeting in March 2014 the Economic & City Development Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee considered briefing papers on three possible 
scrutiny review topics and agreed that more productive and higher value 
jobs could be worthy of scrutiny review. A Task Group was appointed to 
carry out the work on the Committee’s behalf. 

3. The Task Group met with Officers on several occasions to agree a 
suitable remit and during a meeting between the then ECDOSC Chair, 
the Head of Economic Development and the Programme Director 
Business Consolidation it was suggested the focus of the review should 
be on entrepreneurship and graduate enterprise. The Committee 
subsequently agreed the following review aim and objectives. 
 
Aim 
To identify cost effective ways to attract graduates and entrepreneurs to 
start up or relocate in York thus enabling the employment of local people 
at higher than average wages. 
 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 119



 

4. Objectives 

i. Identify improvements to the way York attracts and supports 
graduates and young entrepreneurs to develop enterprise in the 
city. 

ii. Identify an improved marketing strategy for York in general and as 
a place to grow higher value jobs. 

5. Over a number of meetings and visits the Task Group gathered evidence 
in support of the review and conclusions and the recommendations were 
endorsed by the Economic & City Development Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee at their meeting on 28 January 2015. 

6. The final scrutiny report was subsequently considered by Cabinet in 
early May 2015 and Cabinet agreed to note the Task Group’s 
recommendations and to pursue them as part of the work streams for 
Make it York and the Economic Strategy. 
 
Options 

7. Members may decide to sign off any individual recommendations of the 
Graduate Business Start-ups, Entrepreneurialism and Higher Value Jobs 
Scrutiny Review where implementation has been completed and can: 

i. Request further updates and the attendance of relevant officers at 
a future meeting to clarify any outstanding recommendations to 
the above review or; 

ii. Agree to receive no further updates on this review. 

Council Plan 

8. This review is linked to the create jobs and grow the economy element of 
the Council Plan 2011-15. 
 
Implications 

9. There are no known financial, human resources, equalities, legal or other 
implications associated with the recommendation made in this report. 
 
Risk Management 
 

10. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy there are no 
known risks associated with this report. 

Page 120



 

 
Recommendation 
 

11. Members are asked to note the contents of this report and sign off all the 
recommendations in the Graduate Business Start-ups, 
Entrepreneurialism and Higher Value Jobs Scrutiny Review that have 
been fully implemented. 

Reason: To raise awareness of those recommendations which are still to 
be fully implemented. 

 
Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the 
report: 

Steve Entwistle 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
Tel: 01904 5554279 
e: steven.entwistle@york.gov.uk 
 
 

Andrew Docherty 
Assistant Director 
Governance and ICT 
Tel: 01904 5551004 
 

Report Approved � Date 19/08/2015 

    

Wards Affected:   All �

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Annexes 
 

Annex A – Implementation of recommendations from the Graduate Business 
Start-ups, Entrepreneurialism and Higher Value Jobs Scrutiny 
Review  

Page 121



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A 

 

Graduate Business Start-ups, Entrepreneurialism and Higher Value Jobs Scrutiny Review 

The Cabinet Resolved to note the Task Groups recommendations and to pursue these as part of the work 

streams for Make it York and the Economic Strategy.  

Review Recommendations Update on Implementation 15 September 20015 

i. That the Economic Development Unit, Make It 
York and their partners bring forward innovative 
proposals to increase the amount of city centre 
space available for start-up and growing 
businesses in York by 20% by 2020, the amount 
of extra space to increase year on year and be 
reviewed annually;  

This will be taken forward by the Local Plan and 
development at York Central.  It will also be part of 
discussion through the emergence of the new 
Economic Strategy.  

ii. That the Council look to establish a single point 
of contact for business advice and develop a 
communications strategy to more effectively 
inform business owners and new starters of the 
assistance the Council can provide by clearly 
signposting services and to examine how local 
banks, accountants and solicitors could be used 
to point people in the direction of the council and 
its partners for advice;  

This is part of the Make it York Commissioning 
Agreement:  

“To be the ‘single front door’ in York for businesses and 
start-ups seeking a range of support, including a ‘front 
door’ for businesses accessing Council services, with 
high quality response, signposting and support” 

“To make York businesses and start-ups aware of the 
export provision / grants and finance / property in York 
/ events / business support available to them, including 
provision through relevant regional bodies, such as the 
Local Enterprise Partnerships and Combined 

P
age 123



Annex A 

 

Authorities.” 

How this is specifically delivered will be determined by 
Make it York and its board. 

iii. That named Council support officers responsible 
for liaison with start-up businesses are clearly 
indentified on the York Means Business and 
other appropriate Council websites;  

Make it York have a named officer for liaison with start-
ups: Nathan Vasey.  Websites are currently in the 
process of being updated, upon which this information 
will be more clearly promoted. 

iv. That the Council and its partners work to 
increase business-to-business mentoring, peer 
support and networking opportunities for small 
businesses and the named contacts in 
Recommendation iii) be responsible for 
facilitating networking opportunities.  

Make it York facilitate a number of peer support and 
networking opportunities, including through its Science 
City York networks aimed at high value businesses.  
How this is specifically delivered will be determined by 
Make it York and its board.  Other private companies in 
the city also deliver these opportunities, which again 
are responsible themselves for specifically how this is 
best delivered. 

v. That ECDOSC receives reports within six months 
on the outcomes of the support being provided to 
new local businesses by the Council.  

ECDOSC will receive an update from Make it York on 
business support activity, as part of overall progress 
report 

vi. That interventions through the Local Growth 
Fund and Make It York support an increase of 
5% in employment in professional, scientific and 
technical activities by 2030.  

This target has been superseded by 20% above 
baseline projections, a more ambitious and suitable 
target.  This is part of the Make it York SLA and will be 
sought to be aligned within other policy remits, e.g. 
Local Plan. 

P
age 124



Annex A 

 

vii. That the Council construct a comprehensive 
database and e-list of businesses in the city; 

Make it York have a database of key business contacts 
in the city, as well as subscriptions to databases 
providing summary details of the fullest number of 
businesses in the city. 

viii. That existing education providers be encouraged 
to step up provision of business plan writing so 
people can be coached to develop business 
plans;  

This will be considered as part of the York Economic 
Strategy refresh process, in relation to other priority 
actions around having Enterprising Skills at Every Age. 

ix. That the University of  York be urged to: 

• Reallocate University car parking to improve 
access and increase the attractiveness to 
visitors to the Ron Cooke Hub, subject to 
planning restrictions; 

• Make more in its prospectus that the 
university does not claim the intellectual 
property rights to undergraduate ideas. 

The outcome is dependant on the University of York, 
the conversations about these topics are still to be had 
between CYC and the University. 

 

P
age 125



P
age 126

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Economic Development & Transport Policy & Scrutiny Committee Draft Work Plan 2015/2016 

 

Meeting Date Work Programme 

17 June 2015 
@ 5.30pm 

1. Introductory Report including ideas on potential topics for review in this Municipal 
Year. 

2. Update Report on Scrutiny Arrangements around Make it York. 
3. Attendance of the managing Director of Make it York 
4. Work Plan 2015/2016 

22 July 2015 
@5.30pm 

1. Attendance of Executive Members for: 

• Transport & Planning (Confirmed) 

• Housing and Safer Neighbourhoods (Confirmed) 
to detail their priorities and challenges for 2015/16Economic Dashboard Update 

2. To consider Executive report on Business Improvement District for York City Centre 
3. Briefing Report on Economic Strategy. 
4. Work Plan 2015/2016 

15 September 2015 
@ 5.30pm 

1. Attendance of Executive members for 

• Transport and Planning  

• Environment  
2. End of Year Finance & Performance Monitoring Report  
3. 1st Quarter Finance & Performance Monitoring Report  
4. Overview Report on Low Emissions Strategy including update of Air Quality Action 

Plan (to be deferred) 
5. Update report on iTravel  
6. Update Report on Implementation of the Recommendations in Higher Value Jobs 

Scrutiny Review  
7. Work Plan 2015/2016 including scrutiny reviews 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 127



18 November 2015 
@ 5.30pm 

1. Attendance of Executive Member for Economic Development and Community 
Engagement. 

2. 2nd Quarter Finance & Performance Monitoring Report  
3. Update Report on Universal Credit 
4. Six Monthly Update Report on Major Transport Initiatives 
5. Six Monthly Update Report on Major Developments within the city 
6. Overview Report on Low Emissions Strategy including update of Air Quality Action 

Plan 
7. Economic Dashboard Update 
8. Work Plan 2015/2016 

19 January 2016 @ 
5.30pm  

1. Work Plan 2015/2016 
2. Update on Implementation of Recommendations in Online Skills / E-Commerce 

Scrutiny Review  

16 March 2016 
@ 5.30pm 

1. 3rd Quarter Finance & Performance Monitoring Report 
2. Economic Dashboard Update 
3. Work Plan 2015/2016 

20 April 2016 
@ 5.30pm 

1. Work Plan 2015/2016 

18 May 2016 
@ 5.30pm 

1. Six Monthly Update Report on Major Transport Initiatives 
2. Six Monthly Update Report on Major Developments within the city 
3. Economic Dashboard Update 
4. Work Plan 2015/2016 

 

P
age 128


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Attendance of Executive Member for Transport and Planning
	5 Attendance of Executive Member for the Environment
	6 2014/15 Finance and Performance Outturn Report
	Annex 1- Create Jobs and Grow the Economy
	Annex 2 - Get York Moving

	7 2015/16 Finance & Performance Monitor 1 Report - Economic Development and Transport
	8 The Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF)- iTravel York
	Annex A - LSTF 1 bid application
	Annex B - iTravel York Monitoring and evaluation December 2014
	Annex C - LSTF 2 bid application

	9 Update Report on Implementation of Recommendations from Previously Completed Graduate Business Start-ups, Entrepreneurialism and Higher Value Jobs Scrutiny Review
	Annex A - Implementation of recommendations

	10 Work Plan 2015/16 including Scrutiny Reviews

